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ATEH Corporate Information
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HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT

1962

1983

1989

1992

1996

2007

2008

2009-
2013

2020

| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. was established in May 1962,
which manufactured canned agricultural products mainly for
export.

In 1983, we collaborated with lwatsuka Confectionery Co., Ltd.
(“ICCL”), one of the leading Japanese rice cracker producers, to
jointly develop the rice cracker market in Taiwan region. Since
1983, we have been producing and marketing our products under
the “Want Want” brand.

We introduced the “Want Want” brand in the Chinese mainland in
1989.

We ventured into the Chinese mainland and established our first
subsidiary in Hunan province in the Chinese mainland in 1992. In
the following years, we grew from a pure rice cracker company to
a diversified food and beverages company.

In May 1996, Want Want Holdings Ltd. (“WWHL?”), our subsidiary,
was listed on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) and subsequently diversified into the
hospital, hotel and property businesses and other investments.

WWHL delisted from SGX-ST in September 2007 and conducted
a group restructuring which involved (i) the incorporation of Want
Want China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) as the new holding
company of our core operations related to the food and beverages
businesses; (ii) the divestment and transfer of the hospital, hotel
and property businesses and other investments to San Want
Holdings Limited (“San Want”) on 31 December 2007, and the
interests in San Want were distributed to the then shareholders of
WWHL by way of dividend in specie.

Our Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HK Stock Exchange”) on 26 March 2008 (the
“Listing”).

Our Taiwan Depositary Receipts were listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation on 28 April 2009 and were voluntarily
withdrawn from listing on 15 October 2013.

In 2020, our Vietnam production base commenced construction
to strengthen our business expansion and to cope with our future
development strategy in overseas markets.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Want Want”, “We” or the “Group”) are the manufacturing,
distribution and sale of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack
foods and other products.

KEY MARKETS

Most of our operations are located in the Chinese mainland, which is one
of the fastest growing economies in the world. We have an extensive
nationwide sales and distribution network throughout the Chinese
mainland. We also export our products to other markets, including North
America, East Asia, South East Asia and Europe.

As at 31 March 2021, we had 422 sales offices, 35 production bases

and 81 factories in the Chinese mainland and worked with around 9,000
distributors.
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Corporate Culture ¥ 31t

“Study hard, be prosperous every day” Want Want eloquence [fFirEeE » RAEE|EEOFKE
contest

To promote corporate culture, identify talents in the Group and enhance AEELEL  SREBEFSALT -
customer communication and interaction, Chief Operating Officer, Tsai BEFXINEE  BEFEEBEEXRR
Wang-Chia called for and specially organised the “My Want Want Life” B BFRIREKENEREAE) EERE -
speech contest and the “Finding the Best One” talk show contest, offering [EXRRENMRIFOFZRE WAEEE
two stages for all Want Want people and distributors to “take a firm grasp of B AELHESEESLERD 84
themselves, and bring out absolutely their implicit qualities”. It has not only BERC] TESDHRERNRES

driven the brand publicity of Want Want products, but also discovered many B BRIFZEBEFTEOTRA BR
live commerce talents, demonstrated the strengths of the Group, enhanced RTEEEN  HARATEIHEENEEB
employees’ sense of belonging to the Group and increased customers’ B BINTBEFHEBMNRT -

recognition of the Group.

FFRODIRE SR RS
1. BEAT A5 A2 IR F1996-F
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EEEEXE 14 Spirit of Want Want

MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY:
K

People Oriented

Hot-Kid’'s round head shape signify “congenial”’. The
head seems to have just been washed, but the hair is
not dry, so it is known as holding the hair. “Hair holding”
comes from <Zhou Gong Quotation>: “three times hair
holding in one shower and, three times spiting in one
meal. Just fear to lose the talented people in the world.”
So “Hair holding” also have meaning of eagerness to get
talented people.

Message from the Chairman: we believe excellent
employer-employee cohesion fosters long-lasting
harmony and progress. Equally important is a strong
management cadre. Hot-Kid’s crown of spiky hair
symbolizes our eagerness to embrace new talents. We
deeply value relationships and talents.

in SHEEE

MEFHEE 2B - KK (R - BIFEE
FIEE O BAR MEREEZEZE - [EE] 4
B (AAETY # [—AK=ZEE  —fRi=1
B MRBEART 2] - FIAEEtHR G
BELHEE -

ZEERNGE  AREBEEES  ARARE—
BARE » ARBEHE—E  EZERFNE
s BEEEZRE  FEROFAER  BOF
BIR EAREESEE -

Self Confidence

Confidence comes with good preparation. Hot-Kid's smiling
countenance reflects our belief in preparedness and the
confidence that glows with it. Heart-shaped tongue of the Hot-
Kid represents our sincere heart to the Group: Be faithful to
the leaders, be kind to the subordinates, and be sincere to our
customers. This effort would definitely enhance our performances!

BfE XOMACS #
HEEXOFRKRRAREE - RNBERBREAZMNE
B BREZWBER  —EAUUARREE - BEREMM
ENE-ER - XOPFAOLE » KRFRMFHND ¢
HELRZORRER  BETEBRECMIE  HEEFH
DHRE  LERERER - FFIE -
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Unity

Hot-Kid's open arms reflect our team spirit. His welcoming left
arm denotes our unity. We believe with the right strategies and
concerted effort, victory is already half won. Even with less-than-
expected performances, our collective efforts will ensure minimal
deviations.

REHE EFHER
EFNEFRBEREK EFRTAELS - MRKKE
e SREEMAEERIFNAS - ERKEXN
8 b EEEEMERKEIRE - E—EAREE K
RBLOED - FEF - BEE—E-
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MANAGEMENT GOALS:
REER !
Elite Dragons of the World
e Hot-Kid's open arms reflect WANT WANT is a big united family which brings together outstanding talents from all
,‘@" over the world. With the development and expansion of our businesses, the Giant Dragons of the World is born.
y=¢

IR HABE LR
HFRASERRRBEEZE - AXBHEMARE B AHENERAEEZRRAE  BESEW
BRE > —REBRNVERBEEEARET  HEAERN [E] & !

United with People of Common Aspirations

Hot-Kid's right arm denotes a helping hand. Corporate advancement is the product of the intricate interplay among
management talent, skills, capital funds and markets. As we strive to achieve our corporate vision of becoming the "Elite
Dragons of the World", our doors are always open to people of common aspirations and those who share our ideals.

mESEE ATFREE
EFAFEARTER FOAERTREZE - CERRND N THTRAS 5 B2 &
5 RPUMEERBEIWEENE  HERESER B SRBANEL  THERMORE
FRBHEEE  HEEE—R -

&

High Margins, Great Success

Hot-Kid's upward-looking eyes point to where our management sights are set - the skies. We aim high and achieve
far. Only through prudent management and judicious foresight, will our enterprise progress with sustainable profits.
Preparedness also prevents any unwanted events. With good yields, our shareholders and employees will share the
fruits of our success.

SAESKR SEERE
EFNREELERTOECEEEESE  S&815% NBROREENES - EE9%  £B2A
WABEFH  AARARSSORY - EIRARER  BRAA  BREENER - AT-ETS
BRI BTOERIZHRE -

00

Successful Business Ventures

Hot-Kid's roll-up sleeves and pants imply embracing our future with hard work. To realize our goal of becoming the
"Elite Dragons of the World", we will undertake new ventures periodically. Every employee should travel the extra
miles and ensure tasks are successfully accomplished.

FRIZ=RI#EE BRmE
BRI T RE T - RRFREAHEE - YHEL D - RMLSEORBRERE] - FFEHEEE
HMNEXRE  ATHANSESE  ARZEACH TRV LB HBEBTR A RRXFHEARRNER

Prosperity for the Group and the Individuals

Hot-Kid's bare feet symbolize our unwavering pragmatism. To garner customers’ support and recognition, a
company needs to conduct its business honestly and earnestly. To win our customers' and associates' support,
every employee should be conscientious and down-to-earth when dealing with them.Consequently, a company will
prosper and likewise its employees.

AEEREARIER MBS
BAENFNARREFENAM  RTHEE - CXBEIUEARNIFESTE  REMBEE -
BETAME HENEER S AANENRELHYSE #A SR AINEERZET -0
It > ARSI » KRB AR o
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Financial Highlights

Revenue
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Profit for the Year
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Note:

2020FY: Year ended 31 March 2021
2019FY: Year ended 31 March 2020
2018FY: Year ended 31 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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Financial Summary B %=

FekE®R
Year ended Fifteen months
31 December ended 31
2016 March 2018 v ded 31 March
BZ016F  HE2018F ear ende arc
12838 3B3AL BEIANALFE
ILFE +EEA 2019 2020 2021
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETR AR¥TR ARETT AR¥TR
(Restated)
(BE5)
Revenue Wiz 19,710,128 24705513 20,712,027 20,094,531 21,998,400
Profit before income tax BRATSRAIRIE 4,895,848 5,322,733 4,806,321 5,048,789 5,994,842
Income tax expense FEHER (1378473)  (1,468445)  (1,343750)  (1,412,546)  (1,847,161)
Profit for the year/period £E/HRNFE 3,517,375 3,854,288 3,462,571 3,636,243 4,147,681
Profit attributable to: FEMLFTE -
Equity holders of the Company ADAEREEA 3,519,168 3,862,603 3,476,599 3,649,215 4,157,809
Non-controlling interests FEBIMER (1,793) (8,315) (14,028) (12,972) (10,128)
Dividends RE 1,524,314 2473233 2,877,682 3,649,215 1,710,001
Shares buy-back REER 1,437,019 371,713 - 184,782 1,601,078
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
AR#ES ARES ARES ARES ARES
Earnings per share BREF
Basic H2K 27.70 30.90 27.93 29.38 33.83
Diluted B 27.70 30.90 27.93 29.38 33.83
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEERER
As at
31 December
2016 As at 31 March
20165 M3A31A8
12A31H 2018 2019 2020 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT AR¥TT ARETRT ARET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(EEH) (ZE5)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 10,308,135 9,330,069 8,649,036 8,218,962 10,811,484
Current assets REEE 16,901,072 17,353,034 21225369 21,606,028 20,431,534
Total assets BEE 27,209,207 26,683,103 29,874,405 29,824,990 31,243,018
EQUITY &
Total equity s 12,320,923 14,610,900 15,459,827 15,354,214 14,971,640
LIABILITIES g%
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 6,116,287 3,343,251 8,116,043 8,649,259 7,105,520
Current liabilities REEE 8,771,997 8,728,952 6,298,535 5,821,517 9,165,858
Total liabilities HwaE 14,888,284 12,072,203 14414578 14,470,776 16,271,378
Total equity and liabilities BREZNEE 27,209,207 26,683,103 29,874,405 29,824,990 31,243,018
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FFE#HE Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders:

Although the world is still wrestling with the uncertainties of COVID-19
pandemic along its path towards recovery, with the widespread use of
vaccine, countries across the globe are gradually stepping out of the gloom
and getting back on track. Thanks to its effective prevention and control of
the pandemic, China will be best positioned to benefit from the recovery
of economy and market demand, and will see abundant opportunities and
growth momentum across all industries.

In 2020FY, under the spirit of “those who are brave are fearless and
those who are strong are invincible” of all Want Want employees and
customers, revenue and net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company increased by 9.5% and 13.9% as compared with those of 2019FY
to RMB21,998 million and RMB4,158 million, respectively. In particular,
operating profit increased by 19.4% year-on-year to RMB5,736 million. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most sincere gratitude to all
our staff for their effort and dedication. The Company is prosperous and
likewise are its employees.

As Want Want has numerous different product lines, production quality
control has been our challenge all along, but this may also give rise to
opportunities for future growth. In recent years, the management has been
working hard on developing different new sales channels with the strategic
objective of exploring consumers of different ages through a multi-brand
strategy. These efforts have begun to take shape and yield results. In future,
we will consolidate talents within the organization, take full advantage of
both online and offline channels and leverage our existing resources in
production and research and development, to launch more and more new
products, so as to enable Want Want to continue to thrive and flourish, and
by building on the solid foundation that it has already laid.

In face of the new normal state of consumption in the post-pandemic era, |
ask our management to extend last year’s “year of learning” into this year,
and make strides towards the three major goals of “safety”, “innovation”
and “changes”. Only a constant pursuit of perfection in product quality from
inside out, will ensure that the reputation of the Want Want brand will remain
high among generations of consumers. | consider that our top competitive
advantage is consumers’ trust in our products which we have earned over
the years. Despite uncertainties along the path ahead, all our employees will

do their best and strive for an excellent Want Want in the future.

Tsai Eng-Meng
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

22 June 2021
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2020%5H8 > BLEIBIHRERR KB 42020 Monde
Selection Gold Quality Award € °

Hot-Kid Baby Mum—Mum Organic Rice Rusks
(Original Flavour) won the 2020 Monde
Selection Gold Quality Award

In May 2020, Hot-Kid Baby Mum-Mum Organic Rice
Rusks (Original Flavour) won the 2020 Monde Selection
Gold Quality Award.

MONDE SELECTION

International Quality Institute Since 1961

‘GRANTS THE COMPANY

SHANG GAo RiMALT Foops Co., Lo

A
#OR THE PRODUCT
Hot-Kid Baby Mum-Mum Organic Rice Rusks (Original Flavour)

PRESENTED AT THE

th
59 WORLD SELECTION OF FOOD PRODUCTS 2020

Pt oo Mg o
[ty s sosin ‘G et

RERT SR 68 — + A REFRm A
2020118 BE-T A AR RETEEERES

o

Want Want

has been (4

listed in

the 25 Best S s Bt
B -8%

Taiwan

Global Brands e

again '

In November 2020,

Want Want ranked

third in the selection of

BRANDING.
TAIWAN

the 25 Best Taiwan Global <a L’

Brands. :
i SRSIRE
G ARERRRR A

HIEIF'J‘NEEFEH{_’, éé(s?lEBRCGSA&HM.E
20206 HEEEETEMEEEMEEGRE
BRCGS A ##E » BRCGSEEERGFSIRAHZE—
BEREFLRZERRANEREZ— -

Want Want’s Guangzhou production base was
awarded 6 BRCGS Grade A certificates

In June 2020, Want Want’'s Guangzhou production
base was successively awarded 6 BRCGS Grade A
certificates. As a GFSl-approved standard, the BRCGS
standard has been one of the international benchmarks
of food safety management system.

| Certificate of Approval

Guangzhou Lee Want Foods Ltd Guangzhou Xiang Want Foods
L

vt

G Globe Standart o Food Saty s, Augus 2018

%;';i?. Bt B

Certificate of Approval

Ene——
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The key technology and industrialization
research of “Aiyo Rice Noodles Series” soba
noodles won the third prize of the Technology
Innovation Award, and the key technology R&D
and application of electrolysis functional water
in food sterilization and preservation jointly
won the Technology Progress Award

In October 2020, the key technology and industrialization
research of “Aiyo Rice Noodles Series” soba noodles
won the third prize of the Technology Innovation Award
at the award ceremony of the 17th Annual Conference of
the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology
held in Xi'an. Jointly applied by Shanghai Fugiangwang
and Shanghai Ocean University, the key technology
R&D and application of electrolysis functional water in
food sterilization and preservation was awarded the
second prize of the Technology Progress Award of the
Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology.

PERGMFERZS
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=F 3K
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R&D and process research of French créme
bralée won the Technical Progress Award from
the China Dairy Industry Association

In September 2020, the 26th Annual Meeting of China
Dairy Industry Association and the Global Dairy CGD
Cooperation and Development Forum was held in
Beijing, and the R&D and process research of the
commercial aseptic French créme brilée (pudding)
product was awarded the second prize of the Technical
Progress Award from the China Dairy Industry
Association.
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Want Want Group won the China Food Health
Seven Star Award for the sixth consecutive
time

In September 2020, the Want Want Group won the
China Food Health Seven Star Award for the sixth
consecutive time at the 9th China Food Health Seven
Star Awards Ceremony.

FILE T E R EY

The Ninth Annual Seven-Star Awards uts(andin;Cnnlnbutmn inFood Safety & Public Health
=R =P
FELEY
ATRT &
r :
4
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The 12th Golden Mouse
Digital Marketing Contest
in April 2021

1.

1.

. The double 11 marketing

. The Hot-Kid Occupational

HEXFZETEERERREC | REERBSEH
BER

(EFQAERBIR) BHRFBRIBRSLEHE
R

(Y EBEBFIZ) EMEHRLERREHRARER
(RS RO B EE L) AR R R S R IPE S8

52

Want Want X NetEase
Music “Sounds Delicious”
won the Cross-Industry
Joint Marketing Gold
Award

Marketing proposal for
“Different Levels of Chewy
Textures of Hot-Kid’s QQ
Gummy” won the Video
Integrated Marketing
Silver Award

proposal for “Whoops!
Why Is It So Delicious”
won the Effect Marketing
Bronze Award

Cans marketing proposal
for “Working Together
From the Heart, Prosperity
for Everyone” won the IP
Marketing Bronze Award
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HEERRE

Overview of key points of the report

Reporting Scope

During the reporting period, more than 90% of the Group’s revenue and
businesses were generated and conducted in the Chinese mainland, so this
report sets out the data and information generated in the Chinese mainland
exclusively. The reporting period refers to the period from 1 April 2020 to 31
March 2021 (“reporting period”).

References

The report was prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out
in Appendix 27 to the “Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited” issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx”) and with reference to the “Sustainability
Reporting Standards” issued by Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI”). During
the reporting period, we acted in accordance with the “comply or explain”
provisions in the ESG Reporting Guide.

0 3K
EmiE
About products

= 100%

M EIER

Pass rate of external inspections

R KB R AR

The Group possesses
2,589 trademarks in the
Chinese mainland.

2,589 i
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Consumer satisfaction

HEEE
AEBEREHABIBI0% KW E K EIEH
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BEE - ENEEEEA2020F4810
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Complaint resolution rate

100%

%* %k % Kk

95%
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Pass rate of

quality inspection
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of finished goods
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I 15 5
About environment

20155 B4
Since 2015

RETRERAREA g KEBEF M RIET
Energy efficiency increased by 22% Utilisation efficiency of water resources increased
: by 21%

AR B : -
A 22% equivalent to saving A 21 % e

equivalent to saving
145,000 tonnesof ~ : 1,970,000 tonnes of

water

1 ,970,000.

standard coal

"’ 145,000. = |

RRFMBGEZRTTIRA
Cumulative investment in

upgrading environmental protection
technologies was RMB 211 million

FFAFSCUL K SFIZRMEE R E

a2
i The Group used 4 billion cartons
i certified by the Forest Stewardship
# Council ("FSC") and the Sustainable

Forestry Initiative ("SFI")

BRI BEERA HEREER AR
RMB13.10 million — equivalent to planting
was devoted to : 72,000 trees

upgrading environmental
protection technologies

1,310..s Ah A AA7.2.
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W = E AR BERA
Reducing carbon dioxide emission by

e %Tkgée-glé
"N Solar photovoltaic power
generated amounted to

about 11,825 tonnes

[EEEY | oeesemonedo

14,900,000 kWh

aELE]
Hit AH

Internal trainers

“oeg s HBET
Serving employees

oo 39,1324
'H" 863.

B £2021F3H31H

)/ (’ &t Female
( o
N ¥
N4 55¢, As of 31 March 2021
A G555 2L
-~ Average training hours
completed per employee

— 45,
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Governance Report of the Environmental, Social and

Governance (“ESG”) Committee

The Group’s operation and business expansion should not be at the
expense of the environment. Every company should contribute to the
reduction of resource usage and environment protection, and to succeed
in creating long-term value for the Group, it is necessary to formulate a
sustainable development strategy corresponding to the group.

At Want Want, environmental and social responsibilities are part of every
employees’ job responsibility. Such responsibilities are organically integrated
into our daily work and business operations. Since 2015, the Group has
been committed to the efficient use and management of resources to
minimize the impact of production activities on the environment through the
promotion of world-class management i.e. WCM in all production bases.
Through the efforts of all Want Want employees, efficiency in the use of
resources has been significantly improved.

The global outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 affected production and
livelihoods of people to a certain extent; however, our efforts in sustainable
development have not been affected. In order to better create long-term
value for the Group and to address the risks of water supply and the
impact of climate change, the Group established the ESG Committee
in 2020 and formulated five strategies on environmental sustainability:
“establishing long-term goals for sustainable development, engaging
participation of stakeholders, attaching significant importance to investment
in environmental protection, using resources efficiently and devoting to
technological innovation”.

“Establishing long-term goals for sustainable development” — in 2017,
the Group set a target to improve water and energy efficiency by 8% and
15% respectively by 2020 as compared with those of 2015. As of 2020,
the cumulative improvement in water efficiency and energy efficiency was
21% and 22%, respectively, while the Guangzhou factory has passed the
AWS accreditation and obtained the “Gold” certification. In order to further
consolidate its achievements, the ESG Committee of the Group has set

long-term targets such as “sustainable water management”, “significant
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions”, “progressive achievement of 100%
recyclability of packaging materials” as well as “zero disposal of solid waste

at landfills”, which will be implemented in phases.

“Engaging participation of stakeholders” — in 2020, driven by the
AWS accreditation, the Group engaged stakeholders to participate in
“shared governance of the river basin”, promoted the upgrade of "water
management" and environmental compliance along supply chain.

2020720214 ANNUAL REPORT [ I
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“Attaching significant importance to investment in environmental protection”
— since 2016, the Group has invested RMB211 million in environmental
protection, with effluent discharge, grease purification, and VOC emissions,
all in compliance with national emission standards.

“Using resources efficiently” — the Group introduced the WCM management
concept and incorporated the best practices in the standard management
system (WSM) with Want Want characteristics to continuously optimize
the impact of production activities on the environment. Through analysis
of raw and auxiliary material inputs and outputs, streamlining, measuring
and tracing of energy sources, checking of energy consumption points and
combining technological innovation, our production process and efficiency of
water and energy use have been improved significantly.

“Devoting to technological innovation” — since 2017, the Group has further
increased its R&D and innovation. At present, application for 96 patents
have been accepted by the State Intellectual Property Office and 75 patents
have been awarded, 17 of which are related to energy saving, emission
reduction, and environmental protection.

Based on our achievements so far and looking forward to the future, the
Group sets its goal with reference to the National 14th Five-Year Plan and
Vision 2035, targeting to improve energy and water efficiency in the next five
years by 10% and reduce greenhouse gas emissions density by 13% from
current levels further helping to promote water conservation and carbon
reduction among key raw material suppliers, thereby contributing Want
Want's efforts to the global use of clean water and in dealing with of climate
change.

2020/20215 R ANNUAL REPORT

[ERBRIRAI-B2016F LUK » £EE
RIBEA2AMET » FFKEER ~ SHERL
VOCHEHI BN B R HIEZE o

(EMFEAERI-EE5 AWCMEERE
2 BERNBEERMATHSEEZE
EIBEZ (WSM) » BEELEETEEHB
BEWSE  BRBUHEHABRAERS I
BEERERNRE  STENE - EEZHS
HEERMTAIE - AERK - AXREREE
REAMEGE KGR -

(SRR ]-2017F AR - EEE—D
MAMERF - BRCERRABEER
REER96H - CRETHH - HP17THS
BB ~ BBE - RRIEBEEF] o

VYERE -RERAR  EEBESER
THHEREK2035EZ2EF  EARRAEF
W ERBER FRARERKERER
ME10% BAOEBELHREREHN
HRE13% » E— S BB ORER SR
BEIK R ERBER - BEBBRMAK
RIFBCBREHENE -



Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited | < B BZ B 1=z B R A Rl

BIE HERERRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Communication with stakeholders and materiality

assessment

We attach importance to our communication with stakeholders, and
encourage all the stakeholders to take part in and to monitor the
implementation of our ESG strategies. Want Want's key stakeholders
include mainly shareholders and investors, government and regulatory
authorities, consumers, partners, employees, communities and the media.
Through a variety of effective channels, we understand the stakeholders’
expectations and requirements on ESG which become our important
references for formulating ESG strategies. In order to understand truly the
concerns of the stakeholders, the Company performed a material issue
analysis of stakeholders and identified issues that are of great significance
to stakeholders and to the Company. The Company will respond to and
communicate effectively in respect of the concerns of the stakeholders, and
will attach great importance during the Company’s operation process and
will continue to improve in related issues.

s RAGXRAEE

e BRAEMEENREZR

Improving product quality and safety
s RAEMBERESE

Developing healthy and nutritious products
s RAZFMEE

Enhancing customers’ satisfaction

o REHBERE

o HEgEEE

GBI

Business management

BTIkE

Employee development

EmEF

Product responsibility

Supply chain management

s RAEREERRERE
Improve advertising content management

Environmental protection

MRS B EREE MG

RMERENDABELNEBE - LSEA
ﬁﬂ%‘ﬂﬁ%ﬁfi%iﬁi CEBERMANERER &
XEE (ESG) RENE - HENER
*Uﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁfi@?ﬂﬁi&}xﬁ% BRE
EWE OHEE AFRBME BT HE
REES RABBZEARRETHS
EF=EE S EESCH HE RN EEM
2R EREMFETESCEBNEES
Zo Z%TE’F)JE%’&%%U%‘MEE%EEE% N
RAESTANREBETEEEZESN - &
Jﬁ%i%ﬂ%‘i*ﬁ%ﬁfi%ﬂ“jﬁﬂﬂﬁiﬁn
ENRE  ARARBYENREBELEY
ETARORRERE IR EQRAEEN
BREPSEER  HFEUHEBIEETR
ARE ©

Improve corporate integrity management

Intellectual property protection

BERE

Responsible procurement
o BENGEB
Charitable donation

HEESE
Cooperation with
communities

RIGRE

* BRISMRZERETRE
Ensuring workplace safety and employees' health
o LB T Ms@HI%T
Prohibiting child labour and forced labour
* REAFMER
Enhancing salary and welfare benefits
* RAETWEE
Enhancing employees’ satisfaction

* Z{LiER

Adopting diversified employment
* MTEITEHSE

Granting employees with equal opportunities
® (BRI RE ML

Promoting career development and training

gl ¢

* BERBEEE
Exhaust emission management
* KERMEKEE
Water resource and waste water management
* EEFUREREE
Energy consumption and management
« BERIED
Environment-friendly activities
s RERFEMNREEME
Environment-friendly products and packaging
materials
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I. Product Responsibility — Making Products Perfect

from Inside out

The Group adheres strictly to laws and regulations such as “Food Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”, implements
national food safety strategies, and controls quality by forming an excellent
quality management team, establishing a professional quality control
system, enhancing Want Want’s standard quality management system and
promoting the construction of a food safety culture. The Group endeavors
to make the products perfect from inside out and safeguard the quality.
Want Want is determined to let consumers eat with ease, feel relieved
and happy, have confidence in Chinese food and become the promoter of
positive energy in the Chinese food industry. The Group adopts advanced
food safety management concepts and standards at home and abroad
to establish a WSQM system that matches the Company’s own features
and integrates the requirements of FSSC 22000, BRCGS and other food
safety management systems approved by the GFSI (Global Food Safety
Initiative), with HACCP principles as foundation and risk prevention as the
main management philosophy. The Group has 72 food/packaging factories
in normal operation* with a total of 122 certifications obtained, including
ISO9001, 1S022000, HACCP, FSSC22000, BRCGS and other standards,
with 100% certification coverage for its factories, including a 70.4% coverage
of GFSl-recognized certification, and the Guangzhou head office has
obtained 6 A-grade BRCGS certificates consecutively, covering crackers
and chips, bakery, candies, dairy products and beverages produced
by the Group. In addition, in order to meet the requirements of different
regions and customers, the Group has also applied for corporate integrity
management system, organic food, gluten-free food, halal food and other
certifications. The Group joined quality and food safety organizations such
as the China working group of GFSI and BRCGS Standards International
Advisory Committee to practice advanced food safety management
concepts and improve its own management standard.

1. Continuous Improvement

The Group has launched Quality Control Circle (QCC) and WCM (World
Class Manufacturing) quality improvement teams in all factories across the
nation, and carried out continuous improvement activities focusing on the
quality, efficiency, energy, cost, innovation, environment, safety and other
aspects in order to continuously improve the market competitiveness of our
products through full participation. During the reporting period, there are
221 national quality improvement teams, 1,966 in-service circle members,
achieved RMB1.8948 million QCC benefits; 29,480 improvements proposed
by employees, 15,900 of which were accepted by the Company and
achieved RMB5.1133 million tangible benefits.

Want Want R&D always pays attention to the health of consumers.
Recognizing the demand of various functional products from different
consumer groups, Want Want will continue to develop series of tasty
functional products. Meanwhile, Want Want continues to promote the

*Food/packaging factories in normal operation: is a factory that has regular operation for more
than 6 months in 2020FY and is not under suspension.
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application of “Three Reductions and Three Healthiness” in the Group's
product categories, including the reduction in oil, salt and sugar, maintains
oral health, healthy body weight, and healthy bones, continues to promote
the application of organic and natural (with less artificial ingredients)
ingredients, the proportion of added nutrients and plant-based products,
product upgrading and increase the proportion of clean label products;
and sustainability of packaging materials (carbon reduction, light weight,
recycling and degradation, etc.). Want Want focuses on deliciousness,
nutrition and convenience of products and concerns more on the organic
connection between ecological environment and life and health in
harmonious coexistence, therefore our product upgrades and evolution are
developing towards green, natural and healthy directions.

SERETNER - BVECH - RE - RAE
DREERES  RES®R REOE &
BEERERRAARARLAIRTD) REHE
R BEEEEERttRENEERNG
b SFBHDERAN  REFEERE
mEVEE Bl FHREE B TS E R R (Rl
B B8 - FRERSE) - HEIER
EmRAXK &BNLE EXE4RE
RERsnRENELENARBE &
NWBERNERARKOZRERRERE
FEBRE -

BT BE 22 ER AR 2 am 1 AR

Introduction of Want Want Health Concept New Products:

B RARBIRE

Organic and natural ingredients strategy

1. BB LIRS - B RZEHRY
Organic Baby Mum — Mum Rice Rusks and Toddler
Mum-Mum Rice Biscuits series:

B95% L EEHIER - BB RARB - SEREKMA
b 3=

Containing more than 95% organic ingredients, with
natural fruit and vegetable powder and a variety of
flavors to choose from. fiber.

Toddler

EER(L - BOUEEERK
Fortified Nutrition, sugar-free and salt-free strategy

1. BEIBIBRIT R

Baby Mum-Mum Fruit Juice series:
FRMEBYRERBE » R EE -

With no added white sugar and salt, with fruit juice as
sweetener.

2. EBHHER ~ BK)RT

Crackers (brown rice, white rice) series:

BRABRERAK BRIk BERR -
REZERY SRR -

Simple combination of ingredients, using selected
organic rice and organic brown rice as the main raw
material, with a variety of cereals, and is rich in dietary

BRI E -
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EEREL  BERRKRELNWAIRD

1.8 m&EE T - DHARG#E - EMRERERE |
Add probiotics, DHA and calcium, iron and zinc to help
children grow up healthily.

OF% - O - OREE - TEYIELEREE
0 sugar, 0 fat, 0 energy and plant-based strategy

1. RE08 AR
#&1’: BRHE - BREHESD ©
Tea beverages: using
sucralose as sweetener
to reduce sugar.

Heeift - BREER

Enhanced function and healthy ingredients

1.AMBREBR
Addition of collagen peptides.

Fortified Nutrition, healthy ingredients with less artificial components

2. IMEERE | FINEER - BRE28 (CFU) BXE
£HBESE

Export pod crisps: with addition of probiotics, each
bag contains 200 million CFU of effective probiotic
contents.

%’ T, s'lllm-Mum : %’sﬂlumﬂum

”“NT ns ru
PRI T B

2. TERWRES © EASEE
REN=SEERAE S
R o

Flower and fruit honey
tea: using erythritol and
sucralose instead of
white sugar.

2. /INGABA ~ RERSFE - #
E%BGT:— BETE
Addition of GABA, tea thiamine,
vitamin B6 and other nutritional
elements.
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2. Quality guarantee at source

Supplier management system:

A strict management process is in place from the introduction of suppliers
to their day-to-day management. In the supplier entry process, we verify
the quality and food safety systems, functional indicators, ingredient
requirements, production environment, equipment adaptability, qualification
compliance and other aspects. At the same time, we will also sign the
“Statement of Integrity” and “Undertaking for Prohibition of Commercial
Bribery” with all suppliers. The Group adheres to the principles of operation
with integrity, benefit sharing and mutual benefit, and continuously
improves the procurement process. A fair and impartial evaluation system
is established which respects the reasonable quotations of suppliers,
maintains the suppliers’ product benefits and technology development
interest, and creates a good competitive environment for suppliers.

»> »>

HrER B 8

IR A faRr L

Supplier development Supplier risk assessment

* EERBEER

Production environment

o HABRERIE

Establishment of entry standards

o HEEEER inspection
Qualification information o B 7% L Bl

Financial risk identification

o SERE A

Legal risk identification

verification

s EmEEMER

Product quality inspection

1) Development of suppliers and risk assessment

At the stage of introducing raw material suppliers, the Group looks for
suppliers on the basis of the principle of “multi-channel introduction and
multi-departmental decision”, and establishes a corresponding development
process for raw material suppliers and a strict internal standard document.
The Group follows strictly the entry standards for different kind of suppliers
to conduct qualification examinations, the standards of the Group are
generally higher than the national standards.
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Supplier management
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Assessment mechanisms
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e ERGERFE  Brief flow chart of supplier introduction

REEE(

Procurement unit

e mIREAL

s mREMEE

Led by quality assurance unit

* /L E/XBHREZSHE

1 Quality assurance unit
1 1
1

BEEEZ

Examination and

*7)( AR *E?E IN

qualification

* HrEXEE (Y

R&D unit

In terms of risk assessment, it is evaluated mainly through third-party
platforms and on-site visits. The qualification information provided by
suppliers is examined and verified through third-party platforms. In addition,
the potential financial and legal risks of suppliers are evaluated based on
public information. The production environment of supplier's factory and their
personnel management are inspected through on-site visits. On the one
hand, the information obtained can be verified. On the other hand, we could
gain better understanding of the supplier's actual management situation
and assess the risks on production environment and other risk factors.
In 2020FY, the Group cooperated with China Certification & Inspection
Group and Lloyd’s Register Quality Assurance to conduct external audits of
suppliers, so as to control strictly the entry of suppliers through professional
bodies. The Group will not consider those suppliers who do not meet the
standards and may have significant risks.

In procurement of raw materials, preference will be given to suppliers who
have passed 1SO9001, 1SO22000, HACCP, FSSC22000, AIB, Halal and
other standards, and suppliers will be required to provide factory inspection
results of each batch of raw materials and mark the place of origin, so that
the Group can conduct testing according to the corresponding acceptance
standards when the raw materials arrive at the factory for inspection, and
to record the batch and test results truthfully to ensure proper traceability of
the raw materials.
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BE . || ] | | =g || B
Raw | SL"EIES 'HACCP| AIB |HALAL{RSPO! (’l\jﬁ (kﬁﬁ ! | USDA |ECOCERT|{ China
materials | PP ) | organic
@I (RFE) BATLERRAA
Yigong (Zhangjiagang) Grain & Oil =~ v v v
Industries Co., Ltd.
REEHTEERAT

(RZE ~ RE > UL~ ®K%)
COFCO Grain & Oil Industries Co., N N N N
Ltd.
(Zhangjiagang, Tianjin, Jiujiang,
Dongguan)

HERERBTEERAF
(B~ RE-FE [~ BN~

¥R Yihai Jiali Grain & Oil Industries Co.
Palm oil Ltd. S R Voo

(Shanghai, Tianjin, Qingdao,
Sichuan, Guangzhou, Wuhan,
Xingping, Lianyungang)
REBTRBARA T g J
Dongguan Jiaji Grain & QOil Co., Ltd.
REERBEMTEERLH
Qinhuangdao Jinhai Grain & Oil v N
Industries Co., Ltd.

SRINEFRATEBRAF

Quanzhou Fuhai Grain & Oil y V y
Industries Co., Ltd.
ol &l o ERAR
AR Fonterra v v v N v
Dairy
products open country v v v v
BREIBEATKEEBERQA
Heilongjiang Beidahuang Rice V \/ \
Industry Group Co., Ltd.
FK (Satellite Rice Factory)
(k) =B (EARE) BhIXERQF
Rice Yihai (Jiamusi) Grain & Oil \ \
(Japonica Industries Co., Ltd.
rice) @WERE (BWL) BATLEBRLH
Yihai Jiali (Mishan) Grain & Oil \ \ NN

Industries Co., Ltd.
BERTEEEEIOKERAT
Yixing Grain & Oil Group Co., Ltd.

BEIOK PIERE (RA) BRAT N
Greenrice. COFCO Rice (Hulin) Co., Ltd.

BHIOK RERFEHRRMERAT
Organic = Dalian Shengfang Organic Food \ N N \
rice Co., Ltd.
BEMEREA EEEKER NI
Ak Yezhu Grain Processing Factory, N
Indica rice  Daxing Town, Suyu District, Sugian
City

202020214 3 ANNUAL REPORT [ EJIEIN



o 1 B BZ 15 i F BR 2 &) | Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited

RIE - HERERERE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2) Supplier management

As for supplier management, it relies mainly on assessment standards
and feedback mechanisms for suppliers to construct the supplier grading
management system.

A quantifiable assessment standard is established based on the four
dimensions of quality, delivery, cost and service, with equal weighting.
Each month, the quality center, supply chain center and procurement
center make assessment on the suppliers, and the supplier management
office is responsible for timely identification of any existing problems in
our cooperation with the supplier. Through the supplier's regular feedback
mechanism, disputes and other issues in the cooperation between the
Group and the supplier are communicated for optimizing our internal
workflow or for urging supplier for improvement.

O i

AR E

Quality X'ﬁ

Deliver

ZHE

Assessment and
evaluation

BLEE ARREE
Hﬁi% Optimize Pay attention
Service management to feedback

According to the data obtained from daily supplier management, through
grading management, we will provide incentives to responsible Grade A
suppliers, search for potential Grade B suppliers and provide them with
guidance and support, replace those unqualified suppliers and constantly
adjust the supplier structure to facilitate a positive development for
cooperation between the Group and its suppliers, to establish a long-term
strategic partnership with the ultimate goal of reducing the Group’s supply
chain management risks.

3) Environmental protection standards for suppliers

When selecting raw material suppliers, the qualifying certification standards
require that the manufacturer must have SC certificate, ISO environmental
management system certification and other operation-related certifications.
The Group also needs to perform site visits and issue a corresponding site
visit assessment report to ensure that the supplier complies with the Group's
standards on product quality and environmental factors.
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The Group continues to conduct the source quality management of
upstream suppliers focusing on raw materials suppliers, establishes the
“Materials Survey Form” for edible raw materials to monitor its upstream raw
material suppliers, their production processes, ingredients and proportions.
Meanwhile, we make random visits to the suppliers’ factories to inspect
the raw materials used by the suppliers to reduce the quality risks from the
source.

As for supplier management, in addition to annual review of suppliers on
the system, quality and other cooperation-related matters are also tracked
through our daily supplier assessment management. Once its qualification
does not meet with our requirements, the supplier concerned will be
blacklisted and will not be considered for cooperation.

4) Procurement and supply chain promotion plan

Sustainable supply chain is the basic requirement in the concept of scientific
development and serves as the long-term plan for economic and social
development. In terms of raw material procurement policies and objectives,
we will combine them with the concept of sustainable development to
achieve the ESG social responsibility objectives of the Group.

31/

Procurement traceability system

o EMHRAER
Materials Survey Form
o MEEE
Quality control
o LiFREREE
Upstream source management

° ERRIF100% AT
Altaining of 100% source traceability

HEERE

SEFRY EHAHERREET LEHER
FEMEAEE  FHELTAREHMNR
MRAER) - WH LRS- RiE
TE  FRRDRAMLEAEE T HET
B BNTEMSEHERAMARME
ITERRRER - (R E R E b

HEBEE KREASKLHHEBNFER
METIRK - ARHEREREEMEY
mEARHMEERBESEER  —BEE
THEER  BRIABFEFTTUS
¥ o

4) IREB AR SE M IR B
AFEHESEERBRREBNERESR
EEENHSRENERRE  ERYH
RBBRENEEZL  RABETSERRE
Bigs  SHEEESGHESEEE -

REEREER

Raw and ancillary materials certification system
o E=HRAE
Third-party certification
o RRIBERE
Environmental protection related certification
o B RYE00%3 %

100% certification of key raw materials

RERREER

Supplier selection

o 100%EEHETTER R IR IRV R VDRI B 3E 1T S 1E
100% cooperation with raw material manufacturers
that promote energy conservation and
environmental protection

o BE R RRIEARERRENE KRG
Take energy conservation and environmental
protection a priority in supplier selection

Green raw and ancillary materials

o BRERESORREEL - MIETIT  ETRR
Priority is given to green raw materials, and
replace with environmental-friendly raw materials if
research and development is feasible

o ZEMABRBERHSIEHE

Increase in the number of cooperation in recycling

raw materials year by year
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(1) Strengthen quality control of raw materials and traceability

Quality control: Strengthening the autonomous management of the
enterprise, and in addition to having a complete inspection mechanism for
incoming raw materials, continuously monitoring the quality until the finished
product stage;

Source management of upstream suppliers: The Group established the
“Materials Survey Form” for edible raw materials for monitoring of its
upstream raw material suppliers, production processes, ingredients and
proportions. We visit factories on an ad-hoc basis to reduce the quality risks
from sources;

Imported raw material filing system: We have a strict imported material
filing system. The import factories are required to fill in the information
of overseas production enterprises and exporters or agents, domestic
importers and purchasers, and import and sales records through the filing
system to strengthen the traceability.

(2) Promotion of energy conservation and environmental protection

In terms of volatile organic compounds (VOCS) management, the
purchasing department has given priority to enterprises that have installed
solvent recovery devices in the selection of soft packaging materials,
and has continued to promote the optimization of VOCS management by
cooperating with soft packaging material manufacturers, increasing the
proportion of cooperation with such manufacturers, which has now reached
100%.

The Group continues to use Tetra Pak packaging materials that have
been certified by the FSC as a “renewable forest” product to prevent
“one-off” damage to forest resources and actively explore new models of
environmental management. For other paper packaging materials, we have
increased our cooperation with FSC-certified suppliers and have made
“renewable forest” packaging materials our priority choice for packaging
materials. Based on the 4.15 billion paper packs procured in 2020, 4,834
hectares/72,508 acres of forest were managed properly and sustainably as
a result of the use of FSC-certified Tetra Pak packaging materials.

Recycling of raw materials. The Group has actively responded to the
requirements of building a resource-saving society. In terms of supplier
selection, the Group has increased the cooperation with enterprises that
adhere to the circular economy model to reduce progressively waste
emissions. Those enterprises use rice hulls to generate electricity by steam,
and to dry instead of using coal. Rice hulls are used to reduce energy
consumption and yellow pollution. The Company’s purchases of relevant
raw materials are on the rise.

We are actively exploring a new mode of environmental governance by
replacing existing solvent-based glues with solvent-free glues to contribute
to environmental governance. The use of solvent-free glues and water-
based glues has been promoted in our factories since 2017 with increasing
use year by year, and the proportion in the use of solvent-free glue and
water-based glue has reached 90.52% so far.
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(3) Continue to strengthen cooperation with sustainable suppliers and focus
on recyclable environmental-friendly raw materials

Want Want emphasizes on the cooperation with the manufacturers who
focus on sustainability: Nestlé, Cargill, Yihai, Fonterra, Tetra Pak, Sanyuan,
etc.

Recyclable environmental-friendly raw materials: Tetra Pak packaging
materials, plastic pallets, environmental protection bags, etc.

(4) Rice circular economy model
Want Want has cooperated with suppliers operating in rice circular economy

model.
b=
Breeding

¥

HES 3

Order farming

¥

BT
Grain processing

¥

(3) HEMBEIETHERRNUEDS
ERGEE T B YRR FAH
HHEITERTHEARERE €8 %
HomE BEXRR AN =TENSG
o

AEUBCRERREIR  MEERN - BHRE
| RRRE -

(4) KEBREERRN
HHEERAEEREEREANHERS
o

¥

Brown rice

¥

KEK [ZSN SK¥E
Fine rice Ground rice Rice bran

¥

Rick husk
TERI 91
Rick husk ash e

REH SRIBRAD KA SRABAH BHtE SR
Rice protein Rice starch Rice bran oil Rice bran meal Silica Activated carbon Power generation

¥

BRI - 20 B RRRAAE

Lecithin, Furfuryl wax, Polysaccharides, Inositol, Dietary fibre

BRINTEAPRR[INRL 2 —  RRERERPOEAFER - BEERLEER - BOBEEVHN  REERGSFAE -
One of the principles of the recent development plan for the rice processing industry: according to the requirements of building a resource-saving society,
adhering to the circular economy model, reducing waste discharge, and increasing the comprehensive utilization of resources.
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ARRBEREEHEZRFEM

The number of recyclable raw materials purchased is increasing year by year.

AREBERSEEHE (M)
Quantity of recyclable material purchased (tonnes)

80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

2018%F 20195 20205

(5) Palm oil sustainability related certification (5) R A 5 A R R AR

Relevant certifications such as RSPO, ISRO, MSPO, ISCC, etc. At present, 1HEAFEFEHIIN - RSPO ~ ISRO » MSPO »

RSPO certified palm oil is purchased among export products. ISCCE - BAI/MEE R TP B HRERSPOR
AR o
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3. Building a food safety culture

1. Establishment of food safety training system

Staff induction training

In order to provide each new employee with a timely understanding of
fundamental knowledge on food safety, food safety training is organized for
new employees and upon completion of induction training, they have to sign
the “Food Safety Pledge”.

Want Want food safety assessment and training

To enhance the professional knowledge of our staff in food safety, food
safety training is conducted at 31 production sites across the country, and
Want Want food safety questionnaire surverys are conducted for evaluation
and analysis to provide an optimized direction for the subsequent food
safety culture implementation plan. As at the end of the reporting period,
1,654 food safety training sessions were conducted with 84,188 participants
and 4,065.2 training hours.

Posting of food safety articles

In order to create a culture of food safety and to arouse the quality
awareness of all employees, a total of 1,190 food safety articles were
contributed by our production sites across the country, of which 257 articles
were published on selected internal sharing platform.

Want Want food safety promotion month
June is the national food safety promotion month every year and also the
food safety promotion month of Want Want. In response to the national
policy, the Want Want Group has implemented food safety culture activities
within and outside its 31 production sites.

Food Safety Speech Contest

From April to July 2020, the 31 production sites across the country held a
food safety speech contest, allowing employees to tell their personal food
safety stories. 757 participants joined the competition and 12 outstanding
candidates were selected to be the finalists and were awarded the title of
"Food Safety Speakers". All Want Want employees were made aware of
the social responsibilities of food production enterprises and food producers
towards food safety and strengthened their awareness of hygiene.
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2. Establishing an image as a quality role model

The power of role models is used to inspire employees to pay more attention
to quality and further improve the quality of the Group's products. As at the
end of the reporting period, the "Auditor for a Day" activitiy were carried
out 598 times at 31 production sites across the country, cross-checking
activities are conducted from different perspectives and angles with 1,185
people selected by the “Quality Model” competition as the benchmark for
food safety and quality.

3. External food safety culture promotion

In order to assist our customers in regulating and managing their
warehouses, we provide additional free storage optimization services to our
premium customers, arrange on-site guidance from time to time to assist
customers in organizing their warehouses and optimizing their warehouse
layouts. We have now cumulatively served 276 premium customers national
wide. In order to disseminate the relevant national food safety regulations
in a timely manner, we continue to push out relevant tweets and training
videos on food safety science, storage management, and interpretation of
new polices to our customers through our WeChat Public Account.

In 2020, the 31 production sites across the country launched a total of 96
special food safety-related activities. In addition to promoting food safety,
participants will also be able to get involved and gain better understanding
of the importance of food safety.
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4. Quality services

Adhering to the Company’s motto of “Be Caring, Be Attentive and Be
Considerate”, we strive to create a high quality and complete consumption
experience for our consumers and serve them with our sincere and friendly
services in exchange for the satisfaction of every customer.

1) Considerate service

In accordance with the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protection
of Consumer Rights and Interests” and “Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, we attach importance to every customer’s complaints
and have formulated the “Action Procedures for Customers’ Complaints” so
as to ensure the satisfactory resolution of customers’ complaints.

RIFRIERIE
Procedures for complaint handling:

RAIFERR FPIEE

Appointment visit

* 2/NEFA »

within 2 hours

On-site handling
* 2ATIERR

within 2 working days

2) Consumers’ satisfaction

In 2020FY, we maintained a 100% complaint settlement rate. We paid
attention to and concerned about the complaints, enquiries and suggestions
made by the consumers, and through satisfaction feedback, 95% of
consumers were satisfied. The satisfaction rate has been increasing for
3 consecutive years. At the same time, 684 enthusiastic consumers were
invited to participate in the “Grateful to Have You” consumer feedback
activity. According to the survey results of the activity, satisfaction rate
reached 99.5%.

BRA&FEEL
Service types

ER

: . . : 55,918 : 88%
. Enquiries and suggestions : :
7 Y Lo S P L ST
Bk : 7,988 12%
Complaints :
o Y o Y o WP

Want Want has a comprehensive food safety control system covering the
whole industrial chain and has implemented thoroughly the national food
safety strategy. In order to further safeguard food safety, improve service
levels and overall operational efficiency, Want Want develops an online
quality assessment system by making use of the advanced information
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technologies to identify causes of any quality issues and address the
issues in a focused manner, provide early warning signs of risks and
prevent reoccurrence in the future. It can also help to drive management
improvement, providing more in-depth reference and thinking for
technological innovation, legal compliance, cultural construction, etc.

3) Privacy protection

In terms of consumer privacy protection, the Group respects fully
consumers’ rights and interests, and complies strictly with the GB/T 35273-
2017 “Information Security Technology Personal Information Security
Specification”. In accordance with the “Action Procedures for Customers’
complaint” of the Want Want Group, after the relevant information
is recorded into the system, the system will encrypt the consumer’s
information according to the functional authority, so that consumer’s
personal information is managed with a standardized system ensuring
that consumer’s legal rights will not be infringed. Written request has to be
made by relevant department and verified by the headquarters’ internal
auditing department for the protection of consumers’ personal information
during the process of obtaining, storage and using such information. During
the reporting period, there were no complaints regarding infringement of
customers’ right of privacy and loss of customers’ information.
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4) Recall management

In order to protect the rights and interests of consumers, we abide strictly by
the “Food Recall Management Measures” and other laws and regulations,
and establish a standardized simulation traceability system and a complete
recall process. From food safety risk identification and judgement to making
recall announcements, implementing recalls, and improving products in a
timely manner, the Group achieves full process control to ensure product

<:M 2020/2021F ¥ ANNUAL REPORT

System function permission settings

Computer output interface shielding

BEENZILFEA

Prohibition use of mobile media

R S ERREE - AREE  BR
BEERE ) NERHEERA  BRMWA
oOREAS  WEERERHEZRA
HEEMZE -

3) BFLRFE

EHEERILREI A BEX2EBEH
BEER - BIBESTGB/T 35273-2017(15
B 2RMEAGEELZ2EE)  KIBE
HEE(EEFRIEER L) - HERE R
ARGE > RERIBBAER > HHEEE
EEETNERRE M LBEREEE

BAEEEEAREMREL  RERNE
LHBENS EER - HEAEUANBE

FONRACERBERECER - UBR
HEEESWER 1%ﬁ&ﬁ}ﬂiﬂﬁ¢¥1
HEERBALGRNGE - |EHR - &1
@F%%&%&é%@ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ&:ﬁ%?@%

o

A
(EBSEELEN

Information retrieval

RS

Request submission
FELAZ

Purpose of retrieval

EEB

Passing verification

EARR

Personal Extraction

EE MR

Supervised deletion

4) BEEE

3%71%5%%%%*%3‘:&  BAERET(RA
EEPER) SREER  BURAHR

ﬁ?ﬁbﬂﬁ—?%ﬂ?ﬁ MAEBRRE - HEMZ

EHERENEAE  FHEADQE

ERAETHF REXEER  EEHE

REEH REEREE - REEHE



Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited | < B BZ B 1=z B R A Rl
RIE - HERERBE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

quality. The simulation traceability system makes use of ERP database
to monitor the production and sales process of the product, and realizes
two-way traceability of raw materials and finished products. All production
bases in the country simulate the recall once a year, and conducts two-way
simulation traceability from finished products to raw materials and from raw
materials to finished products, twice a year. During the reporting period, the
total traceability time is less than 4 hours, the average traceability time used
is 3.12 hours, and conformity rate is 99.29%. The traceability and the recall
systems of the Group operate well.
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5. Product compliance

The Want Want Group attaches great importance to the maintenance
and management of intellectual property rights. Our Group invests a lot of
manpower and financial resources every year to build up its own golden
signboard, and now owns two well-known trademarks, namely “Want Want”
and “Hot-Kid”, and the trademark “QQ” has been awarded as a famous
trademark in Beijing for many years. The Want Want Group not only
attaches great importance to the maintenance to the protection of its own
intellectual property rights, but also respects the intellectual property rights
of others.
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1) Intellectual property right protection

The Group attaches great importance to the maintenance and management
of intellectual property rights and abides strictly by the laws and regulations
such as the “Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Copyright
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and “Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China”.

At present, the Group owns 2,589 trademarks and 59 patents. The
intellectual property rights department monitors strictly the trademarks that
have been preliminarily reviewed by the Trademark Office every month.
After screening, this department classifies and analyses these trademarks
according to their importance, similarity and impact, and disputes those
trademarks that are critical, highly alike and posing great impact to ours.
This department sorts out the trademarks to be expired and required to pay
annual fee on renewal in the following year and applies promptly for renewal
and makes payment according to the Group’s needs for these trademarks
and patents, to ensure the Group’s intellectual property rights will remain
valid.

The intellectual property rights department supports the brand maintenance
office in carrying out its routine rights protection and fighting against
counterfeiting work, assists in identifying whether there is infringement of
our product, provides complaint materials, participates in on-site work to
fight counterfeiting, and provides full legal support. For major and important
cases and some online infringement cases, the intellectual property
rights department will actively initiate trademark infringement civil claims
procedures, assign and instruct the Group’s local legal advisor or those in
close proximity or engage external lawyers to complete the claiming action
based on where the infringement occurred.

In order to diversify its products and enrich its brand image, the Group has
collaborated with other well-known brands or images in recent years. The
intellectual property rights department is responsible for the authorization
and mandated management of brands and images, assisting in the
development and implementation of cross-border cooperation projects. For
the mandated management in particular, the department reviews vigorously
the continuity and effectiveness of the authorization rights, monitors
carefully the fitness and integrity of the authorization content and the actual
needs of the Group so that the intellectual property rights of others could be
respected while ensuring the legality of self-operations.

The intellectual property right department provides regular trainings for
product managers, digital marketing personnel, e-commerce personnel,
customer service personnel and advertising personnel on basic legal
knowledge, which focuses on intellectual property rights, product labeling,
advertising etc. To enhance their awareness of respecting intellectual
property rights is an important part of the Group’s intellectual property rights
management and the core of enhancing the overall intellectual property
standards of the Group.

2020/20215 R ANNUAL REPORT

1) FERERE
FEEBEERANBERNEENEE
BEET(PEARLXMERBRE) » (P&
ARKMBAZERZE) - (FEARANE
ERE) EREER -

BAT - RERPEAEEEER2,5891 ;
EF59¢F o MBEEIFIE A HHER
ENENEARETRRNER  HERE
REENEERE  [LEE $EEE
DELH - BETEE AUES &
ANERETESR - SEARERNIIS
FHT - FEEREIHNBENTHF
BENENETHRE  RESEHELHER
MEFNFTR - RERFERTIHE - U
BEAKENEERNEMLEEN -

AREESBRERMEERENATE
BITBRIAE  BHHERNEERES -
RERSGFME - SERBESITRIFS =
HEREEXE - #HUARRBERRIBIH
RERERNG  NBERRESEIHRER
BERERBREEF  REEETARE
M B FEIRLIEEE M H TR ER R
ZACINEBREN TR RRRATE ©

HEEERFEEEREZ T  MEER
2F  OFR MRESMEMNER
RHERETEE - HHERBEERME
RESHRERKEEEE  HUHERS
1FIE B MBI R B I - 1S RIS R IRAERD
7 BREBEERERANEENEREX
o BEEERERNRESEERERN
BEMKRTEM  EEMANBERRR
REBBIRENEE -

AREESSFEPAEREEA  8F
EIHAE - EBAE - ERAE - EEA
EEETEMERENBNEI  ERER
HHERE EmER BEEEEZHH
BMEEEARE  WRHEENREREN
FHEREIREREENEE-R =
RASERREARERNKENZD



Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited | < B BZ B 1=z B R A Rl

The intellectual property rights department has joined the Oriental
Intellectual Property Club (OIPC) for seven consecutive years. The Club is
composed mainly of university professors; corporate intellectual property
rights managers, lawyers and other personnel. It regularly organizes
interactive activities such as conferences, trainings, salons etc. The
intellectual property rights department sends staff to participate in the Club
activities, learn and discuss about front-line issues of the industry, analyze
and study recent typical cases, and consult for solving the Group’s practical
problems. To pay respect is the cornerstone for intellectual property rights
protection and continuous learning provides nutrient for the operation of
intellectual property rights.

Each year, the Group provides regular training to relevant internal staff on
fundamental legal knowledge on intellectual property rights, product labeling
and advertising to enhance their awareness of respecting intellectual
property rights and improve the standard of the overall intellectual property
rights of the Group.

2) Advertisement and label management

We abide strictly by the “Food Safety Law of the People's Republic of
China”, “Regulations on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, GB 7718 “General Rules for Prepackaged
Food Labels” and GB 28050 “General Rules for Prepackaged Food Nutrition
Labels”, “Administrative Provisions on Food Labeling” and other relevant
regulations and standards. We review in a responsible manner all labels in
strict compliance with the process of the regulatory review method to ensure
the design of the product label is in compliance with the requirements of
national labelling regulations and to protect the consumers’ rights to know
and to choose.
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The Group’s product packaging, promotional materials, website information,
and commercials are subject to the review of the intellectual property
rights department before coming into the market or being released. The
Intellectual Property Department conducts a comprehensive review of the
Group's products and marketing practices in accordance with the “Trademark
Law”, the “Copyright Law”, the “Patent Law”, the “Advertising Law”, the
“Anti-Unfair Competition Law” and the General Rules for Prepackaged
Food Labels to ensure the legal compliance of the Group’s products and
marketing practices. Whenever there is a launching of new products, the
name and design of the new products must be reviewed by the Intellectual
Property Department at the design stage to check for any prior registration
of others, so as to eliminate the risk of infringement of intellectual property
rights or other rights of other parties by the Group’s new products as far as
possible, thus protecting the safety and legality of its launch.

3) Training in the knowledge of laws and regulations

Every year, the Regulatory Department regularly provides propaganda and
implementation of legal knowledge as well as training to our raw material
suppliers, R&D staff, product planners, quality assurance staff, production
staff, and distributor customers, with the aim of improving the level of
knowledge of laws and regulations of our staff along the entire chain and
ensuring the compliance of our products. During the reporting period, nearly
500 training sessions were organized for more than 50,000 person.

SENEREE EEXE - #UEE
BERSRETHBMAMFEB AR
EREINFNEL  NBEEIRRE(BE
E) - (BEEE) - (BRDE) ~ (BE
E)  ARTEEHFR) - (REBERRE
BEA)SEZEAUHETZENES
DREBEENERREHETRAEAR -
@FL%lﬁ%ﬁu%J:?ﬁ%@‘ﬁ HMmlmaER
SNBRETER RN “H%EQEE%D“&F*E:.BE
AER  REFEMAELEER
%‘FI@%%ﬁu?uf%élﬂ’@k%ﬂ%ﬁé%ﬁﬁ{m%
AR UREEETHEENZ2 &
e

3)ERMEE I
ERBEFENR RN HERRA - B
BABE EmMEIAE  mRAE - 4E

B KHEBEFSETERABEEMN
£l ‘é”fﬂ%ﬂ-éﬁéﬂ%ké}i%ﬁ%ﬂi&*
FoREMNERMEREEM - ARE
A HABSEZIF5000% EESE%
AR e

BREEZX ZEE|ER BRREZ BRREEZ
Food Safety Law Labeling Law Food Safety Law Food Safety Law
FRIEERE BAEERMEAERE RREER BERRREZEREFE

Raw material production
specifications

Formulation compliance
determination principles

Food production
specifications

BREREERRE B REHER
Agricultural Products Quality Production and operation
Safety Law licensing regulations

+

B R E R BN RE

National food safety
regulations

AR BREEE
Labellng Law Food Safety Law

Rm&EERE RMEERE
Food operation Food operation
specifications specifications

RE*

Advertisement Law

New national laws and regulations

Il. Mutual Growth — Creating Happiness

The Group adheres to the management philosophy of “People-Oriented,
Self-Confidence and Unity”, and is associated with every fellow enthusiast.
We strive to build a “family” atmosphere, and work together with each Want
Want employee in the spirit of “Unity”.
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1. Safety and health

We abide strictly by the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Safe
Production”, “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases” and “Measures for the Administration of
Contingency Plans for Work Safety Incidents” and other national laws and
regulations to ensure the steady implementation of safe production and
occupational disease prevention.

The Group abides strictly by the “Safe Production Law” and relevant safety
laws and regulations, adheres to the safe production policy of “safety
first, prevention is driven, comprehensive governance”, insist on people-
oriented and implements fully the safety standardization construction. At
present, except for some factories which have not implemented the safety
standardization due to relevant location policy reasons, all other factories
have reached the production safety standardization (class C) and organized
with regular reviews, of which factories in Beijing, Shijiazhuang, and Qihe
reach Class B safety standardization level.

The Group carries out quarterly projects every year, of which the theme
of the safety project in the second quarter of 2020 was “Establishing
hierarchical management of risk”, which is to establish Want Want Group’s
dual system of risk control and risk identification and management.

The project with the theme of “Safety Production during Peak Season” is a
compulsory project carried out by the Group during the peak season in the
fourth quarter of each year. During the peak season, safety management
revolves around safety training, hidden dangers inspection, and emergency
drills to ensure safe production during peak season.

In 2020, based on the national “Occupational Disease Prevention Law”
and other national regulations and decrees, the Group took 1SO45001
occupational health and safety system as a reference, and regulated its
factories to standardize gradually on-site occupational health management.
The factories carried out occupational hazard factor detection and status
assessment work in accordance with the law, strived to improve the on-
site occupational health environment, optimized the process and improved
equipment to reduce noise; warning signs which were posted in areas of
hazardous positions following the national occupational hazard notification
standard, and factors leading to occupational hazards were included in the
identification and control of workshop safety maps. In addition, occupational
health education and training are implemented continually. According to the
Group's “Management Measures on Personal Labor Protection Products
Standard Configuration", we provide employees with suitable protective
equipment; arrange regularly employees who are exposed to occupational
hazards to undergo occupational health examinations, and occupational
health files and accounts are being put up gradually and comprehensively
for each factory to ensure the occupational health of all employees.

Production bases in Shenyang and Guangzhou introduced the 1SO45001
occupational health and safety management system in 2020. The Shenyang
production base was certified by the end of 2020 and the Guangzhou
production base is expected to be certified in June 2021.
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2. Protection of employee rights

1) Employee salary

The remuneration system is based on the actual situation of the Group
taking into account systematic, comprehensive, and scientific consideration
of various factors, and is subject to revision and adjustment promptly. We
also follow the principles of distribution according to work with efficiency as
a priority, fairness, and sustainable development as principles and making
full use of the incentive and guiding functions of remuneration.

Internal fairness

According to the responsibilities undertaken, the level of expertise required,
and the different nature of the job requirements, the salary level would
reasonably reflect the differences in value creation for the Group in terms of
job position and grading.

External competitiveness
Maintaining the competitiveness of the Company's remunerations and
welfare benefits in the industry can attract high caliber people to join us.

Relevance of performance

The performance of the team and individuals are closely linked to their
remuneration, ensuring the remuneration and performance system
contributes to the achievement of the team and company objectives.

Incentives

In addition to a fixed salary, specific positions are rewarded with
performance bonuses to motivate individual performance. In order to actively
respond to the national food safety requirements, protect the rights of all
consumers and ensure the quality of the Group’s products, the Want Want
Group has set up the Quality and Safety Bonus as incentive for production
staff.

2) Attendance and holidays

The Group has established an attendance management system applicable
to its internal operation in strict compliance with the national laws and
regulations. The system stipulates the rights to the holiday of all employees
and the attendance system that must be followed. In addition to statutory
leave, the March 8th Women's Day, and May 4th Youth Day, an additional
two to five days of annual leave are granted to employees according to their
position.

The Company advocates the completion of work tasks within working hours,
and always reminds employees to pay attention to personal health and
safety, work and life balance while ensuring work progress and efficiency.
At the same time, work efficiency can be raised through the reasonable
allocation of working time. If it is impossible to complete the work task
within the scheduled time, and it is necessary to extend working hours
through weekdays and rest days, the supervisor shall review the situation
and arrange for overtime work according to the actual situation and
compensation time off will be arranged. If compensation time off cannot be
arranged, overtime payment shall be made according to law.
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The Company has kept pace with the times and is constantly optimizing its

attendance management method:

Flexibility: To cope better with contingencies, the attendance method has
been made more flexible so that the employees may apply for remote work

on special occasions.

Convenience: To enhance the use of mobile devices, employees may
submit applications at any time, thus improving the convenience of

attendance management.

Automation: To enhance operational efficiency and staff experience, the
Group has progressively implemented automated operations and process
management for attendance applications and management.

3) Employee benefits and care

The Group always adheres to the people-oriented principle and cares
about the work and life of employees. In order to enhance the welfare
management of the Group and ensure that employees enjoy corresponding
benefits, the Group has set up various festival welfare (including Spring
Festival, Women’s Day, Labour Day, National Day), start-up red packets,
wedding gifts, funeral consolation money, new-born welfare, seniority
commemoration, honorary retirement commemoration, and employees
commercial insurance, and other welfare benefits.
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4) Recruitment

The Company has a well-established management system for recruitment.
Upon request by the department in need of the additional manpower, the
Company will verify and post the relevant employment information on its
internal procedures and social media for recruitment.

Employment principle: The Company does not allow any discrimination (such
as sex discrimination, disability discrimination, etc.) on employment, and
stands against engaging any child under the age of 16 in strict accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations such as the “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and “Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. The Group adheres to the fair employment principle
and allows no discrimination on grounds of age, gender, nationality, race,
religion, etc. All employed staff is recruited voluntarily and forced labor is
strictly prohibited. The Group follows strictly the guidelines of the Food
Safety Law which requires practitioners to provide qualification certificates
for relevant positions.

As at 31 March 2021, the number of employees of the Group in Mainland
China was 39,132.

EEEEFRD M
Age distribution

SEESMED M

Gender distribution

©® 26-45 FAE
26-45 years old

® 18-25 mAH
18-25 years old

® MA@ LHAH

Male Female

46 B E A

Over 46 years of age
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5) Resignation of employment

The Group complies strictly with the “Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. In the process of the termination of an employment
contract, following the principles of legality, fairness, equality, voluntariness,
consensus, honesty, and credibility, the Group would clarify the rights and
obligations of both parties to the employment contract. The legitimate rights
and interests of employees are protected and harmonious and stable labor
relations can be built and developed.

In order to increase the retention rate of talents, after receiving a resignation
application, the Group’s personnel staff will proactively and actively interview
the employee concerned. An employee with outstanding performance
will be counseled for retention. The real cause of resignation, the major
incident leading to such decision, comments of the resigning staff on the
management culture of the Company, working environment and internal
interpersonal relationship will be examined and constructive suggestions for
improvement on the departmental or Company level, as well as future work
proposal for the position concerned will be invited to share. Such comments
and suggestions of the resigning staff in the exit survey will be compiled
for future reference in improving the satisfaction and sense of belonging of
existing employees.

3. Training and development

The Group advocates a notion of competition that encourages life-long
learning. The Group’s sustained growth has always been closely related
to the fulfillment of individual values and career development of every
Want Want employee. We endeavor to provide learning and development
platforms with well-designed year-round training programs for our
employees so as to achieve mutual growth and development of the Group
and employees.

1) Performance assessment and promotion

The Group has always attached importance to talent development and
cultivation. In order to nurture talents at all levels, the Group has set up a
dual-track system for promotion. This includes two promotion channels, one
for management and one for others (sales/technicians), enabling excellent
employees to choose their own directions of career development paths
according to their expertise, interest, and experience. In addition, through a
comprehensive training system, the Group assists employees to get trained
on expertise relevant to their positions and to achieve their promotion goals.

2020/20214 3 ANNUAL REPORT

5) & TRERL

SEBRBRRBEBDERE  EREKREHE
BT  BESE - 2F - FYEEE -
BE—B - BEEANERER  BEEHE
BEHTESANENNERY  RESHE
VEEER  BENBRENBERENS

BAE -

REBATHNERR  EEASHEEIH
BETHWEBBAFE  BEEIHNEZD
BRETEHK HENEFHNEIETR
S UHENBEBNEERRE - S
BNEIREMH BREIOEBEBETHAT
EREEXHNFHE HRARNIFRE
LR ABMARBERNEE  HHRENRM
FAREEFERENBTRESEL
BE BBRUAEUREIERAN
2R USREESBBASSERALTH
B UERAEBEIHEBENREER
PR o

3 BIIRER
AEBRBREEIHUKFIERTNHF
B 8- UHEASBABENERK
BERRBADEESENFTERRD -
BEMBUABIREFESEIGFE &K
NRHBBRRBRY G EHTEFBE
ETRARAEE-EBRRIOAT °

1) E%REFH
AEBBERERATBREEE  BIEE
BEBRHMAT  NEBHEETEDHEA
Bl BESAFEEABERIEEE (B
B ENBHEE  FEFNEITAR
BEANEE @ @ LREEFIREH
ERRENWHE AEEZEBBTEMNEZI
BRAEHYEIZHESERUNEENE
&R LUERBHERZE



J* 5 B2 BE $52 A3 H PR /A 7] | Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited

RE - HERERERE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

LyTEEE
Dual-track system for promotion

(REER)

(Administrative system)

B R/AAKE
Managing director/General manager

EEREAEE FEEREEBEE

Promotion channel for others

Promotion channel for management - S
BR/EIBER/EIBLE
Director/Deputy managing director/
Deputy géneral manager

ElE R/ Rl BYIE
Deputy director/Assistant general manager Special assistant

L) L )

pcs:: BRES/ERTIZM
Manager Senior specialist/Senior engineer
I

2 ) -
Interconnection

Bl
Deputy manager “

)

HE/T2R
Specialist/Engineer

ARERE B 8/E T2

Section supervisor/Deputy section supervisor Associate specialist /Associate engineer

L) L)

EEEIEE BRERE/ESRRME

Supervisor/Deputy supervisor Senior officer/Senior technician

HEEST
Junior employees
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(EERER)

(Production organisation)

(EBER)

(Sales organisation)
EERBE

Promotion channel for
managerial personnel

BR SRTIZED RS
Factory director Senior engineer Director
BIF& Ti2AM
Vice factory director Engineer

BEE
‘ Interconnection

-« BT
Associate engineer

HATREE
Promotion channel
for technicians

EEREE
Promotion channel for
managerial personnel

FEEREE
Promotion channel for
non-managerial personnel

SREE
Senior specialist

»l

Elbudpg:] 55
Deputy manager/manager Specialist

5@
‘ Interconnection ‘
_— BIsA
Associate specialist

ERRARAR

EERR

Production supervisor Deputy section supervisor/

ection supervisor
23

BlEE/EE
Deputy supervisor/supervisor

BERMAER
Vice team leader/

BEEE
Workshop director

BRRME

BREBIEBEE

Senior officer/salesman

|.

Senior technician

RAREATE
Middle-level technician

BHEER
Workshop leader

TREWIEBE

Intermediate officer/
team leader |

salesman

BHEIR
Team leader

B &
Technician
HEST
Junior employees

2) Staff training

The Group combines the strategic needs of its development with talent
planning in the provision of training to its staff, with the focus being placed
on the requirements of different levels and positions. In 2020, the average
training time per employee was 45 hours.

l.,

To facilitate the growth of new recruits and at the same time care for
the employees and enhance their sense of happiness, regular training
is conducted covering induction training, open courses, and training for
business expansion.

To build a pool of highly talented individuals for the key positions of the
Group, a management training and reserve cadre training project was
launched. At the same time, various levels of reserve management training
were carried out for the promotion ladder: in the marketing system, training is
provided to junior, and mid-and-high level supervisors, while at the Group’s
Head Office, JMT growth acceleration class, MMT excellence training class
and Want Want « Tetra Pak MBA class are organized for junior supervisors,
mid-level supervisors, and senior supervisors respectively. In 2020, all these
course structures were optimized.
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In order to build a group of lecturers and cultivate outstanding teachers for
staff training, a special internal training team was established. As of March
2021, there were 863 internal lecturers.

On-the-job training of professional skills carried out by various units is
mainly performed by combining internal training and outsourced training.

4. Clean governance

The Group has always attached great importance to integrity and self-
discipline of employees, business partners, and stakeholders, and abided
strictly by the “Criminal Law of the People's Republic of China”, the
“Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery”, the “Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China” and other applicable
laws and regulations.

Work and business ethics have always been the most fundamental
requirements for our employees and business partners. The Group
has been committed to the building of anti-corruption and anti-fraud
mechanisms, adopting a “zero tolerance” attitude towards any violation of
work and business ethics, and conducting a special audit in areas at a high
risk of exposure to corruption and fraud. The Group carried out promotion
and education about anti-corruption and anti-fraud continuously by making
relevant videos, publishing articles on internal publications and media,
advocating probity of our clients through WeChat, and preparing case
studies for special publicity.

1. To establish an anti-corruption and anti-fraud inspection system;

2. To require staff and business partners not to breach the relevant
integrity rules;

3. To promote a culture of integrity and to raise the awareness of self-
discipline among staff.

The Group requires all staff to sign the “Agreement on Code of Ethics,
Duty of Confidentiality and Resolving Conflict of Interest” to regulate the
requirements for avoiding and reporting on conflict of business interest.
Procurement personnel is required to sign the “Incorruptible Self-Discipline
Promise” and business personnel is required to sign the “Code of Ethics for
Business Systems” to prohibit corrupt practices.

The Group has set up fair and clean transaction requirements with our
suppliers, e.g. raw material suppliers are required to sign the “Undertaking
of Anti-Commercial Bribery” and the “Statement of Integrity” while transport
carriers are required to sign the “Anit-Commercial Bribery Provisions”.

The Group requires clients to sign a code of incorruptible conduct. We
set forth the "Anti-unfair Competition Clause" in the “Product Distribution
Contract” signed with clients and distributors and send letters of notice to
state our stance against corruption and fraud from time to time.
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The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism, set up a hotline
and mailbox to encourage staff, customers, and suppliers to report improper
conduct involving corruption and fraud. Reported cases are investigated and
verified by our internal audit team independently. Necessary confidentiality
measures are taken to protect the reporter or related personnel involved
in the investigation from any form of harassment. Where a violation of the
relevant regulations is verified, punishment would be imposed with reference
to the provisions of the “Human Resources Reward and Punishment
System” until legal liability is pursued. The Group has also set up a reward
system for real name whistle-blowing by our staff and offers different levels
of rewards according to the investigation result of such report.

3. Green Development — Pursuing Harmonious

Coexistence with the Society and Nature

Environmental and social responsibilities are an integral part of job duties
assumed by our staff. Upholding the people-oriented notion and guided by
consumers demands, while satisfying our consumers with delicious food, we
replaced traditional production technologies and non-environmental friendly
materials with greener and more environmental-friendly ones, extending the
concept of green, environmentally friendly, and sustainable development to
each product item and each package of our products of the Group.

1. Environmental protection and emission reduction

In strict compliance with the “Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”
and other applicable laws and regulations, the Group has formulated a
series of systems and procedures to regulate environmental protection
measures of the Group, including “Procedures for Boiler Operation in the
Production process”, “Boiler Steam Management” and “Measures in the
Production Process for Administration of Sewage Plant”. In order to ensure
the full implementation of the relevant systems, we have formulated the “Audit
Manual for Work System” and the “Project Manual for Energy Conservation
and Waste Reduction” to set out specifically the operation requirements
of relevant systems in a feasible manner. In 2020, RMB13.10 million was
devoted to upgrading environmental protection. All emission indexes meet
national standard requirements.
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1) Waste gas and waste water

Through progressively improved technologies and enhancement of onsite
management of the sewage treatment plant, Want Want ensures that the
discharge of wastewater and gas meets the required standards and the
emission of pollutants is reduced. With respect to the operation of the
sewage treatment plant, we have formulated the “Management Measures
for Sewage Treatment Plants”, our internal monitoring standards, to ensure
the operators perform on-site operations strictly in accordance with the
standards, and the discharge of treated wastewater meets national or local
standards. We have established a system for the collection of emission data
and priority is given to improving key items. During the reporting period, the
amount of wastewater discharge was reduced by 381,900 tonnes as a result
of production water process optimization.

BREPNEBREELRINE

Total emission generated in the reporting period

In respect of the operation of the boiler equipment, we have formulated our
internal monitoring standards such as “Gas Boiler Operation Standards",
“Boiler Water Treatment Operation Standards” and “Boiler Room Machine
Equipment Inspection and Maintenance Standards” to ensure that operators
perform on-site operations in strict accordance with the standards and that
the boiler is under normal operation or the discharge of waste gas meets
national and local standards. During the reporting period, 11.3 tonnes of
NOx emissions were reduced through the addition of new low-NOx boilers
and refurbishment.

2) Greenhouse gases

In order to address the global climate risk and to achieve the country’s
long-term goal of “carbon peak” and “carbon neutrality”, the factories of the
Group have set a target of reducing greenhouse gas emissions density by
13% by 2025 in accordance with the ESG Committee’s long-term goal of
“significantly reducing greenhouse gas emissions”. During the reporting
period, the manufacturing operation implemented energy-saving measures
(see Energy-saving Management) to directly reduce carbon emissions by
24,000 tonnes, reduce carbon emissions by 145,000 tonnes cumulatively.

BRER

Use of resources

2020871 %
2020FY

BESREHN (W)

Greenhouse gas emission (tonne)

BHRZE (M BETARE)
Emission intensity (tonne per million RMB of
output value)
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Since the commencement of operation of the photovoltaic power generation
project in 2016, all equipment has been running normally with steady power
generation. During the reporting period, the actual power generation of such
a project was 14.90 million kWh with a reduction of approximately 11,825
tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions.

The Group continued to promote photovoltaic projects and build solar
power facilities. On 20 March 2020, the Group’s Zhejiang Plant was in
grid-connected operation with a total installed capacity of 10.2MW and
power generation of 10.1691 million kWh of electricity per year. On 26
November 2020, the Nanjing Plant was in grid-connected operation with a
total installed capacity of 1.6MW and power generation of 483,100 kWh of
electricity per year, achieving an annual carbon reduction of 11,825 tonnes
and coal reduction of 902.3 tonnes. In the future, the Group will continue to
promote the construction of the photovoltaic project. From 2021 to 2025, 10
new photovoltaic projects are expected to be added. By 2025, it is expected
that the total installed capacity of photovoltaic will be 50MW, with power
generation of 49.59 million kWh of electricity per year, achieving carbon
reduction of 39,269 tonnes, equivalent to 379,000 trees, with photovoltaic
accounting for 14% of its electricity generation.

3) Non-hazardous waste

In order to achieve the goal of “zero disposal to landfills” for non-hazardous
waste, the Group started in 2019 to use the production bases in Zhejiang
and Anging as pilot factories for recycling, disposal and reuse of Tetra Pak
paper packaging waste products by Hangzhou Fulun Ecological Technology
Co., Ltd, and subsequently expanded the number of pilot factories based on
the cooperation between the pilot production bases.
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The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group is mainly classified into
metal, plastic, paper, food, other, and machinery categories. All the above-
mentioned wastes have been established with sound internal management
and control mechanisms such as the “Waste Management Regulations”
to ensure that all kinds of wastes are handled in accordance with the
regulations. Want Want is committed to reducing the generation of waste
at source, recycling fully the wastes at source and reducing the generation
of solid wastes. Meanwhile, the recycled solid wastes are sorted and
processed to turn waste into useful materials. In addition, we take effective
means of waste disposal for recycled products to ensure that they are not
re-entered into the market for sale.

BEBRNER

Non-hazardous waste index 2018FY

2018815
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4) Hazardous waste

In 2020FY, the Group’s factories generated 505 tonnes of hazardous
waste, an increase of 89 tonnes from that of 2019FY. The increase was
mainly due to the disposal of approximately 59 tonnes of scrapping of forklift
batteries, and increased collection of hazardous waste from the Group’s
factories. Such hazardous waste was collected in strict compliance with the
regulations.

BEBREMER

Hazardous waste index 2018FY
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The main measures for hazardous waste reduction include:

1) The factory continues to optimize the production process, and reduce
the use of related organic solvents, glue, ink, paint, etc.;

2) Centralized production, reducing downtime, and use of related organic
solvents;

3) The packaging material production plant uses large-sized packaging
containers (glue etc.) for repeated use, reducing the generation of
hazardous waste products such as glue buckets.

The factory complies strictly with the “Law on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Hazardous Waste Transfer Management Measures”, “Directory of
National Hazardous Waste 2021” and other regulations which require for
the hazardous waste to be identified and recorded in the ledger for unified
collection. The hazardous wastes of the factory so generated are disposed
of by means of recycling by the relevant factory and disposal by third parties
(units with qualifications for hazardous waste management) to ensure
that the Group’s hazardous waste disposal complies with national laws
and regulations. Due to local objective conditions (the disposal units are
without relevant qualifications), hazardous wastes that cannot be disposed
of are temporarily stored in the factory. The factory's environmental safety
department will search for other operating units with hazardous waste
disposal qualifications for legal disposal in accordance with national
regulations and local environmental protection requirements. In 2020FY,
the disposal volume of hazardous waste at the Group’s plants increased by
approximately 196 tonnes as compared with that of 2019FY.

2. Resources conservation

The Group introduced the WCM management concept and incorporated the
best practices formed into our standard management system (WSM) with
Want Want characteristics to continuously optimize the impact of production
activities on the environment. Through analysis of raw and ancillary material
inputs and outputs, steamlining, measuring and tracing of energy sources,
checking of energy consumption points and combining technological
innovation, our production process and efficiency of water and energy use
have been improved significantly. During the reporting period, the Quzhou
factory has been certified with the World Class Award TPM — Excellence
Award, the Guangzhou factory has been certified with the AWS Golden
Level, and 76 technological innovations have been granted patents by the
State Intellectual Property Office.

1) Energy conservation management

Want Want attach great importance to energy conservation management
and have formulated management systems including the “Administrative
Measures of the Group for Energy Conservation” and “Guidelines for
Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction in Production Bases” to
identify elements of energy management and areas for improvement, as
well as to implement targeted improvements. After analysis and optimization
of energy-intensive equipment, we established energy-saving operation
standards for equipment that consumes the most energy, such as “Energy
Saving Operation Standards for Water Chillers of the Group” and “Energy
Saving Operation Standards for Air Compressors of the Group”. We also
improved the operation procedures and set up standards of startup and
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shutdown of equipment in line with their capacity and production schedule. BERRIEF5.2% » SIBEI R EESER
Direct energy consumption efficiency in production increased by 22.3% as MBEERERRE -

compared with 2015, achieving 150% of the target. During the reporting

period, energy efficiency increased by 5.2%, with three energy-saving

measures granted patents by the State Intellectual Property Office.

ERER 2020844 2019814 2018814
Use of resources 2020FY FY 2018FY

323,946

RARR (KEE)

962,700  : 1,121,059
Natural gas (MWh) :
#Z5 CREE)
A 361,812 . 355,219
Steam (MWh) :
ab = (K + .
REFERE (JRFLHF) :
1,648,457 . 1,833,691
Total (MWh) 6 :
HREE CKEM/AESTARS) 640 opor
Energy intensity (MWh per million RMB of output value) : '
Target of 10% reduction in energy density during the next five years, 2021-2025 2021-2025%F K KB FEEFEZE H1ETHE10%
The Group has improved the measurement equipment facilities, established SEREERERE > BYRREZEH
an energy management and control center, and regularly analyzed and o EBMOMREBACESRREDETEHR
optimized the dynamic balance and consumption among various levels FEREEN  BREFRSMER -

rationally to achieve efficient use of energy.

We evaluate the energy pipeline network, prioritize the use of energy-saving FEERESRME  BAFERERAY
components, and optimize the process parameters so as to reduce the loss BLBRSE  HPOWEBEER -
of energy during the transportation process.

Energy maps are used to identify high energy-consuming areas and FIAgERE > BASeEEESE - EITEH
exploration of further room for saving energy. We also perform standardized REREEBIE UEEtCEERSEREOE
management and aim for horizontal promotion of our energy-saving efforts =

across the Group.

During the reporting period, we continued to upgrade key energy-intensive WMEHR > BMFEE(CERFERRE
equipment, promoted energy-saving projects and solar photovoltaic power HEHREIGEIER » FEEEARBGRERR
generation, and optimized energy utilization structure. We have also set BE BULERFEREE LERKREF
energy intensity targets for the next five years to further deepen our energy- RERREE B RE—DRILEREHAR -
saving achievements.

1) To promote KAI's benchmarking of factory standards and establish a 1) ERKAIREREIBEEREE B2

mentoring team of engineers for project improvement; ITEMBEEEBETERNE
2) To implement the energy assessment responsibility system, sign 2) EEFREREES BT ETEMRR
the responsibility achievement guarantee, and review the energy #E BRRFERERER

achievement status on a monthly basis;
3) To group together new technologies and energy-saving processes 3) ERTENEMIEBEIE  E5ES

in the industry, combining excellent QCC cases and improvement QCCERRENERNEF2F#Mm—
proposals published once every 2 years; /N

4) To strengthen staff training, improve their professional skills and 4) MBAEEI - B AEEERE B
cultivate a professional energy-saving technical team. EEEMBRMER o
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2) Water resource management

For water sustainability, Want Want has
established the Group's water sustainability
strategy - "Sustainable Water Management",
which is in line with the 2030 sustainable C >
development goals of the UN-Water :

2)KERERE
MREEKAFERR AR EEREEL
KA R R AR R [AISEKER]
WEEH S F2030F A/ FERRE B E-kE
JR (SDG-6) » WM EEKEEEME o

Resources (SDG-6).

1)

ALLIANCE FOR
WATER STEWARDSHIP

I . - ASIA-PACIFIC
To significantly improve water efficiency,

the Group has combined world-class manufacturing management
concepts, systematically sorted out the distribution of water pipelines,
analyzed water balance, and formulated water management systems to
ensure that each water point follows the best water use principles. Since
2015, the Group's production water efficiency has been improved by
21%, achieving the target of 262%, with cumulative water saving of 1.97
million tonnes and 6 innovative water-saving projects obtained licensed
patents from the National Intellectual Property Administration. In the
next 5 years, the Group will continue to improve its production water
efficiency by at least 10%, and its water management performance will
reach and surpass the world's advanced level.

For water pollution control, the Group is committed to reducing the use
and discharge of hazardous chemicals. For example, manual cleaning
of old production lines has been replaced by automatic cleaning with
set quantity, and the existing CIP cleaning process has been optimized.
At the same time, all of its factories are equipped with industry-leading
sewage treatment systems, with the sewage treatment rate reaching
100%, which is nearly 1.3 times above the national primary standard.

Integrated management for water resources: In addition to strengthening
its own water management and sewage treatment, the Group also
actively participates in and advocates water conservation and water
quality improvement in river basins, and gradually promotes water
conservation among suppliers and leads stakeholders to implement
shared governance in river basins. The Group joined AWS in 2020
for the promotion of AWS certification. In January 2021, the first batch
of factories were awarded with the "Gold-level" of AWS certification,
indicating that the Group's water management had reached the official
recognition of international advanced sites.

1) RERSAKME  SEESHRRR

2)

3)

AWS[ZE K IRHE -
EDFEBR S ESU N E TR o

EERES  REMBKNERSH
DHAKFE - FIERKERGE
BARSERKBEINRERAKERL -
H20155 LUK - SELEEAKARERE
R’A21% » BIRERN262% @ RFTEIK
1978 W - 6IEEIKAI¥I1R B SR X
HBRERRERNRE - REEFR - &
B ERKRERDERAZD10% » K
EIREMSEE W B R ENKF o

XHTHRRHE - KRB Bk
BmERARER - M EEERETF
TIEARBBBEERFN - BBCIPE
REELSE - B ETHAEIRS
BB TTRBALNTRERRL - 5K
FRIEZREF100% @ FFKBERBRBER
—ARRAEIT1.318 ©

KEFNGEER SERTRIEBES
AKEBRFARIE - BREBRENE
EREEKFMKENRS » WiRL S
FErSE K & S| B R ABRE T B E
A o EE N 2020F IHAAWS - W HEE)

RE2021F1 A EH I HESR
REEBKEE
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2020B1 FE&EEH
8149 A K

Save of water used (tonne)

EmE
Product Categories

RERER

34,000@;@ o ....... c +; ...... 0

BEHR e acKers
by the Group during the . R
reporting period in 2020FY Milk-containing
; beverages
R o RPN ek ST
: A
. =N~
. Add up .
cee .o .................... .o.

BEREA

Use of resources

2018815 | 20198i% | 2020814
2018FY 2019FY 2020FY
312 ¢ 289 290

(tonne water/tonne product)

FAKSRE (WEZK/MEE M)
Water consumption intensity

6.29 3890 379
.......... .o.o.o.
3.1 290 287
.......... o o R RRERE o
3.53 308 303
.......... O vrerreeeeBeveeennnnd

9,379,828

K (mE)
Water (tonne)
BE

In the future, the Group will continue to improve the use of water resources,
optimize the water resources management system and set water density
goals for the next five years.

1) Continuously implement the management of the discrepancy rate of
the general tap water meter, and strictly investigate with the cases of
leakage to reduce loss of water;

2) Implement the energy assessment responsibility system, sign
the responsibility achievement guarantee, and review the energy
achievement every month;

3) Improve the efficiency of water purification equipment, reduce water
waste, and check the water purification report of each factory every
month;

4) Strengthen personnel training, improve their professional skills, and
cultivate a professional energy-saving technology team;

5) Join the Water Alliance Association to learn and introduce advanced
water-saving technologies from outside.

3) Green packaging

Plastic waste has become the biggest sustainability issue facing the world
today. Want Want is committed to working with its supply chain partners
to reduce plastic waste (non-recyclable) and gradually achieve 100%
recyclable packaging materials. To achieve this goal, Want Want is actively
developing the application and upgrading of recyclable packaging materials
for new and old products and actively implementing packaging material
reduction plans, such as using lighter cans and packaging optimization
without undermining the product quality. At the same time, the Group
has selected the FSC Tetra Pak packaging materials from the renewable
forests as the primary choice for packaging materials(Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) certification). During the reporting period, the total production

2020/2021F % ANNUAL REPORT
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2018815 2019815 2020815
2018FY 2019FY 2020FY
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output was 1,780,000 tonnes and the total usage of packaging materials
was 256,000 tonnes, of which recyclable packaging materials accounted
for approximately 65% and packaging material units accounted for 14.4%,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.2% of packaging material units.

BEMEHER

Packaging material indicator

BAMELEK65% @ BT EMIEE14.4% - &
MEMIEERLE T F#3.2% °

BMEE (BM)

Total volume of waste package materials (10,000 tonnes)

BEEEMIHEY%
Recovery rate of harmless waste%

4) Green procurement

The Group is committed to promoting green development of supply chains.
In active response to the call for building a conservation-minded society, we
select suppliers who are committed to promoting sustainable development
as our preferred suppliers, and at the same time, we have strict record
requirements in the procurement of raw materials, order inspection, process
use, storage and logistics, branch offices, and even distribution, to ensure
100% traceability of raw materials use. In order to reduce the damage
to forests caused by the use of raw materials, the Group has gradually
increased the proportion of certified forest palm oil. In 2020FY, 48 tonnes
of palm oil were RSPO certified, accounting for 0.18% of the Group's palm
oil consumption. The Group also collaborates with key suppliers to promote
forest protection projects.

3. Ecological protection

The Group’s preliminary planning includes multi-directional assessments on
the environment of the industrial land and pursuant to related regulations.
The selected production bases are located in the areas permitted by the
local government. Pollution control measures are formulated to ensure that
the local environmental capacity is not exceeded and the biodiversity is not
sabotaged and to avoid effects on the local biodiversity environment as
much as possible. For the production and operation process, all the Group’s
factories are equipped with pollutant discharge treatment devices to ensure
that pollutants are properly handled to fulfil national and local regulations.
Regarding the Group’s investment in environmental protection facilities, the
Group will work with third-party professional organizations to evaluate the
investment and operational feasibility; so as to take effective environmental
protection measures and protect the ecological environment to better reduce
the impact of production activities on environment.

IV. Charity Undertakings - Dissemination of Positive
Energy

The Group has always adhered to the principle of “Giving back to society” and
set up the Want Foundation in 1997 which has been dedicated to charity work
and promotion of Chinese traditional virtues. The Foundation actively engages
in disaster relief, rescue work, respect for the elderly and care for the children,
sponsoring senior citizen medical care, cultural and sports events, emergency
assistance and other charity activities. Besides, the Group has formulated
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specialized guiding documents including “Regulations of Want Foundation
on Charity Undertakings” and “Urgent Aid Management Measures of the
Group” for internal use. On the eve of the 2020 Spring Festival, the spread of
COVID-19 in China affected various industries and people across the country.
Want Foundation of the Group upheld the concept of "one family" to protect
China and the health of its people. As we are one family, we share each other's
living and reinforce one another.

1. Disaster relief, fighting against COVID-19 and care

for the victims

The Group demonstrated actively the national spirit of “one in trouble, all to
help” by giving our support and solicitude to the people in areas affected by
the pandemic.

1) Fighting COVID-19, Want Want in action ——Each branch office
pays tribute to the personnel fighting against the pandemic at the
front line

All the factories and branches of Want Want are mobilized to overcome
the difficulties of traffic control and donate food to assist medical care and
personnel fighting against the pandemic at the front line in various areas.
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2) Comforting the city beauticians, Want Want in action 2) BT R ERAD 0 EEETE
Chengdu Branch gives donation to Chengdu sanitation workers. AR D AR ERE T RA T AEITIRE -

3) B EARK - FERETESTE

i |

ninepssn MBI RMEHRBUR

—

1=

- e ">i

IREERESHELE BEI QAT KRRIBE - BETEISESRENE  GRDDRRZ LFRBE -
Jiangxi Province suffered a flood disaster, our Nanchang branch made Lujiang County, Hefei City suffered a flood disaster, our Hefei branch made
donation to the victims. donation to the victims.
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2. Responding to the call for poverty alleviation 2 - EERE RERR

The Group sets a good example, dedicates compassion and encourages TEEBBEETHES AR UGER - &
the community to care for the people in need, thereby putting the Group’s BEL BE& - B KEZIHNQF
business philosophy of “People-Oriented, Self-Confidence and Unity” into KReEWe HEEFEERENARERLE
practice and builds a good relationship with this warm society. A% o

1 |
s

BEAESNRAHEBESESFAFSEKE

Urumgi branch cooperates with local foundations in poverty alleviation

3. Caring for the elderly and loving the children and 3 - HEE4 - BERE

the disabled

During the reporting period, 1,153 participants spent 4,328 hours in REMETBESNEETENASRETE
Want Want Caring Program, benefiting 11,715 persons from various 1,153 AR » FAB54,328/ 65 - BB ER
underprivileged groups. hESHEERE11,715A0K °

RES D RHERE
Wuhan branch made donation to the elderly
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BZD A RMERE EMAROEHREA  BREARE  BRATHEERR
Xi'an branch made donation to the elderly Guangzhou main factory made donation to local disabled,
family members of the disabled and disabled workers

ER8=3.5
AL E

)
*2020/4/14 14:05

KED R AAIRE R RES R RO RROMARAEREA LR

Tianjin branch made donation to Beichen Maternity and Child Health Center Changsha Branch made donation to the disabled in Hunan
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HERER®RE

EE

Indicator

20 H1%
(FEE155F)
Target

for 2020
(compared
with 2015)

2020815
g
Data of
2020FY

EL:
Description

: EERBEA (RIOLEEERA) : D ORERE B4 5E0
: Improvement on energy efficiency : 15% © 22.25% :Equivalent to reduction of 145,000
D BORFIRNE :(cumulative™ production direct consumption): : tonnes of carbon emissions
1 - ENErQy USE  Treveseseseesecnenanerecnenenareeees@iiiiiiian, Q .........................................
: efficiency BERAARA (AHEEEREER) : c o HERESBREER2.48M
: : Improvement on energy efficiency (current : / : 5.2% : Equivalent to reduction of 24,000
: production direct consumption) : tonnes of carbon emissions
...... o o o o .
: IRERF AR5 I :
(Bet"EEEEREA) . . BiK197 &M
Improvement on efficiency in the use of - 8% . 20.98% - Saving of 1.97 million tonnes of
. water resources (cumulative' production - : : water
N : direct consumption : :
p ¢ HEEE O ST Prm O O ! O e
ater efficiency ey JU : :
§ A . p.
; . : : ik 3.4 Mg
Improvement on efficiency in the use of - / 0.62% - .
. water resources (cumulative production - . . Saving of 34,000 tonnes of water
: : direct consumption) : : :
...... L0 © o © s
: BREERA (RFHY) : C2MER
Environmental facility investment : / RMB211
BRI A 6 (cumulative) O million
3 . ENVIONMENtAl e v+t e e sersoeeneenseeententeneeeeee@utettneneeeaotteeeeeadetieantuanensececocecececenen
Investment BRIGERA (KH) : " 131087
: Environmental facility investment : / : RMB13.10 :
: (current period) : million
...... Y SO O UUUUU - BUSRRRRPUPPE « ST OO - BT UUUUUUUUUPRU R
. EAFSCURSFIAMERAIRRANE - : A0ME(E
Number of paper box with FSC and SFI / © 40 k;hiilion :
B E forest system certification used : o :
4 . Use of eCO-friendly « « « + o v e v ereeeneeeataaneeeen.. Q .............. Q ........... &
paper box " . . .
HERNERRIA : / c 728K
: : Equivalent to tree-planting : +72,000 trees:
...... o o o o .
: : : : CHEERHA 17,056 - £
230 : . 2150BE #R16.581%
Curaullative(z) : / .21.50 million :Equivalent to a reduction of 17,056
. . units ° tonnes of carbon emissions,
: RIRBEE O O o equivalent to 165,000 trees
5 :PhotoVOItaiCpOWer:"""""""""""""""""':""""""":"""""': ..............................
generation : : CHEERRA 11,825 HER - S
o : © 14908 - RIAR11.4818
Current, eriod . / -14.90 million :Equivalent to a reduction of 11,825
p . units . tonnes of carbon emissions,
o 6 O o o equivalent to 114,000 trees
6 R BIBRSPOREH 2 : / . 48WE -
palm oil Number of RSPO certified : : 48 tonnes :
...... L N < U OO < SO « TP PPPRPO

() "Cumulative" refers to January 2015-March 2021.
@ "Cumulative" refers to July 2016-March 2021.
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Year ended 31 March

BZ3A31BLLEE
2021 2020 Change
202145 20204 2E)
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
ARET T AR¥ET T %
Key income statement items FERZERER
Revenue g 21,998,400 20,094,531 +9.5
Gross profit EA 10,605,524 9,655,032 +9.8
Operating profit EEFE 5,736,178 4,805,934 +19.4
EBITDA! KRETRIE - FT8H -
TERBHEAER 6,677,855 5,711,832 +16.9
Profit attributable to equity holders ZR A BERHIFE A
of the Company FE AL F) 4,157,809 3,649,215 +13.9
% point
Key financial ratios FTEHKLE % % (EERE
Gross profit margin EF=E 48.2 48.0 +0.2
Operating profit margin EEF AR 26.1 23.9 +2.2
EBITDA margin KREFE - FFEH -
TERBHEARTRIR 30.4 28.4 +2.0
Margin of profit attributable to AARERFEA
equity holders of the Company  FE{5 A= 18.9 18.2 +0.7
1 EBITDA refers to earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation and ! KRETRE - FIBH - MEREHEARTR

amortization. It is calculated by adding back depreciation and amortization

expenses to the operating profit for the year.

SEMBRLE - FTER - FERBEANE
R+ R P BE RN 8 R 5
3 o
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Summary

Total revenue of the Group for 2020FY increased by 9.5% as compared
with that of 2019FY, of which the revenues from dairy products and
beverages as well as snack foods segments both achieved double-
digit growth year-on-year, while all channels in mainland China achieved
rapid growth. This was due mainly to the Group’s constant pursuit of
quality, which has built a foundation of trust from our consumers; our
dynamic digital marketing, which has enhanced emotional exchange with
consumers; as well as the development of diversified emerging channels
coupled with the implementation of brand differentiation strategy by the
Group. Notwithstanding the ever-changing external environment, the
implementation of these strategies has enabled the Group to grow at a
steady but accelerating pace.

() Intensive development and diversification of channels
1. Intensive development of traditional channels

Revenue from the traditional channels achieved a high-single-
digit year-on-year growth rate in 2020FY, of which revenue from
core products such as “Hot-Kid Milk”, beverages, popsicles, and
candies, each achieved double-digit growth. Revenue from the
traditional channels has shown a gradual and steady growth
trend since 2017FY (the financial period from 1 April 2017 to 31
March 2018), which was mainly attributable to:

(i) Empowerment of the development of distributors: the
Group optimized its supply chain management, strictly
managed and controlled the ageing of products, and
optimized its distributor incentive policies. The Group
also guided distributors to experiment with digital
transformation, such as holding online live broadcast,
which enabled distributors to reach consumers beyond the
physical geographical boundaries, expand point-of-sales
coverage and accelerate product flow.

(i) Lean business management: the Group expanded the
range of product offerings at end points of sales, improved
the quality of specialty product displays to build benchmark
stores, and utilized digital tools to improve management
efficiency.

(i) Differentiated sales and marketing strategies: the
Company increased coverage of end points of sales for
mature products and, at the same time, conducted targeted
marketing and promotions for specialty new products.
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Summary (continued)

(1)

2.

T

&

Ve

Intensive development and diversification of channels (continued)

Diversification of emerging channels

Emerging channels accounted for a high single-digit of the
Group’s total revenue for 2020FY and have maintained a
strong growth momentum and become one of the key drivers
for revenue growth for the Group in the medium and long-term.
Diversified development of emerging channels can effectively
complement the coverage of offline end points of sales and
has also become a platform to showcase our products and
communicate effectively with consumers. At present, the Group’s
emerging channels are operated in two models, B2C and B2B,
according to the mode of transaction.

The B2C model includes our self-operated flagship stores on
various e-commerce platforms, vending machines, and self-
developed e-shopping mall, the Want Want official online store
(BE{-BL3#), theme stores and others. Through maintaining and
managing a membership system, we have increased interaction
with consumers and enhanced their awareness and trust in
our brands. In 2020FY, the revenue generated from the B2C
operation grew over 70% year-on-year. B2C operation has
formed a complementary and mutually beneficial virtuous circle
with the traditional channels and drove the steady revenue
growth of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Summary (continued) 4 ACE))
(I) Intensive development and diversification of channels (continued) (—) RENBHAZTLERE @
2. Diversification of emerging channels (continued) 2. HERENZTCERREGE)

In addition to the cooperation with e-commerce platform BB ' REEHFLENE
providers and maternity channels, the Group has also developed BN BBEREIN AR N
OEM business and special channels extensively under the HOEMRIRBSEERE X5
B2B model, fully leveraging the Group’s advantage in terms of BESEERIRILRERES
diversified products and production capacity. The OEM business 2 o OEM %% A 7 &EE
enabled the Group to leverage its powerful strengths in R&D and BEESFHENEKRESD i
production, boost the utilization rate of its production capacity BEEERENFIAER SHE
and produce more high-quality products available for consumers ERERLRBTRIFER L
to choose at online and offline stores. EEFZHBEEHRNESR

Em e

B
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Summary (continued) 4 ACE))
(I) Intensive development and diversification of channels (continued) (—) RENBHAZ TLERE @)
3. Continuous development of overseas markets 3. HERWEIHITIS
Although the overseas sales in 2020FY were to some extent BER 2020 BAFIBIMEEZ —E

affected by the pandemic, the Group remains optimistic about
the medium to long-term growth potential of overseas markets.
In the future, the Group will continue to push on with the
development of the overseas markets and local channels, and
tailor our products to meet the demand of the local consumers
(Chinese, mainstream, etc.). Our Vietnam production base is
expected to commence operations in 2021FY (the financial year
ending 31 March 2022). Meanwhile, we continue to establish
overseas entities as planned. At present, entities in Vietnam and
Thailand have already commenced operations and the Group
will continue to set up overseas entities in other regions in the
future.

EERBEYE BEEMNEY
BHOATERRANERESD -
RRAGHEHEBITERE
WRENRE WEAEHE
BB (FEA  TRS) 8
RITEEER MELEEEM
FEEHASTE 2021 B 6 (B ZE 2022
FE3AM ALEHREE) RS
B BADLBNERB
BB ERT B EMEED - B A
EEHEREESATRAE
B RRMAGEERREME

AT o

Approval number: GS(2016)2953
FESE © GS(2016)2953%%

L

BiBiEﬁEﬁﬁ%iﬂéﬂ?GO%ﬂﬂ?ﬂfﬂﬂbl&

Want Want products have been sold to more than 6 O countries
and regions around the world.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Summary (continued) 4 ACE))

(1)  Brand and product differentiation strategy (Z) mEREREERER
Based on the characteristics of different age groups and different SESEHTRFE  SRRBEEENSE
demands from consumers, the Group differentiated and launched a o ERAHMERTRIIGRE  Fh
range of brands to serve consumers more precisely and extensively. e BEZHREEEE -

SEEEE LN mEERE

The brands successively launched by the Group included:

FiX X BOd)’ XN [Fix x Body | —- SEREEERE

QUEEN"
[Queen Alice] —SRELMRIE g AT . TN
“Queen Alice” — a high-quality brand for female consumers ST =60 —L
I =
' ‘-HDT X [ Hot | — SiokE 5 & BRI
o8] Y P ” : :
& Mr. Hot” — a customized brand for spicy lovers

[BEM] —2FEME e g
“Shi Ji Yan” (B $:fiff) — a new personalized brand

0
AL JEEEIEETT
“Prime of Love” (E&H) — a brand of healthy nutritious products for middle-aged
™ and elderly
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Summary (continued) =z

(1)

(Il

Brand and product differentiation strategy (continued)

The Group has also constantly rolled out products with new flavors
and packaging and developed new products that meet the demands
for healthy and nutritious products, novel packaging and unique
flavors, satisfying the diverse needs of consumers. For example, the
new products launched under the gummy series with special features
such as fillings, layers and different levels of chewy textures were
accompanied by the mesmerizing “Brother QQ” (QQF) video, which
allowed the products to gain popularity rapidly. The “Want Want
Dongchi” (REEEEE), with unique recipe and packaging, has become
the star of “room temperature” ice-cream, and the new flavor — “Hot-
Kid Milk Flavor” (FE{F4#itk) has become influential online and
received recommendations throughout the Internet. In addition, the
“little crayfish” puffed food under the rice cracker segment received
a remarkable response after its first launch through e-commerce
channels and gained popularity among young consumers.

Extensive and diversified digital marketing

Through organizing extensive and creative digital marketing activities,
the Group passed on the brand value of “health, happiness, vitality”.
We started with consumer as our core and worked with marketing
mediums which have attracted extensive consumers’ attention to
deliver diversified marketing content and to strengthen our brand
image. We built a comprehensive “Want Want fan ecosystem” loop
through integration of brand building and channel marketing to support
our channel and product development. Through means such as KOL'’s
(Key Opinion Leaders) recommendation, live broadcast and cross-
industry collaboration, the Group continued to strengthen consumers’
awareness of the brands and products of Want Want and direct them
to other channels.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Summary (continued)
(Il1) Extensive and diversified digital marketing (continued)

1.

Brand IP enhancement and creative product marketing

The Group emphasized on products’ characteristics and
selling points in marketing and promotion when launching new
products to the market. With the theme of “no fear for the melting
summer”, the “Want Want Dongchi Integrated Marketing” (FE
AEREE S $H) campaign promoted the sales of our popsicle
product series through mesmerizing, auto-tuned videos on
various self-media platforms and recommendations by external
KOLs (Key Opinion Leaders). The “Want Want Tiao Dou OTV
— Can't Resist Beans Series” (EEE#HZOTV - ELTEHRE
#%7%l) and the “Different Levels of Chewy Textures of Hot-Kid
QQ Gummy” (FEFQQHER D A&) campaigns highlighted our
products’ characteristics to consumers through mesmerizing
and brain-washing marketing videos. The “Whoops! Why Is It So
Delicious” (M) | ‘RERZSELFIZ) campaign involved the setting
up of a virtual food academy in collaboration with Bilibili and
Weibo, which were popular among Generation Z, with virtual
characters loved by young consumers to get these consumers to
know Want Want'’s products.

3’5 @)

(2) 88

1.

SN FITH (@)
mig IP B RAISEREH
EEEHEEREASERE
Bh BhERTM ETH o [EEREERA
BEH U MAREHERX]
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BIREFaHEERINE KOL &
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3 46
(2) BEZTWNEFITHE @)

Summary (continued)
(Il1) Extensive and diversified digital marketing

1.

Brand IP enhancement and creative product marketing
(continued)

The Group strengthened the Want Want brand through cross-
industry collaboration and building of brand IP. During the
pandemic, the Group rolled out the inspiring “Hot-Kid Milk
Occupational Cans” to pay tribute to those who were fighting on
the frontlines of the pandemic. The Group also collaborated with
NetEase Music and launched a campaign of earning “Yunbei” (£
B) by listening to music online, which could then be redeemed
for snacks at Want Want vending machines offline. The project
won the “12th Golden Mouse Digital Marketing Contest — Cross-
Industry Joint Marketing — Gold Award”.

Building of Want Want Fan Ecosystem

In recent years, the Group has continued to deliver high-
quality content on popular social media platforms to accumulate
incremental fans and strengthen Want Want’s influence, while
leveraging on the effectiveness of advertising on those platforms
to promote our brands and products, thereby bringing sales
and increasing brand awareness. The Group has focused on
consumer-centric experience and strived to build up a pool of
Want Want fans through the Hot-Kid Club, amid integrating
channels and social platforms, in an effort to establish an
ecosystem of Want Want fans to increase users’ loyalty and
enhance channel development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Summary (continued)

(IV) Improved operation and management through digitalisation
The Group will enhance inter-regional coordination and response
capabilities through digitalization and continuously optimize production
layout and supply chain management to improve its overall production
efficiency. The Group’s factory in Jiangxi specializing in production
of complementary foods for infants and young children was officially
put into production in 2020 and was the first factory in the country to
receive certification for rice crackers complementary food. The Group
promoted accurate marketing and optimized customer experience
through the use of big data and analysis, enhanced sensitivity to
market opportunities, and improved efficiency of channel and sales
management. The Group also empowered upstream suppliers and
downstream distributors through digitalization to create vertical
synergy. In the future, the Group will further open up the upstream
and downstream digital chains to drive efficient operations and
management.

REVENUE

Benefiting from the effective implementation of business strategies, total
revenue of the Group for 2020FY grew by 9.5% as compared with that of
2019FY, reaching RMB21,998.4 million. Of which, revenue from the rice
crackers segment slightly decreased by 0.5% due to impact of the pandemic
both in mainland China and abroad. Revenue from the dairy products and
beverages segment grew by 12.2% year-on-year and at a much faster rate
in the second half of the year. Revenue from snack foods segment grew by
14.6% year-on-year, with double-digit growth in both the first and second
half of the year.

The three key product segments maintained a balanced development trend,
with the rice crackers and snack food segments together accounted for
49.5% and the dairy products and beverages segment accounting for 50.1%
of our total revenue for 2020FY.
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REVENUE (continued)

Rice crackers

Isolated outbreaks of the pandemic in various places of China before the
2021 Spring Festival brought uncertainty to sales and affected the delivery
pace of gift packs. Meanwhile, pandemic outbreak abroad dampened the
development of overseas businesses and sales. Gift packs and overseas
sales, in aggregate, accounted for approximately 35% of the total revenue
of the rice crackers segment in 2020FY, and their aggregate revenue
decreased by mid-to-high single digit year-on-year. As a result, revenue
from the rice crackers segment for 2020FY decreased by 0.5% year-on-
year to RMB5,582.6 million. Among which, revenue from the core-brand
rice crackers amounted to RMB4,404.6 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 1.8%.

However, the pandemic boosted the expansion of the rice crackers business
in emerging channels. Through setting up channels such as e-commerce
channels, special channels, vending machines and Want Want official
online store ( FE{7AE## ), we expanded coverages of end points of sales and
enhanced our interaction with young consumers.

The Group continued to optimize the taste and upgrade the packaging of
our products, enhance their healthiness and taste and increase consumers’
desire to purchase. The newly launched salty egg yolk and cheese flavored
rice cracker rolls were made from carefully selected coarse grain corn
and rich and mellow rice, with a solid rice aroma wrapped in sweet milk
flavor, and came with a crunchy texture suitable for all ages. The upgraded
packaging with vibrant colors made it suitable for display at retail outlets
catching the eye of consumers.

In 2021FY, we plan to launch more new flavors and packaging for our rice
crackers to meet the demand for innovation and changes in the consumer
market. For gift pack products, “roasted nuts” gift packs are in the pipeline to
be launched to meet the consumers’ demands for items in many more other
sub-categories.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVENUE (continued)

Dairy products and beverages

The dairy products and beverages segment registered a revenue of
RMB11,011.3 million in 2020FY, representing a year-on-year growth of
12.2%. The “Hot-Kid Milk”, which accounted for over 90% of the revenue
from the dairy products and beverages segment, grew by 11.3% year-on-
year in 2020FY and the growth further accelerated at a mid-teen growth rate
in the second half of the year. In addition, double-digit growth rates were
achieved across all channels in the mainland China. The beverages and
other sub-categories achieved a year-on-year growth of 29.5%.

Digital marketing helped to enhance our brand image. The Group launched
various digital marketing campaigns, such as the launch of the uniquely
designed Hot-Kid Milk Occupational Cans, posting “Vlog” videos that
document the hardships across industries and crossover co-branding
with takeaway platforms and delivery companies to pay tribute to every
occupational group who strives hard for their dreams. We conducted a “light
show” with the theme of “Working Together From the Heart, Prosperity for
Everyone”, which brought magnificent visual spectacle. Complemented with
online and offline diversified marketing to strengthen consumers’ recognition
and loyalty to our Want Want brand and Hot-Kid Milk, the campaign
attracted 1.85 billion page views.

Our multi-channel development strategy maximized coverage of consumers
under different contexts and drove double-digit growth across all channels
in the mainland China. Through the implementation of regional product
development strategy and business incentive strategy, coupled with the
development of catering, special and other channels, the market coverage
of our products was enhanced.

Through the introduction of new products, our product range has become
more and more diversified. In order to satisfy the needs of the young
generation for various flavors of milk, the Group developed and launched
a new series of flavored milk products, the Hot-Kid Chocolate Milk came
with a better and richer flavor, using dairy ingredient imported from New
Zealand and imported cocoa powder, the Nut Milk extended its reach from
consumers aged 6-12 years to junior and senior high school students
as nuts are considered as having high nutritional value and beneficial to
intellectual development, thereby expanding the consumer age groups of
our Hot-Kid branded dairy products. Benefiting from the intensive market
cultivation and control over pace of sales across all channels, revenue from
the beverage segment achieved a rapid growth of 29.5% year-on-year in
2020FY, with the emerging channels doubling their revenue.
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REVENUE (continued)

Dairy products and beverages (continued)

In 2021FY, the Group will continue to further its market cultivation and
expand its product portfolios, along with customer incentive policies as well as
online and offline marketing efforts in a bid to raise product awareness and
drive sales and boost the performance of the dairy products and beverage
segment.

Snack foods

In 2020FY, revenue from the snack foods segment amounted to
RMB5,312.7 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 14.6%, of
which, revenue from popsicles, candies, and beans, jellies and others
increased by 24.3%, 16.5%, and 9.1% respectively. Traditional channels
achieved double-digit growth year-on-year while revenue from emerging
channels and overseas markets achieved breakthrough growth as a result
of further development of products in emerging channels and overseas
markets.

Due to the relatively low base of comparison as a result of the unfavourable
weather conditions in 2019FY, revenue from the popsicles sub-category
grew by 24.3% year-on-year in 2020FY. Revenue from traditional channels
grew by double-digit year-on-year, while revenue from emerging channels
was more than two times that of 2019FY as a result of our efforts in
developing online sales and launching new products. Diversified digital
marketing and social media promotion enhanced consumers’ awareness
of our products. Expansion to cold drink customers increased the market
coverage of our products. Our new product, Dongchi ( & % ), being
packaged and served in a unique way along with a variety of popular
flavors, for example, the new “Hot-Kid Milk Flavor” that was launched in
2020FY was well received by the post-90s and post-00s consumer groups,
achieving a milestone of selling 100 million pieces in 2020FY.

Benefiting from product upgrades, development of new flavors, and
diversified channel expansion, revenue from the candies sub-category
increased by 16.5% year-on-year. The upgraded Hot-Kid QQ gummy
achieved satisfactory results in selected regions through policy incentives.
An upgrade of the Hot-Kid Milk chewy, the Hot-Kid Tea Milk chewy,
enriched with real tea powder, is a perfect blend of tea aroma and mellow
milk. It came with a special milk tea cup-shaped bag to cater for the present
“milk tea boom” and attracted young people to consume and to recommend
spontaneously. The first gummy gift pack was launched in the Spring
Festival to satisfy consumers’ demand for a variety of flavors and was well
received by consumers. Meanwhile, candies business also achieved good
results in terms of emerging channels and overseas market development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVENUE (continued)

Snack foods (continued)

In 2020FY, revenue from the beans, jellies and other sub-category continued
to grow positively as we enriched our product range through intensive
development of high-potential products as well as active development of
new packaging and flavors. In particular, beans products achieved double-
digit revenue growth. New products under the beans sub-category, pepper
beans (#EZ R ) and garlic beans (FH EZ R ), a perfect combination of
the small crisps (“JN)NBf ) and chili crisps ( BRHIER ) with the bean products,
tempt the taste buds of consumers and present an appetizing imagery. The
two new Want Want “Soft Pudding” ( EEFE##5 T ) with avocado flavor and
lactobacillus flavor, featuring selected real avocado jam and whey ferment
to satisfy consumers’ health-conscious aspirations and allow them to enjoy
a delicious yet healthy treat.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales of the Group for 2020FY amounted to RMB11,392.9
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 9.1% mainly due to with
the Group’s revenue growth of 9.5%. In addition, benefiting from the
diversification of raw materials and packaging materials, the overall unit cost
of production remained relatively stable on a year-on-year basis. However,
future price increase in major raw materials, such as milk powder, packaging
materials, etc. would have an impact on our costs.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit margin of the Group for 2020FY increased by 0.2
percentage point to 48.2% as compared with that of the previous year.
Gross profit amounted to RMB10,605.5 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 9.8%. This was due mainly to the topline increase by 9.5%.
In addition, the brands and products sold through the rapidly expanding
emerging channels were distinctive and enjoyed higher profitability, boosting
the Group’s overall gross profit margin level. The Group will continue to
optimize the layout planning and the automation level of its production lines
to further enhance the production efficiency and maintain healthy profitability
of its products.

Rice crackers

The gross profit margin of rice crackers segment was 46.1% for 2020FY,
remained at the same level as that of 2019FY. Moving forward, the Group
will continue to optimize its production cost structure through optimization of
the production line layout and the promotion of automation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROSS PROFIT (continued)

Dairy products and beverages

The gross profit margin of the dairy products and beverages segment was
49.6% for 2020FY, representing an increase of 0.6 percentage point as
compared with that of 2019FY. This was due mainly to a slight decrease in
the prices of certain key raw materials over the previous year, coupled with
an improvement in product profitability resulting from new product launch
and channel expansion.

Snack foods

The gross profit margin of the snack foods segment was 47.7% for 2020FY,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.7 percentage point. This was due
mainly to a slight increase in the costs of some major packaging materials
and raw materials as compared with those of the same period in the
previous year. The Group will continue to optimize its product mix, launch
new products with high gross profit margins and increase the utilization rate
of its production facilities to maintain a healthy profitability of snack foods
segment.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The distribution costs for 2020FY amounted to RMB2,765.6 million,
representing a decrease of RMB25.44 million or 0.9% as compared with
those of 2019FY. Distribution costs as a percentage of revenue decreased
by 1.3 percentage points year-on-year to 12.6%. Among which, staff
costs as a percentage of revenue decreased by 0.9 percentage point to
4.5% as compared with those of 2019FY, due mainly to the combined
effect of the increase in revenue and the decrease in the number of sales
representatives. Transportation expense to revenue ratio was 4.0%,
remaining at the same level as that of 2019FY. Advertising and promotion
expenses as a percentage of revenue also decreased by 0.4 percentage
point to 2.5% as compared with those of 2019FY, due mainly to the
suspension of some of the advertising activities in the first half of the year as
a result of the pandemic. The Group will continue to monitor its marketing
cost efficiency.

2020/20214 3 ANNUAL REPORT

EF @)

A m R ERE

2020 B FH MR ERREERIZE 49.6% &
2019 F EH 06 EEDE - TREEK
TERYREXREHLEBREDE  BFER
HRENARE-—DRATEREFRBED -

KERMIE

2020 I FERERMEBEERIZE 47, 7% B E
FRBTRO7TEEDH - TRIBHEEE
MREMEHEAEERSR L FRIEEE LIk -
SEZESBRABLLEREE HEHSE
MEHGE RALEFRARE SEZRE
RIEFRENEFRBED -

FHAE

2020 BF & 73 SH AR ANER 2019 B 6 T B& 2,544
BARY TH0.9%: #E3 27.656 B A
Rt DEARERBLERGEEERHT
BASHEE D B126%° HEF - A
BRI 45% @ B 2019 Bt FEEIHILL
T O9EEDE  EREBWFEHREM
FEBAEABEHLL TR - EEL
WSt 4.0% 8 2019 B FEHILLIFF o
ERERMGWZELES 2.5% 8 2019 Bt
FRIMATR0A4EESE  FRL¥FH
BREERTBIESHRM - KEBIFE
BT HBERNNE -



F Bl BEBE ERAFRAT

EEENWE D

Management Discussion and Analysis

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for 2020FY amounted to RMB2,713.4
million, representing an increase of RMB228.0 million or 9.2% as compared
with those of 2019FY. It was due mainly to the increase in research
and development expenses and the increase in employees’ salaries.
Administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue was 12.3%, basically
remained at a similar level as those of 2019FY.

OPERATING PROFIT

The Group’s operating profit for 2020FY amounted to RMB5,736.2 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB930.2 million or 19.4%. The
operating profit margin increased by 2.2 percentage points year-on-year to
26.1%, which was due mainly to improved operating leverage and efficiency
as a result of revenue growth and better expenses management.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s income tax expense for 2020FY amounted to RMB1,847.2
million, and the income tax rate was 30.8%, representing an increase of 2.8
percentage points as compared with that for 2019FY. It was due mainly to
the Group’s plan to use its internal funds to meet the possible funding needs
for repayment of bank borrowings and the maturing bonds due 2022 and
overseas market development in 2021FY. Therefore, the Group increased
the amount of withholding tax provision for subsequent profit distribution
from the subsidiaries.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for 2020FY amounted
to RMB4,157.8 million, representing an increase of 13.9% as compared
with that of 2019FY. The margin of profit attributable to equity holders was
18.9%, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.7 percentage point.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and borrowings

As at 31 March 2021, the net cash of the Group (total cash and bank
deposits (including long-term bank time deposits) net of total borrowings)
amounted to RMB9,098.0 million (31 March 2020: RMB8,376.3 million),
representing an increase of RMB721.7 million as compared with that as at
31 March 2020. This was due mainly to net cash generated from operating
activities during the year amounted to RMB5,415.6 million. The Group
still has sufficient cash reserves after payment of dividends (RMB3,511.2
million) and share repurchases (RMB1,601.1 million).

We finance our operations and capital expenditure primarily by cash
flows generated from internal operations as well as banking facilities
provided by our principal bankers. As at 31 March 2021, our cash
and bank deposits balance (including long-term bank time deposits of
RMB2,850.0 million) amounted to RMB18,931.1 million (in which, RMB
accounted for approximately 96.8%, being approximately RMB18,331.6
million), representing an increase of RMB1,674.1 million as compared with
RMB17,256.9 million as at 31 March 2020, with a strong cash position.

As at 31 March 2021, our total borrowings amounted to RMB9,833.1
million (31 March 2020: RMB8,880.7 million), representing an increase of
RMB952.4 million as compared with those as at 31 March 2020. Among
which, short-term borrowings amounted to RMB3,340.0 million (31 March
2020: RMB587.1 million), representing an increase of RMB2,752.9 million as
compared with those as at 31 March 2020; long-term borrowings, including
the guaranteed bonds issued, amounted to RMB6,493.2 million (31 March
2020: RMB8,293.6 million), representing a decrease of RMB1,800.4 million
as compared with those as at 31 March 2020.

In April 2017, the Group issued 5-year term guaranteed bonds with a face
value of US$500.0 million and a coupon rate of 2.875% (the “Bonds”). As at
31 March 2021, the balance of the Bonds payable amounted to US$498.1
million (31 March 2020: US$496.4 million).

The Group’s net gearing ratio (total borrowings net of cash and bank
deposits (including long-term bank time deposits) as a ratio of total equity
(excluding non-controlling interests)) as at 31 March 2021 was -0.61 time
(31 March 2020: -0.55 time). At present, the Group maintains sufficient
cash and available banking facilities for its working capital requirements and
for capitalizing on any potential investment opportunities in the future. The
management will from time to time make prudent financial arrangements
and decisions to address changes in the domestic and international financial
environment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued)

Cash flow

A net cash inflow of RMB5,415.6 million was generated from our operating
activities, representing a year-on-year increase of 11.8% as compared with
that of 2019FY. Net cash outflow for financing activities was RMB3,633.9
million, consisting mainly of dividend payments of RMB3,511.2 million, cash
outflow for share repurchases of RMB1,601.1 million and net borrowing
inflow of RMB1,565.2 million. After taking into account the above operating
and financing activities, net cash inflow was RMB1,781.7 million. The
net cash outflow of investing activities was RMB2,914.2 million, after the
placement of RMB2,850.0 million cash to long-term bank time deposits.
As a result, the cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2021 were
RMB16,081.1 million, plus long-term bank time deposits of RMB2,850.0
million, for a total of RMB18,931.1 million.

Capital expenditure

For 2020FY, our total capital expenditure amounted to RMB317.3 million (for
the year ended 31 March 2020: RMB296.1 million). We spent approximately
RMB67.95 million, RMB114.4 million, and RMB57.16 million on the
expansion of factory buildings and facilities including plant and equipment,
and upgrade of some of the old plant and production facilities for the rice
crackers, dairy products and beverages, and snack foods segments,
respectively to prepare for the further growth of the Group. The remaining
capital expenditure was made mainly for the purpose of adding facilities for
information technology, packaging and others.

The above capital expenditure was financed mainly by our internally
generated cash flows and banking facilities.

Inventory analysis

Our inventory consists primarily of finished goods, goods in transit, and work
in progress for rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack foods
and other products, as well as raw materials and packaging materials.

The following table sets forth the number of our inventory turnover days for
the year ended 31 March 2021 and for the year ended 31 March 2020:

For the year ended
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For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

BZE 2021 £ BZE 2020 F
3A3M HLEEE 3H3M HLEEE
Inventory turnover days FEAEXRE 85 90

As at 31 March 2021, the inventory balance amounted to RMB2,528.8
million (31 March 2020: RMB2,746.2 million).
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued)

Trade receivables

Our trade receivables represent the receivables from our credit sales to
customers. The terms of credit granted to our customers are usually 60 to
90 days. Our sales to most of the customers in China are conducted on a
cash-on-delivery basis. We only grant credit to customers in our modern
distribution channels and certain emerging channels, which then on-sell our
products to end-consumers of the Group.

The following table sets forth the number of our trade receivables turnover
days for the year ended 31 March 2021 and for the year ended 31 March
2020:
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For the year ended
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For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

BZE 2021 £ BZE 2020 F

3A3 HLEEE 3HA3M HLEEE

Trade receivables turnover days B SR AEXE 15 17
Trade payables BEZ RN

Our trade payables mainly relate to the purchase of raw materials on credit
from our suppliers with credit terms generally between 30 days and 60 days
after receipt of goods and invoices.

The following table sets forth the number of our trade payables turnover
days for the year ended 31 March 2021 and for the year ended 31 March
2020:

For the year ended
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For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HZE 2021 & HBZE 2020 F

3A3MBLFE 3A31BILFE

Trade payables turnover days ESENFEAEXE 33 37
Pledge of assets EEERR

As at 31 March 2021, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

For 2020FY, our average number of employees was approximately
41,193, representing a decrease of 1,379 employees as compared with
the average number of employees for the year ended 31 March 2020.
It was mainly due to the enhancement of production automation and
improvement of sales management efficiency which led to a reduction in
the demand for corresponding personnel. Our total remuneration expenses
for 2020FY amounted to RMB4,027.2 million, representing an increase
of 4.9% as compared with that for 2019FY. The remuneration package of
our employees includes fixed salary, commissions and allowances (where
applicable), and performance-based year-end bonuses having regard to the
performance of the Group and that of the individual.

Our Group always concerns about and has invested a significant amount of
resources in continuing education and training programs for our employees.
Training programs, both external and internal, are also provided to relevant
staff as and when required to constantly improve their professional
knowledge and skills.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The presentation currency of the Group is RMB, but the Company’s
functional currency is still USD. More than 90% of our operating activities
are conducted in mainland China. Our Chinese mainland subsidiaries’
functional currency is RMB. The Group’s foreign exchange risks arise mainly
from procurement of raw materials and equipment from overseas, overseas
dividend payments, and certain recognized assets and liabilities.

As procurement of raw materials and equipment from overseas and USD
denominated borrowings of the Group are mainly recognized in the financial
statements of the subsidiaries of the Group whose functional currency are
USD, the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risks are minimal
and the relevant risk exposure after offsetting is not significant. As such,
RMB does not have a significant impact on exchange gains and losses
presented on the “Other gains — net” section of the consolidated income
statement. During the year, the Group did not hedge against its foreign
exchange risks.

2020/20215 R ANNUAL REPORT

ANBEME THEH

2020 I EAREEFHET AEBLYS 41,193
A BEZE2020F3 A31 HIEFEEFEY
ABRAD 1379 A TREEBEFHLHIR
HAREEEENENBEBHEAESEK
HIIRL 2> © 2020 BF F 42 F B & 40.272 B A
R#E BR2019F LFH 4.9%c ETWE
MEEEEIE A RERER) » B
RERTEBREARRNFRER -

REBRBEIHE TNFERBMEI
AEYBREERRA  AEEKEEL
ZIFAAAREI T A SRR AR
BIRE - METERAE THWERAR
EERE ©

5B . B

FEEZINERRBARYE  BXALTH
BEEWMART » MAKE90% A LEE
EEEFEAERE  WEIREAKNERE
MINEEEBRAARY - ZEEMIMNE R
ETRRERIINEYRIRE - REFRBN
BB  RETERABEENER -

HRASENEIINEIE - RERBRE
TEREERANKEEUXTEREINRE
ERNNE AR 2 BRAER - Biks
KNERBNWEERGEER) - BEE
BZRBREAEETTER Bt AR
WIRBHRE W R H MRS — F 5]
FHIERAE R WS MG E - HEREADN
FERFER AREIEHHEIMNE
R o



o Bl BEBE ERFRA T
EEENWR DN
Management Discussion and Analysis

DIVIDENDS Ba

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of US1.46 cents EEEZERRK20200 FRBREETR
per share for the 2020FY, amounting to approximately US$176 million 1,464l - ¥B1.761BE T (TE411.89
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,189 million). In December 2020, the BARY) - R2020F128 » AAFEIK
Company paid an interim dividend of US0.65 cent per share for 2020FY, 22020 EHPHAIRREEMR0.65EML - B
totaled approximately US$79 million (equivalent to approximately RMB521 0.79BET ITEHN5.21BARYE) - iz
million). Together with an amount of approximately US$240 million SE2020 FEBERMODESEN2.408ET
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,601 million) for share repurchases in (FEHN16.01BARY)  AHFRERRE
2020FY, the Group would have returned a total of approximately US$495 #4.95BE T (EHNIZNEBARE) » &
million (equivalent to approximately RMB3,311 million) to its shareholders, B2020 FADN T ERFE ABGREN
representing approximately 80% of the profit attributable to equity holders of 80% °

the Company for 2020FY.
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BEE RS Corporate Governance Report

Our Company, together with its subsidiaries, are committed to maintaining
and upholding high standards of corporate governance practices and
procedures. We recognize the value and importance of achieving high
corporate governance standards to promote corporate transparency and
accountability and to enhance shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

We had, throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the deviations from the code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 for the reasons
explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance practices
with reference to the latest developments in corporate governance. The
key corporate governance principles and practices of our Company are
summarized below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

We have adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding directors’ securities transactions. Formal written notices,
together with a copy of the Model Code, are sent to our directors (“Directors”)
prior to the commencement of the periods of 30 days immediately preceding
the publication date of our interim results and 60 days immediately
preceding the publication date of our annual results, as a reminder that
Directors must not deal in any securities of the Company during those
periods up to and including the date of publication of the results. Having
made specific enquiries with our Directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
March 2021.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roles of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of our
Group and is also collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising its affairs. Key matters and decisions
which are reserved for the Board include those relating to:

. the objectives, policies, business plans and strategic directions of our
Group;

. overseeing and evaluating the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

. the approval of our Group’s operating and capital expenditure budgets,
interim and annual financial results and the publication thereof, major
financial arrangements and investment proposals, material contracts
and transactions, notifiable transactions, non-exempt connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions, declarations
of dividend, Directors’ appointment or re-election following the
recommendations by the Nomination Committee and other matters
which need to be dealt with by the Board;

. establishing and maintaining the risk management and internal control
systems and ensuring their effectiveness; and

. ensuring our Group has in place adequate accounting systems and
appropriate human resources to fulfill the accounting and financial
reporting functions.

Our management team, which possesses extensive experience and industry
knowledge, is led by the executive Directors and has been delegated by the
Board with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and implementation of strategies approved by the Board in relation to the
business and operations of our Group. In addition, the Board has also
delegated certain specific responsibilities to the various Board committees,
namely, the audit and risk management committee (the “Audit and Risk
Management Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the strategy committee (the “Strategy Committee”). Each of the Board
committee operates within its respective terms of reference which clearly
defines its respective duties and authorities. Details of these committees are
set out further on pages 105 to 115 in this Annual Report.

In order to facilitate and assist the Board in promoting and managing matters
relating to environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) of the Group,
such as strategies and policies, initiatives, performance and reporting, the
ESG Committee was established in August 2020 with the authorities and
responsibilities as stated in its terms of reference.

202072021 % ANNUAL REPORT [

o G BEBZ IR 4 A

Corporate Governance Report {2 &8 &

EEg

ExEvAt
EXEEEEEREEAEE  YEEE
EREREEAREEHUEEERT
ARESEESERFHARENEESEEE
&

c AEEZER - BOR - ZHRTERK
&3 &

. ERRTAEAEERCEERTKR
17

- HEXREECzRFEEREARMXHE
B THREFEERERM - EX
MBZHERRERE - EXEHORK
5 ATRANRE - TERREE
Re/HEMEERS  ERRE
REREZESEZEBREARNERE
2 URAEMARESERECSE
15 ;

- BIRASEAREERNBESR
% TRRIEME R

c BRIEEESRMBERBAES
HERANEHARARARESENANE
B o

BANEEERLREE  WEHBERN
TEASE  BYTEEEE  YEESE
RESEEEAEBZARSERRERL
EESMEEREAEEEBREENE
B o boh EEENORETEERTFERE
EZEE NERREREEZEE((EH
BRREBREEZER]) FNZEE ([N
ZEE])  REBZES([RBZEBNEXR
HEZER ((XKEER]) - BHEEZES
HEESENBREEEZ  ARATEBE
MRERER ZEZEE8CHBE—S
HRAFEIRE105E1158 ©

RATTFM2020F8 B IR IE ~ HEME
BREEMBESESRENERERE -
SANVRIEERINYEIE  fa0: REEABOR -
B2 ARARESE - HEREZEST
PR EARERER -



F Bl BEBE ERAFRAT

BEE RS Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Corporate governance functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as specified in Code D.3.1 of the CG Code, including:

. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and the senior management;

. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and the Directors of the

Company; and

. to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 March 2021, the Board consisted of 15 Directors, comprising 7
executive Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and 5 independent non-

executive Directors, as below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung

Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui

Ms. Lai Hong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Maki Haruo

Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock

Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Hsieh Tien-den

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship amongst them (if
any) are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
in this Annual Report. In addition, an updated list of Directors of the
Company with their roles and functions is available on our website and that
of the HK Stock Exchange.

We have arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance for
our Directors and officers.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by shareholders at a general
meeting or by the Board upon recommendation by the Nomination
Committee. We have Director Nomination Policy in place which sets out the
process and criteria for evaluating, selecting and recommending candidates
to the Board for nomination and appointment. In identifying and selecting
suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination Committee would
consider the candidate’s character, integrity, qualifications, experience,
independence and other relevant criteria necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Company has entered into formal letters of appointment with all
Directors setting out their duties and major terms and conditions of their
appointments.

Currently, our non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
do not have specific terms of appointment, which deviates from the code
provision A.4.1 which provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

The articles of association of our Company (the “Articles of Association”)
provide that all our Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-third of our
Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation and offer themselves for re-election. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been in place to ensure our Company’s
corporate governance practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for
the interests of shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG
Code.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors (continued)

The Articles of Association also provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the Company’s next general meeting immediately following his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Directors who shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 17 August 2021 (the “2021 AGM”)
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election are set out on page 143
in this Annual Report.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

We have complied with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules in relation to the
appointment of at least one independent non-executive Director possesses
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each independent non-executive Director is neither interested in the
securities or business of the Company nor connected with any Director,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. We have also received a written confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director confirming his/her independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and consideration was also
given to all independent non-executive Directors who have served on the
Board for more than nine years. We therefore consider each of them to be
independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified as such

in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the names of
the Directors.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis with additional meetings
being convened as and when necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, other than written resolutions passed
by all the Directors, six Board meetings were held mainly to:

. review and discuss the Group’s business development strategies;
. review and monitor the Group’s operating and financial performance;

. review the impacts of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the Group and
to consider the necessary measures and appropriate adjustments to
business strategies and future plans required to minimize the impact
brought by the outbreak and mitigate associated risks;

. review the progress of overseas market development plan;

. consider and approve major investment proposals and financing
arrangements;

. consider and approve the renewal of the service contract with Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng for a term of three years commenced on 26 August 2020;

. approve the formation of ESG Committee, its composition and terms
of reference;

. review and approve connected transactions and non-exempt
continuing connected transactions;

. review and approve the financial results for the year ended 31 March
2020 and for the six months ended 30 September 2020 and the
publication thereof;

. declare the payment of interim dividend and to make recommendation
of the final and special dividends for shareholders’ approval at the
annual general meeting held on 18 August 2020; and

. review and approve the disclosures in the interim and annual reports
and the environmental, social and governance report with regards to
the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company convened an annual
general meeting.

EEg @

EEEER
ESEEHNEEZERITAS  AEL
ERSAMBENEE -

REBE2021FE3831ALFESRE > BTH
FEESEBMEERERN  EE2H
HEITeNEE T8 .

+ REREWRASER SRR RE
© BEREEAKEZEENRMBERE

- REFTERARBHAEENZE
R RIFHBMENER - UREE
BEXEBHEBA KRR INEES
B RO RBHAEENSERE
EARBA R,

« REENTERRBIEE

c EEREMEAREBERMEZR
i 3

© EZRUHER N REREITRLEER
fR#EE - 5202058 26 H iR HA
3F ;

- BERE  HEIRERSENHN
i HERRBESHEE,

. EERMEEERS R TEERSE
BERS

. FRRAERZE2020F3A31HIEF
ERBE2020F9830BEREAZ
AR H B

. ERTPHREREZRPREBIRE
FIREMN20205F8 A 18 HERTHIIR R
BERSEHE R

+ BRERHIEAQNFETFETHRARE
EEETRZBRED B+ HR
TFFHRURERER - 4 ERERRS
R e

REZE2021F3831BLEFE » A2 EBH
T—RBRREFERE -

2020720214 ANNUAL REPORT [|EIEIN



B B2 BF 35 A% B PR /A 7 | Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited

EEEIREE Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EFg @
Directors’/Committee members’ attendance B ZESHEHERR
Directors’/Committee members’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board REZE2021F3831BLEE 88 %
committee meetings and annual general meeting during the year ended 31 EEgREHEEEE EETZEEZEK
March 2021 is set out in the following table. BREBFASHHEMRENRTER

Meetings attended/held®

HERY/ EEETRY"

Audit and Risk
Remuneration Management Nomination Strategy General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting®
ERRER

Name of Directors BEiZ Ezg ¥HzEg EEZEE REZEE RHEEE REAED
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng® BATR LD 446 N/A N/A N/A 212 11
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BAREE 4j40m 33 NIA 22 212 17
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia BHEREE 4j40m NIA NIA NIA 22 17
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BXREE 446 N/A N/A N/A 212 11
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RENRE 44610 N/A NIA N/A 22 1N
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui EEEE 5/50 NIA NIA NIA 22 17
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REEat 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 22 1N
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BEIEE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 212 1N
Mr. Maki Haruo BERLE 414610 N/A NIA N/A NIA 1N
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BYBEE 4146 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1n

Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUHEHTEE

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock BRBEEY 6/6 313 6/6 22 NIA 17
Dr. Pei Kerwei® BREELe 6/6 313 6/6 22 202 11
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen BRICRE 6/6 313 6/6 212 212 111
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming ZEREE 6/6 313 6/6 22 212 1"
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BERLE 6/6 313 6/6 212 212 101
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Directors’/Committee members’ attendance (continued)

Notes:

M

@)

@)

4)

®)

(6)

@)

The denominator number represents the maximum number of meetings
held during the period in which the individual was a Board member or Board

committee member (as the case may be). “N/A” denotes not applicable.

Annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 August 2020 (the “2020
AGM”).

Chairman of the Board and Strategy Committee.

Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Remuneration

Committee.

Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung, Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia, Mr. Huang
Yung-Sung, Mr. Maki Haruo and Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien did not attend the
Board meeting held on 3 April 2020 that was specifically called to consider the
continuing connected transactions that each of them was considered to have
an interest in the transactions pursuant to the relevant requirements under
the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association. Accordingly, they did not
vote on the Board resolutions approving the transactions. Mr. Chu Chi-Wen,
who presented the transactions at the meeting, was also considered to have
an interest in the transactions and had abstained from voting on the Board

resolutions approving the transactions.

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung, Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia, Mr. Huang
Yung-Sung, Mr. Chu Chi-Wen, Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui, Mr. Maki Haruo and Mr.
Cheng Wen-Hsien did not attend the Board meeting that was specifically called
to consider the connected transactions in relation to the renewal of various
property lease agreements as each of them was considered to have an interest
in the transactions pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules and the Articles of Association. Accordingly, they did not vote on the

Board resolutions approving the transactions.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the independent

non-executive Directors without the presence of the other Directors in March

2021.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’/Committee members’ attendance (continued)

The Board, having considered the directorships and major commitments of
each Director and the attendance rate of each Director at Board meetings
and applicable Board committee meetings, is satisfied with the level of
time commitment given by each Director in fulfilling his responsibilities as a
director during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Board Proceedings
Regular Board meetings for each year are generally scheduled in advance
to give Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the
meetings. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice would be given.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to lead the Board to ensure
that the Board operates effectively and fully performs its responsibilities. All
Directors were encouraged to actively participate in the discussion at Board
meetings, and the Chairman has allowed sufficient time for discussion of
issues to ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect the consensus of the
Board.

The Chairman has ensured that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has delegated
the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the
company secretary. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
generally circulated to all Directors at least three days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and as soon as practicable for ad hoc
Board meetings). Directors are invited to include any matters which they
believe to be appropriate in the agenda of regular Board meetings and
they have full and direct access to the advice and services of the company
secretary whenever necessary. The Chairman has also ensured that all the
Directors are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings,
and that all the Directors would receive adequate information, which is
complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

The Chairman is also responsible for promoting a culture of openness and
debate, facilitating the effective contribution of the non-executive Directors
in particular and ensuring constructive relations between the executive and
the non-executive Directors. The Chairman also has to ensure at least one
meeting is held with the independent non-executive Directors each year
without the presence of other Directors.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Proceedings (continued)

Detailed minutes are recorded for Board meetings and Board committee
meetings. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee
meetings are sent to Directors for their comments before being tabled at
the following Board meetings or Board committee meetings for approval.
Minutes of all Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept
by the company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time
following reasonable notice made by any Director.

If a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or a Director
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be discussed in a
physical Board meeting instead of being dealt with by way of circulation of
written resolution and the interested Director will abstain from voting on the
relevant Board resolutions in which he/she or any of his/her close associates
have a material interest and that he/she will not be counted in the quorum
present at the Board meeting. Independent non-executive Directors who,
and whose close associates, have no material interests in the transaction
should be present at such Board meeting.

Training for Directors

Every newly appointed Director, on appointment, will attend an induction
training program and receive a memorandum on the principal continuing
obligations and responsibilities to which the Company and its Directors are
subject under the Listing Rules and other laws and regulations.

Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance
and reading materials on the updates on the latest developments and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time in order to enable the Directors to discharge
their duties. Directors may, where necessary, seek independent professional
advice at our Company’s expense.

Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors
are also invited to view the e-training and read related guidance materials
published by the HK Stock Exchange from time to time.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Training for Directors (continued)

In June 2020, we invited a senior manager from the risk management
and control services team of our external auditor to our Audit and Risk
Management Committee meeting to provide Directors as well as relevant
personnel a briefing on the latest development of the environmental, social
and governance matters, including the updated ESG Guide issued by the
HK Stock Exchange and a brief introduction of the Task Force on Climate
Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and the Sustainability Accounting

Standards.

A summary of the training received by our Directors during the year ended

31 March 2021 is as follows:

EEY (B

EE1EI B

R20205F6 A » HKPIBBINEZ AR
BREFRESESREENELZRERE
BLEESR A EEREBEEIHEHAR
B HERERNBRTBE  BESBH
RAHBNERHCRE tERERREE
5l YRERRGEBMEEREEIEA
(TCFD) M AT EE TR ©

EENBE2021F3A31 B EFERESH
EIBENT

Types of training (Note)

Name of Directors EEME EFE R (M=)
Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng EOTEEE A B
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BB A B
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia BRRLE A B
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BEKMEE A B
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen REXFE A B
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui B L L A B
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REELT A B
Non-executive Directors HHTEE

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BEYIEE A B
Mr. Maki Haruo HEERTE A B
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien B REE A B
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITEE

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock ERBLE A /B
Dr. Pei Kerwei BREEt A B
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen WMRIZFE A B
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming ZEIRHEE A B
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BEEEE A B

Notes:

A. Reading materials relevant to directors’ duties and responsibilities and

regulatory updates.

B. Attending or giving talks at briefings/in-house trainings/seminars/conferences/

forums or viewing e-training relevant to the business or directors’ duties.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same person.
Our Company deviates from this provision because Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng
performs both the roles of chairman and chief executive. Mr. Tsai is the
founder of our Group and has over 40 years of experience in the food and
beverages industry. Given the current stage of development of our Group,
the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the same person provides
our Company with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the
implementation and execution of our Group’s business strategies. We shall
nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the prevailing
circumstances.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit and Risk Management Committee (formerly known as
Audit Committee), the Nomination Committee and the Strategy Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the affairs of our Company. These
committees are established with written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Nomination Committee are available on our website and
the website of the HK Stock Exchange.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 18 February 2008.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is established
primarily for the purpose of ensuring that we can recruit, retain and motivate
high quality personnel who are essential to the success of our Group and
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management.

As at 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee comprised five
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director and was
chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

According to its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee shall meet
at least once a year. The Remuneration Committee met three times during
the year ended 31 March 2021. The attendance record of the members at
the Remuneration Committee meeting during such period is shown on page
100 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2021:

. reviewed and recommended on the remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management and the payment of discretionary performance
bonus;

. reviewed the remuneration structure and the terms of the service
contract of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng upon renewal and recommended the
same to the Board for approval; and

. reviewed the Directors’ fee.

The remuneration package for the executive Directors and the senior
management consists of two parts, namely a fixed component and a
variable incentive.

The fixed component comprises mainly salary, retirement benefit scheme
contributions and other allowances. Besides, an individual who serves on
the Board as an executive Director is also entitled to receive a fixed director
fee. The fixed component is determined with reference to individual's
experience and qualifications, remuneration benchmark in the same industry
or industry with similar market capitalization and the prevailing market
conditions.

The variable incentive comprises discretionary bonus whose amount
is determined by the Board based on the Group’s and individual work
performance in the following ways:

According to the terms of the service contract entered into between Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng (our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive Director and
the chairman of our Strategy Committee) and the Company, the payment of
discretionary bonus is at the absolute discretion of the Board and depends
on a range of factors including but not limited to the performance of the
Group, individual's performance, and the remuneration policy which may be
proposed by the Board from time to time. If the consolidated profits of the
Group before deductions for taxes but after deductions of the non-controlling
interests achieve a certain minimum level and if the Board exercises its
discretion to award such bonus, the Board may determine, at its discretion,
an amount which is no less than the amount which is calculated having
regard to a predetermined formula.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The discretionary bonus for other executive Directors and the senior
management depends upon the portion of the Group’s consolidated
profits after taxation for the year being allocated at a progressive rate to a
bonus pool according to the level of changes in the Group’s consolidated
profits after taxation for the year over the previous year. The distribution
of the bonus pool for each department and individual depends upon the
performance of their respective department and the individual concerned.
We took a 360-degree performance evaluation on both qualitative and
quantitative key performance indicators which mainly include financial
and operational indicators as well as indicators which measure the
satisfaction level in terms of the daily coordination and cooperation between
departments which work closely with each others.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
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March 2021 is set out below: REBAEFHMEIWNT -
Number of
individuals
In the band of A BN F AE
RMBO (HK$0) AR¥0TT (0% 7T)
to RMB873,400 (HK$1,000,000) Z AR#873,4007t (1,000,00078 7T) 2
RMB873,401 (HK$1,000,001) AEK#873,4017t (1,000,001 7T)
to RMB1,746,800 (HK$2,000,000) Z AK#1,746,8007T (2,000,0007& 7T) 3
RMB1,746,801 (HK$2,000,001) AR#1,746,8017t (2,000,0015%8 7T)
to RMB2,620,200 (HK$3,000,000) Z AR#2,620,2007t (3,000,000/&7T) 2

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 35 and note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 18 February 2008 and was
renamed Audit and Risk Management Committee on 1 December 2018.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee are set out in its terms of reference. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee is established primarily for the purposes of
overseeing and reviewing the Group’s financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and evaluating internal controls and auditing
processes.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Audit and Risk Management Committee
comprised five independent non-executive Directors and was chaired by an
independent non-executive Director.

According to its terms of reference, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee shall meet at least twice a year. The Audit and Risk Management
Committee held six meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021 with the
external auditor present at three meetings. The attendance record of the
members at the Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings during
such period is shown on page 100 of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee during the year ended 31 March 2021:

. reviewed and considered various risk management and controls
optimization projects;

. reviewed the recent updates and development of accounting and
financial reporting standards and assessed their impacts on our
Group;

. considered the major accounting and auditing matters raised by
existing auditors and management’s responses;

. discussed with the existing auditor on the nature and scope of the
audit prior to the commencement of the audit for the year ended 31
March 2021;

. reviewed the financial results, results announcements and financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2020 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2020 with the management and existing auditor,
and recommended them to the Board for approval;

. reviewed existing auditor’s independence and approved the terms of
engagement;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
existing auditor as the Company’s external auditor, subject to the
approval by shareholders at the 2020 AGM,;

reviewed quarterly internal audit reports in respect of the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems and procedures
of the Group, whistle-blowing reports and the internal audit plans
for the year ended 31 March 2021, prepared by our internal audit
department;

reviewed the risk register and discussed with internal audit department
and respective risk owners the major identified risks, associated
risk factors, risk levels, related key risk indicators and early warning
system, risk assessment results and corresponding corrective
measures;

reviewed the progress of supplier relationship management (SRM)
system optimization, the overall system architecture and functions
of the SRM system, the benefits and additional values that the SRM
system would bring to the organization and deliverables at each stage
of completion;

discussed with the external auditor on our Group’s financial reporting
functions, in particular on the adequacy of resources of our Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, qualifications and
experience of our staff and their training programs;

reviewed and approved the non-exempt connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions entered into by our Group during
the year ended 31 March 2021 and conducted an annual review of the
non-exempt continuing connected transactions of our Group;

held a private session with external auditor in the absence of executive
Directors and management team; and
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. reviewed the services proposals submitted during the tender of our
external auditor’s service, interviewed three international audit firms,
evaluated and recommended the selected audit firm for Board’s
consideration at the Board meeting on 22 June 2021. The proposed
appointment of new external auditors of the Company following the
retirement of existing auditor at the conclusion of the 2021 AGM
would be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
at the said 2021 AGM. Existing auditor has been the auditors of the
Company since 2007. the proposed change of auditors is consistent
with good corporate governance practice and will help to enhance the
independence of the auditors.

Auditor's Remuneration

The fees charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit service rendered to the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to RMB4,300,000.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 18 February 2008. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are set out in
its terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is established primarily
for the purpose of regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board and making recommendations to the Board on nominations and
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee comprised five
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director and was
chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with effect from August 2013.

The Board reviewed and adopted the revised Board Diversity Policy
effective from 1 December 2018 in order to align with the amendments to
the Listing Rules and CG Code which came into effect on 1 January 2019.

The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board. In considering the composition of the Board, the Board is of
the view that diversity can be considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to professional qualifications, regional and industry
experience, educational and cultural background, skills, industry knowledge
and reputation, gender, ethnicity, language skills and length of service. The
above perspectives will be taken into account in determining the optimal
composition of the Board and where possible, should be balanced among
one another as appropriate. Appointments to the Board will be made based
on merits and the contributions that the individual is expected to bring to the
Board, with due regard to the benefits of diversity in the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy on an ongoing basis.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) effective from 1 December 2018.

The Director Nomination Policy aims to:

. set out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
directors of the Company;

. ensure that the Board of the Company has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company;
and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
. ensure the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following
criteria should be considered by the Nomination Committee or the Board;

. Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

. Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board;

. Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

. Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity;

. Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;
and

. Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be adopted
and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from
time to time for nomination of directors and succession planning.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The process in the nomination and appointment of directors of the Company
is briefly described as below;

(a) Selection and Appointment of New Director

(i)  The Nomination Committee should, upon receipt of the proposal
on appointment of new director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

(i) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee should rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of
each candidate (where applicable).

(i) The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.

(iv) For any person nominated by a shareholder for election as a
director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed election
of directors at the general meeting.

(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director and his/her level of participation and performance on the
Board;

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also review
and determine whether the retiring director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting (continued)

(iii)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate as a
director at the general meeting, the relevant information of the candidate will
be disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with
the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the Director
Nomination Policy and where appropriate, makes recommendations on
changes to this Policy to the Board for consideration and approval.

According to its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee shall meet at
least twice a year. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2021. The attendance record of the members at the
Nomination Committee meetings during such period is shown on page 100
of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2021:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and made
recommendation to the Board on the Directors who should retire and
make themselves available for re-election at the 2020 AGM, pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

. assessed the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors, consideration was given to Directors who have served on
the Board for more than nine years;

. reviewed non-executive Directors’ time commitment in performing their
duties; and

. meeting with newly appointed general managers of the newly
established business units.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee was established on 30 June 2010. Details of the
duties and responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are set out in its terms
of reference.

The Strategy Committee is established primarily for the purpose of working
closely with the Board in formulating the medium and long-term strategic
plans of our Group for the continuous growth and sustainable competitive
advantages of our Group. It also proactively addresses issues relating to
management succession planning and overall human resources planning
and makes recommendations to improve operational efficiencies and
enhance competitiveness in order to capture market opportunities and
tackle future challenges. It will also make recommendations to the Board on
material investment and financial decisions as well as the establishment,
development and expansion of the Group’s business in all aspects.

As at 31 March 2021, the Strategy Committee comprised seven executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors and was chaired by our Chairman.

According to its terms of reference, the Strategy Committee shall meet
at least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Strategy
Committee held two meetings to follow up with the management on the
progress of the overseas market development, development strategies of
emerging channels (including Hok-Kid theme stores, vending machines,
Hot-Kid Fans Club) and human resources strategic plan and transformation.
The attendance record of the members at the Strategy Committee meetings
during such period is shown on page 100 of this Annual Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems of the Group:

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for
ensuring their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management and internal control structure comprises
the Board, the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the internal audit
team and the management. To ensure the integrity and effectiveness
of risk management and internal controls on an ongoing basis, such
systems closely align with the COSO framework with constant optimization
and enhancement. Such systems are designed to achieve the following
objectives:

i providing reasonable assurance of the compliance with relevant rules
and regulations of our business operations, and safeguard of assets;

ii ensuring key risks that may impact the Group’s performance are
appropriately defined and managed; and

iii ensuring reliable financial accounting records are maintained in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements.

Risk Management System and its Main Features:

The Group recognizes that risk management is the prime responsibility of the
management that it has to identify, assess and monitor the risks relevant to
their business operations and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations. Our internal audit team reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, and regularly
reports to the management and the Audit and Risk Management Committee
on significant risks, results of risk analysis and status of risk mitigation
measures. The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company
assists the Board in monitoring the effectiveness of risk management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Risk Management System and its Main Features: (continued)

Our management team is equipped with internal control expertise to carry
out self-evaluation and assessment on the significant key risks so that
necessary measures would be taken to deal with the weak areas where
risks exist.

Our internal audit team reviews the Group’s risk management framework,
coordinates the risk identification and assessment procedures, strengthens
the communication with the management on the identified risks and impacts
to facilitate the implementation of risk mitigation measures, follows up the
progress of such measures, as well as summarising significant risks, other
risks and concerns in its quarterly report to the management and the Audit
and Risk Management Committee.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee discusses and reviews the risk
management and internal control systems with the internal audit team and
the management, and ensures that the Group has an effective system in
place to monitor and control the effectiveness of risk management.

Internal Control System and its Main Features:

The Group’s internal control activities are embedded in the operational
processes. The Group has clear written policies and operational procedures,
as well as the internal control system. All policies of the Group are conveyed
to the staff in a timely manner. A dedicated network platform is established
for the staff to access the Group’s policies. Regular training programs are
also provided to ensure compliance with the code of conduct by all our staff.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control System and its Main Features: (continued)

The Group has set up the whistle-blowing mechanism, such as the reporting
hotline, mailbox, and others for internal staff and interested third parties
to report any actual or suspected occurrence of improper conduct in the
Group. The internal audit team independently and objectively performs
specific investigation on such reported matters, formulates an appropriate
confidentiality system to avoid any form of harassment suffered by staff or
interested third parties who reported or cooperated with the investigation
and sets graded rewards based on the investigation results.

The Group’s internal audit team participates in the formulation of major
operational policies and procedures, performs audit on the implementation
of policies and assists the management in formulating countermeasures.

The Group’s internal audit team establishes standardized audit procedures
and develops the annual audit plan. Such procedures and plan are submitted
to the Audit and Risk Management Committee for approval. Internal audit
team puts the plan into execution as approved. The management performs the
self-assessment of internal control on the processes and procedures of each
operational cycles to obtain reasonable assurance that the internal control is
effective and to take measures to address the internal control weaknesses
identified. The internal audit team also audits the self-assessment results of the
management.

Our internal audit team communicates with the management the risks and
control weaknesses identified during the course of audit and recommends
for improvement measures. The management is responsible for ensuring
that the improvement measures are being implemented within a reasonable
timeframe whereas the internal audit team will conduct a follow-up review
to ensure that the improvement measures and solutions are effectively
implemented.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee receives quarterly reports from
the internal audit department which covers the internal audit plan, material
findings during the relevant period and the progress of implementation
of improvement measures by the management in response to the audit
findings. The quarterly reports also address matters concerned by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee members and the management, the
findings of special audit on specific key risk areas and recommendations for
improvement.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

The Board reviews the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems in place during that full financial year on a quarterly basis. For
the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board assessed the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the Company and
its subsidiaries by considering reviews performed by the Audit and
Risk Management Committee with the assistance of the management
team, internal audit team and external auditors. The annual review also
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions. Based on the assessment made by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee, management team and the internal
audit team, the Board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process in place
for identifying, assessing and managing the significant risks and material
internal controls (including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions) for our Group and the Board considers the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group as effective and
adequate.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information:

i The Company is aware of the requirement of timely disclosure of
inside information under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules. Inside information shall be announced by designated
persons authorised to act as spokespersons in strict accordance with
the applicable laws and enactments prevailing in Hong Kong, and with
reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission; and

ii The Company has incorporated in its code of conduct strict prohibition
on unauthorized disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information. Furthermore, employees at certain levels and posts are
also required to sign the Agreement on Code of Ethics, Confidentiality
Obligations and Resolving Conflict of Interests.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021 and of the
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2021,
and for ensuring that such statements are prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and the applicable accounting standards.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Details of the reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of our Group for the year ended 31
March 2021 are set out on pages 170 to 175 of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Company only has one class of shares. All shares are entitled to the
same voting rights and to dividends declared on a pari passu basis.

Method for convening an extraordinary general meeting

Any two or more shareholders, or any one shareholder which is a
recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may, in accordance with the
requirements and procedures set out in the Articles of Association of the
Company, make a requisition to the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company and put forward proposals at the meeting.
The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition which
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A, 132
Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new
resolutions at general meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles
of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to put forward a
resolution may request the Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out above.

Method for nominating directors

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person, other than a retiring director,
for election as a director of the Company at any general meeting (including
an annual general meeting), the shareholder shall lodge a written notice of
his/her intention to propose such person for election as a director with the
company secretary of the Company at Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A,
132 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong during a period of at
least seven days commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the meeting convened for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting. Such written notice must
be accompanied by a notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected.
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PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Participation in general meetings

Each shareholder is entitled to receive notice of (in writing or by electronic
means) and attend every general meeting of the Company.

At any general meeting on a show of hands, every shareholder who is
present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder being a corporation by
its duly authorised representative) shall have one vote, and on a poll every
shareholder who is present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder
being a corporation by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy shall
have one vote for each share registered in his/her name in the register of
members of the Company. On a poll a shareholder entitled to more than
one vote is under no obligation to cast all his/her votes in the same way.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy with the
objectives of keeping shareholders and the investor community informed as
soon as reasonably practicable of the information on the Group and keeping
them abreast of the Company’s developments and ensuring that they are
provided with relevant, balanced and clear information in a timely manner.

The Board recognizes the importance of continuing communications with
our shareholders and investors and maintains ongoing dialogues with
them through various channels, including the Company’s annual general
meetings (“AGM”), analyst presentations following the release of the interim
and annual results as well as participation in investor conferences, etc..
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

The Company’s AGM is an important platform for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders. The Chairman of the Board,
chairmen of all the Board committees and other Board members endeavor
to attend the AGM of the Company and answer queries from shareholders.
Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders and code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. The 2020 AGM was held in
Hong Kong on 18 August 2020. All Board members, including the chairman
of the Board and the chairmen of all the Board committees (or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees) and the external
auditor were available at the 2020 AGM to answer shareholders’ questions.
The 2020 AGM circular containing the notice of the AGM and other relevant
information of the proposed resolutions were sent to shareholders at least
20 business days before the 2020 AGM.

Attendance record of each individual Director at the 2020 AGM is shown on
page 100 of this Annual Report.

We maintain a website (www.want-want.com) to keep our shareholders and

the general public informed of our latest corporate news, interim and annual
results announcements, financial reports and other public announcements.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
(continued)

We always welcome shareholders’ and investors’ views and input.
Shareholders may send their enquires in writing to the Board by addressing
them to our company secretary. The contact details of our company
secretary are as follows:

Address: The Company Secretary
Want Want China Holdings Limited
Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A,
132 Nathan Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 27307780

Fax: (852) 27307781

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings
of the Company. In addition, shareholders may contact Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong share registrar of
the Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend.

For enquiries from institutional investors and securities analysts, please
contact our investor relations office at:

Address: The Investor Relations Office
Want Want China Holdings Limited
Unit 918, 9/F, Mira Place Tower A,
132 Nathan Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 27307780
Fax: (852) 27307781
Email: investor@want-want.com

COMPANY SECRETARY

Our company secretary, Ms. Lai Hong Yee, is a full-time employee of the
Company. For the year ended 31 March 2021, Ms. Lai confirmed that she
complied with the relevant professional training requirements under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

TSAI Eng-Meng, aged 64, is our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
executive Director and also the chairman of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai
is also a director of a number of the Group’s subsidiaries. He succeeded his
father to become the Group’s Chairman in April 1987. Mr. Tsai joined our
Group and began his career in the food and beverages industry in 1976 and
has over 40 years of experience in the industry. He was a council member of
the Standing Committee of Taiwan Confectionery, Biscuit and Floury Food
Industry Association, and the Food Development Association of Taiwan. In
June 2013, Mr. Tsai was awarded an honorary doctorate degree in business
studies from the Chinese Culture University in Taiwan in recognition of his
outstanding achievements in business operations and active contributions
to social welfare. In 2014, Mr. Tsai was included in the 2014 list of “The
Best-Performing CEOs in the World” released by Harvard Business Review.
In 2018, Mr. Tsai won the honor of meritorious entrepreneur on the 40th
Anniversary of Reform and Opening Up of the China Food Industry. Mr. Tsai
is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and Norwares Overseas Inc.
which have discloseable interests in shares of the Company under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Mr. Tsai is the father of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-
Chia and the uncle of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.

TSAI Shao-Chung, aged 40, is our executive Director and also a member
of our Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy
Committee. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung was our non-executive Director from July
2009 to June 2019 and was re-designated as our executive Director with
effect from 1 July 2019. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is also a director of a number
of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung joined our Group in March
2001, following his graduation from the Canadian International School in
Singapore. He held various management positions within our Group and
had served management roles in several areas such as logistics, human
resources, information technology, planning and operations. Mr. Tsai Shao-
Chung is a director of IBF Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) and was a director of Union
Insurance Company (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation) from 2007 to June 2020. He has been a director of the Straits
Exchange Foundation since March 2009. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is a director
of Want Power Holdings Limited and Norwares Overseas Inc. which have
discloseable interests in shares of the Company under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is the son of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the elder brother of
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia and a cousin of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

TSAI Wang-Chia, aged 36, is our Chief Operating Officer, executive
Director and a member of our Strategy Committee. He is also the chairman
of our Environmental, Social and Governance Committee. Mr. Tsai
Wang-Chia is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of our Group.
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia graduated from the Canadian International School
in Singapore in July 2003. He joined the Group in April 2004 and has
over 15 years of experience in the food and beverage industry. He held
various management positions within our Group such as product marketing
and planning in the snack foods business unit and had also acted as a
manager in the Chairman’s office. He was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the dairy business unit in May 2008 and was promoted to vice
president of the dairy and beverages business group in 2009. He was
appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in December 2012.
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia was awarded the “Outstanding Youth Award
(Technology Innovation)” by the Chinese Institute of Food Science and
Technology in 2015. He is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and
Norwares Overseas Inc. which have discloseable interests in shares of the
Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia is the son of Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng, the younger brother of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and a cousin of Mr.
Cheng Wen-Hsien.

CHU Chi-Wen, aged 55, is our Chief Financial Officer, executive Director
and a member of our Strategy Committee. He is also a member of our
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee. Mr. Chu graduated from
Michigan State University with a master’'s degree in economics in 1992. He
also graduated with a master’s degree in professional accountancy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong & Shanghai National Accounting Institute.
Mr. Chu has over 25 years of experience in financial management. Mr.
Chu is currently an independent non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai
Property Limited (a company listed on the HK Stock Exchange). Before
joining our Group in April 1997, Mr. Chu was a financial analyst for the
Taiwan Provincial Government from 1992 to 1995 and a finance supervisor
at Delta Electronics, Inc. from 1995 to 1996. He worked at Dialer & Business
Co. Ltd from 1996 to 1997 as an assistant finance manager.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

HUANG Yung-Sung, aged 68, is our Chief Marketing Officer, executive
Director and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Huang is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Huang graduated from
Taiwan Mingsin Junior College of Technology with a degree in engineering.
Mr. Huang has more than 30 years of experience in sales and marketing.
He joined our Group in January 1985 and was responsible for planning
and marketing affairs. Mr. Huang was the Group’s general manager for the
East China region from 1995 to 1998, being responsible for the Group’s
operations within such region. In 1999, Mr. Huang became a director of
the Group’s international sales division, being responsible for the Group’s
international sales operation. From 2002 until his appointment as the
Group’s Chief Marketing Officer on 1 March 2015, Mr. Huang served as the
marketing director of the China region.

TSAI Ming-Hui, aged 53, is the general manager of the Group’s Southeast
Asia Development Department, executive Director and also a member
of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai is mainly responsible for the Group
business development and strategy in Southeast Asia. Meanwhile, he is
also responsible for the sales management, brand promotion and market
awareness of our products in Hong Kong and Macau. He is a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tsai graduated from Department
of Mechanical Engineering of Hsinpu Institute of Technology and joined the
Group in March 1995. He has over 20 years of experience in snack food,
beverage sales and team management. He was in a key management role
in the Group’s Taiwan sales department, Shanghai sales management
department, Central China sales region, and Hong Kong and Macau
regions, as well as the business unit general manager.

LAl Hong Yee, aged 53, is our company secretary, executive Director and
also a member of our Strategy Committee. Ms. Lai is a director of Leading
Guide Hongkong Limited and Want Want Indonesia Holdings Pte. Limited,
both are subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lai holds a Bachelor Degree of
Arts in accounting from the City University of Hong Kong. She has over 25
years of experience in company secretarial, finance, accounting and auditing
fields. Ms. Lai joined the Group in February 2008. Prior to joining our Group,
Ms. Lai worked at Gemalto Technologies Asia Limited as financial controller
for over 8 years. She is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

LIAO Ching-Tsun, aged 69, is our Vice Chairman, non-executive Director
and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Liao graduated from
Taipei College of Maritime Technology with a degree in aquatic food
processing. Mr. Liao has more than 40 years of experience in the food and
beverages industry. He joined our Group in July 1977 and held various
positions within the Group such as vice president of the snack foods
business group, head of production section, head of quality control section,
deputy factory manager and factory manager of | Lan Foods Industrial Co.,
Ltd, a subsidiary of our Company. He is one of the pioneers in spearheading
the Group’s China operations. Mr. Liao was our executive Director from
November 2007 to December 2016 and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017.

MAKI Haruo, aged 70, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Maki is the
president of ICCL, a listed company in Japan and one of the leading rice
cracker producers in Japan as well as our technical cooperation partner. Mr.
Maki graduated from Toyama National University with a bachelor’s degree.
Mr. Maki joined ICCL in 1976 and has served ICCL for over 40 years, and
was promoted to become its president in 1998. Mr. Maki joined our Group in
May 2001. He is a director of Want Want Japan Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Company.

CHENG Wen-Hsien, aged 58, is our non-executive Director. He graduated
from the Graduate School of Commerce of Waseda University with a
master’s degree in commerce. Mr. Cheng is the chairman of Hunan Want
Want Hospital Investment Management Co., Ltd. and the chief executive
officer of Hunan Want Want Hospital. Mr. Cheng joined our Group in August
2004. Mr. Cheng is the nephew of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng and a cousin of Mr. Tsai
Shao-Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

TOH David Ka Hock, aged 69, is our independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of our Audit and Risk Management Committee
and Remuneration Committee and also a member of our Nomination
Committee. Mr. Toh holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from the
University of New South Wales, Australia and is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia. Mr. Toh is currently an independent
non-executive director of Ocean Sky International Limited (a company
listed on the Singapore Exchange). During the period from 1975 to 1990,
Mr. Toh worked at various accounting firms in Sydney and Hong Kong. Mr.
Toh joined the then Coopers and Lybrand, Singapore as a tax principal
in 1990 and later served as the head of corporate tax. After Coopers and
Lybrand merged with Pricewaterhouse to form PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Mr. Toh was the leader for providing tax advice on mergers and acquisition
transactions in Asia and the head of China Desk. Mr. Toh retired from
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Singapore in July 2007 and joined our Group
in November 2007. He was an independent commissioner of the Board of
Commissions of PT. Gajah Tunggal Tbk (a company listed on the Indonesia
Stock Exchange) from 2016 to 2018.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

PEIl Kerwei, aged 64, is our independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of our Nomination Committee and a member of our Audit and
Risk Management, Remuneration and Strategy Committees. He is also
a member of our Environmental, Social and Governance Committee.
He graduated from Southern lllinois University with a master’s degree in
accountancy and holds a doctorate degree in accounting from the University
of North Texas. Dr. Pei is a full professor of accountancy at the School
of Accountancy at the W.P Carey School of Business at Arizona State
University. He was the Executive Dean of China Programs at W.P Carey
School of Business at Arizona State University, director of the W.P. Carey
EMBA program in Shanghai, MiM Custom Corporate Program in China
and the co-director of W.P. Carey DBA in Global Financial Management.
Throughout his 35-year career at Arizona State University, Dr. Pei has held
the positions of assistant professor, associate professor and professor. Dr.
Pei has acted as a consultant for a number of multi-national companies,
including Motorola Inc., Intel Corporation, Bank of America Corporation,
Dial Corporation, Raytheon Company, Cisco Systems Inc. and Honeywell
International Inc.. Dr. Pei is an independent non-executive director of Zhong
An Group Limited and Zhejiang Expressway Co., Ltd. and served as an
independent non-executive director of MMG Limited from 2015 to 2019, all
being companies listed on the main board of the HK Stock Exchange. Dr.
Pei is also an external director of China Merchants Group. Dr. Pei served
as an external director of China Baowu Steel Group Corporation Limited,
the holding company of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from 2011 to 2019. He also served as
an independent director (from 2006 to 2012) and a director (from 2012 to
2019) of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd.. Dr. Pei is a member of American
Accounting Association. He was the chairman of the Steering Committee on
Globalization of the American Accounting Association and the chairman of
the Chinese Accounting Professors’ Association of North America. Dr. Pei
joined our Group in November 2007.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

HSIEH Tien-Jen, aged 59, is our independent non-executive Director and
also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee.
Mr. Hsieh graduated from National Taipei University Department of Law with
a Master’s Degree. He was a lawyer at Ding & Ding Law Offices since 1988,
until he established Hsieh, Chi & Hsieh Law Offices in 1991. Mr. Hsieh has
been a partner of Hsieh, Chi & Hsieh Law Offices since its establishment.
Mr. Hsieh has rich experience in commercial law related areas, including
general contract, merger and acquisition, dissolution, liquidation and
bankruptcy. He was a Maritime Law lecturer at Chung Yuan Christian
University from 1993 to 2013. Mr. Hsieh joined the Consumer Education
Foundation of Taiwan as a volunteer in 1995 and was the foundation
chairman during 2008 to 2010. Mr. Hsieh is currently an independent
director of China Television Company Limited and ceased to be an
independent director of Union Insurance Company on 18 June 2019, each
of which is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
Mr. Hsieh joined our Group in June 2018.

LEE Kwok Ming, aged 63, is our independent non-executive Director and
also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee.
He is also a member of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee. Mr. Lee holds a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic and a Master of Science degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bath, United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is
currently an independent non-executive director of Lianhua Supermarket
Holdings Co., Ltd. and Bossini International Holdings Limited, each of which
is a company listed on the HK Stock Exchange. He was the chief financial
officer of Stella International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the HK
Stock Exchange). Mr. Lee has more than 30 years of financial management
experience and extensive experience in corporate finance such as mergers
and acquisitions. He assumed the position of chief financial officer in a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lee
joined our Group in June 2018.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

PAN Chih-Chiang, aged 49, is our independent non-executive Director
and also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee.
Mr. Pan holds a Bachelor Degree in Finance from the National Taiwan
University and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Cambridge, United Kingdom. Mr. Pan is a founding member,
chief executive officer, director and responsible officer of Cypress Capital
Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive global capital market experience
in investment/wealth management industry, covering both institutional
clients including public pension funds, sovereign funds, venture capital
and private equity funds and insurance companies as well as ultra wealthy
families. He started his financial market career in 1997 as cash equity trader
at Jardine Fleming Securities (Taiwan), and later worked for JPMorgan
Asset Management Taiwan between 2003 and 2007 as the head of the
institutional business division providing investment advisory service to public
pension funds and corporate clients. Mr. Pan worked for Goldman Sachs
(Hong Kong) between 2007 and 2013 as portfolio manager/advisor to ultra
wealthy families and corporates. He is licensed to conduct Type 4 (Advising
on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of laws of Hong Kong).
Mr. Pan joined our Group in August 2019.

KONG HO Pui King, Stella, aged 68, is currently the Managing Director,
Greater China at Raffles Family Office. Previously, she was the Managing
Director, Market Group Head, China Il at Credit Suisse Private Banking. In
her prior role at Standard Chartered Bank, Hong Kong as Deputy Regional
Head of Private Banking for Greater China and North Asia, she was
instrumental in building the China offshore team. Mrs. Kong has over 30
years of experience in the banking industry spanning four countries in the
wealth management industry and has held both senior management and
client relationship positions at Credit Suisse, Standard Chartered Bank,
ABN AMRO Bank, Sarasin Rabo Investment Management, UBS, Deutsche
Bank, Natwest and Citibank. She is licensed to conduct Type 4 (Advising on
Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of laws of Hong Kong). Mrs.
Kong joined our Group in July 2021.
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Senior Management

CAO Yong-Mei, aged 48, is the managing director of the manufacturing
and R&D group. Ms. Cao graduated from Jiangnan University (the former
Wuxi University of Light Industry) with a doctoral degree in food science.
She also holds a master’s degree in business administration from the W.P
Carey School of Business at Arizona State University. Ms. Cao joined our
Group in January 2001 and has held various positions, such as manager
of the research and development, manager of the Chairman’s office and
the managing director of the Chairman’s office. In March 2012, Ms. Cao
was promoted to the managing director of the manufacturing department.
In November 2017, Ms Cao was promoted to become the managing
director of the manufacturing and R&D group, responsible for facilitating
sustainable development and talent pool of the Group’s manufacturing,
quality assurances, equipment and R&D teams. Ms. Cao is the director of
our technology center, which is certified as Shanghai Municipal Enterprise
Technology Center, executive director of the Chinese Institute of Food
Science and Technology (“CIFST”) and vice president of Snack Foods
Processing Technology Society of CIFST, director of the Shanghai Society
of Food Science, a member of China Food Industry Brand Strategy Working
Committee, Walmart Food Safety Innovation Council member, credentialing
specialist of China Engineering Education Accreditation Association,
managing director of the Seven-Star Convention Alliance and vice-chair
of the steering committee member of Global Food Safety Initiative China
Local Group. Ms. Cao won the Chinese Institute of Food Science and
Technology’s Outstanding Award in 2017.

LEE Yu-Sheng, aged 63, is the chief investment officer of the Group.
Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of laws degree from the National Chung Hsing
University. He joined our Group in May 1986 and was a director of various
divisions, including the administration division, investment division, legal
division, civil engineering division, equipment engineering division and
human resources division. Mr. Lee was appointed as a representative
member of the Food Development Association in Taiwan in 1999. He has
been a member of the Taiwan Beverage Industries Association and Taiwan
Confectionery, Biscuit and Flour Food Industry Association since 2006 and
a member of the Trademark Examination Quality Consultation Committee of
the Intellectual Property Office, Ministry of Economic Affairs, Taiwan since
2010.
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Senior Management (continued)

LIN Chen-Shih, aged 67, is the technology officer of the Group. Mr. Lin
graduated from National Chung Hsing University with a bachelor’s degree
in food chemistry and engineering. Mr. Lin has more than 40 years of
experience in the food and beverages industry. Mr. Lin was appointed as
the manager of the research and development department in 1995. Since
then, he has held various positions, including the director of the production
department and the managing director of the manufacturing department.
Prior to joining our Group in August 1995, he was the head of the quality
control section at Taiwan Heysong Beverage Holdings Ltd. from 1979 to
1995. Mr. Lin was a director of Shanghai Society of Food Science. Mr. Lin
was awarded the Outstanding Alumni Awards by the National Chung Hsing
University in 2010.

CHEN Chun-Chiang, aged 52, is the managing director of R&D centre.
Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor's degree from the Department of
Food Science of National Chung Hsing University in Taiwan in 1992 and
obtained his master’s degree from Institute of Food Engineering of Da-Yeh
University in 1994. In 1996, Mr. Chen joined the research & development
team of our Group and has been committed to R&D for over twenty years.
He has organized the developments of over a hundred kinds of new
products and applied for multiple patents. Under his leadership, the Group’s
R&D team now has over one hundred talents in various fields, including
food technology research, food testing and analysis, consumer survey and
market research. Mr. Chen is the vice director of our technology center,
which is certified as Shanghai Municipal Enterprise Technology Center, the
vice-president of Potato Food Professional Committee of China National
Food Industry Association, and member of Child Food Society of the CIFST.

TING Hung-Hsing, aged 51, is the managing director of the information
technology centre. Mr. Ting graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and holds a master's degree in hotel and tourism management.
He has worked in the field of information system management for many
years. Mr. Ting joined our Group in February 2006 responsible for
information system development. In 2007 and 2008, he was the deputy
director of the information technology department in charge of information
network and system development. In 2009, Mr. Ting was promoted to
director of the Chairman’s office responsible for facilitating and monitoring
the Group’s overall strategy execution. In 2012, he was promoted as the
managing director of the human resources department in charge of the
human resources function of the Group. In 2013, he served as the deputy
general manager of our Taipei office overseeing the business operations in
Taiwan. Since March 2016, Mr. Ting has served as the managing director of
the information technology centre.
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Senior Management (continued)

CHEN Chien-Chen, aged 55, is the managing directors of the procurement
center and the advertising and communication division of the Group. Mr.
Chen has more than 30 years of experience in trade, futures, logistics,
procurement, advertising and management fields. In 1988, Mr. Chen
obtained a bachelor’s degree from Taiwan National Chung Hsing University.
In 1997, he graduated from the department of business administration of
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. In the same year, Mr. Chen
joined our Group and has held various positions over the past 23 years,
including the vice head of the procurement department, head of the
procurement department, head of advertising and publicity department,
managing director of the procurement division and the managing director of
the media division. Before he joined the Group, he worked at Taiwan Great
Wall Enterprise Limited (a Taiwan listed company) as an assistant manager
of the purchasing department of commodity from 1990 to 1997.

WANG Jinping, aged 52, is the general manager of popsicles business unit.
Ms. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting. In 2002, she obtained a certificate of accounting
profession (advanced level). In 2013, she achieved a master's degree in
business administration from the W.P Carey School of Business at Arizona
State University. Ms. Wang joined our Group in March 1997 and has held
various positions, such as financial head of Harbin subsidiary and marketing
director in charge of the sales in three provinces at North Eastern China. In
August 2002, Ms. Wang was transferred to Shanghai and responsible for
marketing activities of popsicles. In April 2011, she was promoted to the
general manager of beverage business unit, in charge of marketing activities
of popsicles and beverages. Since April 2013, Ms. Wang has served as the
general manager of popsicles business unit, in charge of marketing activities
of “Popsicles”, “Sip & Slurp” and “Dongchi” as well as coordination of new
product launch. Ms. Wang has 22 years of sales experience in the food
industry.
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Our Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and sales of food and beverages.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2021 by business segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A review of the business and performance of the Group, including the
analysis and discussion using financial key performance indicators, during
the year ended 31 March 2021 and the outlook of the Group’s business are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from page 14 and pages 65 to 93 of this Annual
Report respectively. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group can be found throughout the Annual Report including the financial
risks as set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group focuses not only on manufacturing but also on reciprocating the
communities by making sustainable development and social responsibility
contributions as important parts of the Group’s development. The Group
endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates its business, so as
to realise sustainable development and operation.

The Group encourages environmental protection, advocates energy
conservation and emission reduction within the Group by emphasizing
on the importance in protecting natural resources and environment and
promotes the environmental awareness of its employees such that fulfilling
the environmental and social responsibilities to become the common value
and direction as well as job responsibility of the management and every
staff.

The Group adheres to the principle of 3Rs — “Reduce”, “Recycle” and
“Reuse”, promotes green manufacturing and the use of recyclable
environmental-friendly packaging materials, ensures disposition of
hazardous waste by lawful means in accordance with the national
regulations and local environmental requirements and addresses the
consumers’ desire for a healthy and green lifestyle in its product research
and development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

The Group established the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee (‘ESG Committee”) in 2020 and formulated five strategies on
environmental sustainability,which are establishing long-term goals for
sustainable development, engaging participation of stakeholders, attaching
significant importance to investment in environmental protection, using
resources efficiently, and devoting to technological innovation.

The Group sets its goals with reference to the National 14th Five-Year
Plan and Vision 2035, targeting to improve energy and water efficiency in
the next five years by 10% and reduce the Group’s operation greenhouse
gas emission density by 13% from current levels, helping to promote
water conservation and carbon reduction further, among key raw material
suppliers, thereby contributing Want Want'’s efforts to the global use of clean
water and in dealing with climate change.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and
consider further implementation of measures on environmental protection in
the Group’s operations, thereby enhancing environmental sustainability.

Please refer to the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
from pages 18 to 64 of this Annual Report for detailed discussion on the
Company’s environmental policies and performance.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group ensures compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
of the places where the Group has business operations that have material
impact on its operations, including the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

We will closely monitor any changes in government policies, relevant laws
and regulations from time to time and assess the impact of such changes
and seek external advice if considered necessary.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from the
stakeholders, including but not limited to employees, customers (primarily
distributors, modern channel retailers and online and social media platform
providers) and end-consumers, suppliers and shareholders, which is also
the key to its sustainable development. According to the Group’s philosophy
of “People-Oriented, Self-Confidence and Unity”, the Group values highly its
relationships with key stakeholders.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Employees

The Group is committed to establishing a healthy, harmonious and caring
working relationship with employees’ which forms the bedrock of any
successful organization. The Group takes employees’ life and safety as
the top priority. We provide a safe and happy workplace as well as a
grand stage where Want Want staff can unleash their full potentials. We
advocate continuing education and life-long learning to help to enhance the
competitiveness of our employees and endeavor to provide learning and
development platforms with well-designed year-round training programs
for our employees so as to achieve mutual growth and development of the
Group and employees. In addition, we develop competitive incentive plans
and remuneration and benefits programs to recognise, motivate and provide
incentives to those employees who make contribution to the Group.

Customers and consumers

The Group sells its products primarily to distributors who distribute the
products to end points of sales for consumers to choose. The Group also
sells its products directly to modern channel retailers who then on-sell the
products to end-consumers, as well as, sells directly to end-consumers
through emerging channels and various online and social media platforms.

The Group realizes the importance of maintaining good long-term
relationship with its customers (primarily distributors, modern channel
retailers and online and social media platform providers). The Group
continues to look for quality distributor partners who are willing to
collaborate, to review the distributor policy from time to time to ensure its
competitiveness and attractiveness, to guide distributors to experiment with
digital transformation, such as holding online live broadcast, which enables
distributors to reach out to consumers beyond physical geographical
boundaries, expand point-of-sales coverage and accelerate product flow,
and to provide distributors and modern channel retailers with marketing
resources and support so that Want Want products could be delivered and
displayed on the shelves at the points of sales in a timely manner and in
attractive, eye-catching ways. Meanwhile, the Group has also paid great
attention to the inventory management of its distributors to ensure that the
aging of their products would remain highly competitive in the channels and
at the points of sales so that consumers could always enjoy the fine taste of
Want Want products.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Customers and consumers (continued)

In recent years, the Group has made use of different social media platforms
and channels to connect with consumers and create dialogues to enhance
communication and interaction with consumers and to gain consumer
loyalty and insights on the changing market demand so that the Group could
respond proactively. The Group also attempts to deliver more personalized
content and advertisements tailored to the interests and preferences of each
targeted consumer group.

The Group adheres to strict product quality control to safeguard product
quality and safety and has established a quality assurance system covering
the whole supply chain so as to make its products perfect in all aspects,
build great reputation of Want Want brand and let consumers eat with ease,
feel relieved and happy.

Based on the characteristics of different age groups and different demands
from consumers, the Group differentiated and launched a range of brands to
serve consumers precisely and extensively. The Group has also constantly
rolled out products with new flavors and packaging and developed new
products that meet the demands for healthy and nutritious products, novel
packaging and unique flavors, satisfying the diverse needs of consumers.

Upholding the Group’s motto of “Be Caring, Be Attentive and Be
Considerate”, the Group strives to create a high quality and complete
consumption experience for our consumers and serve them with our sincere
and friendly services in exchange for the satisfaction of every customer and
consumer.

Suppliers

The Group generally centralizes the procurement of a majority of its key raw
materials and packaging materials to take advantage of economies of scale
and maximize its bargaining power with suppliers. This approach enables it
to enjoy competitive prices.

The Group has established a stable long-term relationship with its major
suppliers to ensure stable and sustainable supply, quality and timely delivery

of raw materials and packaging materials.

The Group emphasizes the evaluation and selection of suppliers and
persists in sustainable development.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Suppliers (continued)

The Group has established a sound supplier selection process. The Group
also assesses and manages its suppliers from different aspects including
quality, delivery, cost and service and sets up a rating system based on
the assessment result. The Group manages its suppliers according to their
rating and informs them the monthly assessment result in order to work on
areas of improvement with them.

The Group constantly adjusts its supplier structure to facilitate a positive
development in cooperation between the Group and its suppliers and
to establish a long-term strategic partnership with the ultimate goal of
mitigating the Group’s supply chain management risk.

Shareholders

The Company is committed to uphold high corporate governance standards
to promote corporate transparency and accountability and to enhance
shareholders’ value.

The Company recognizes the importance of continuous communications
with its shareholders. Annual general meeting is an important platform for
direct communication between the Company and its shareholders.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021 are
set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 178 and 179 of this Annual Report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”). It is the
policy of the Company that, in recommending or declaring dividends, the
Board shall make distributions to allow its shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate cash reserves for meeting its
requirements for working capital and long-term sustainable development.

The Board has the discretion to propose, declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of Association
of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations and taking into
account the factors set out below.

The Board shall take into account the following factors of the Group when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

(i)  the financial performance and cash flow situation of the Group;

(i) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including future
capital requirements and investment needs;

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

(iv) amount of share repurchases made during the period; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company in general meeting may from time to time declare dividends

to be paid to the members but no dividends shall be declared in excess of

the amount recommended by the Board.

In addition, the Directors may from time to time pay such interim dividends
or special dividends of such amounts and on such dates as they think fit.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or warrant or

by other means that the Board considers appropriate, subject to its Articles
of Association.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of the Company’s
profits or reserves lawfully available for such purposes.

Any dividend unclaimed may be forfeited and shall revert to the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to time.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
An interim dividend of US0.65 cent per share for the year ended 31
March 2021 (for the year ended 31 March 2020: US0.64 cent), totalling
RMB521,051,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2020: RMB557,138,000),
were paid to the shareholders of the Company in December 2020.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of US1.46
cents (for the year ended 31 March 2020: a final dividend of US2.42 cents
and a special dividend of US1.10 cents, totalling US3.52 cents) per share
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021. Subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming 2021 AGM to be held on 17 August 2021,
the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about 8 September 2021.
Shareholders registered under the principal register of members in the
Cayman Islands will automatically receive their dividends in United States
dollars while shareholders registered under the Hong Kong branch register
of members will automatically receive their dividends in Hong Kong dollars.
The Hong Kong dollars final dividend will be calculated with reference to
the exchange rate of United States dollars against Hong Kong dollars on 17
August 2021, being the date of the 2021 AGM on which such final dividend
will be proposed to the shareholders of the Company for approval.

In order to qualify to attend and vote at the forthcoming 2021 AGM, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 pm on 11 August 2021, for the purpose of effecting the
share transfers. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 12 August 2021 to 17 August 2021 (both dates inclusive).
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DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(continued)

In order to qualify for the entitlement to the above mentioned final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 pm on 20 August 2021, for the purpose of effecting the
share transfers. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 21 August 2021 to 25 August 2021 (both dates inclusive).

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to RMB4,278,103,000 (31 March 2020: RMB4,138,810,000). Movements in
the reserves of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set
out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The five largest customers contributed in aggregate less than 30% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The five largest suppliers constituted in aggregate 49% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 March 2021. The largest supplier
accounted for 24% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2021 did the Directors or any
of their close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interests in these suppliers.

2020/20215 R ANNUAL REPORT

BREREEFENRERGEFEREFRE

ARENEGERLMAKREBREES A
FEENHEREE2REAR2021
F8H20H THF4BF30D A EFERAQT
CEBRNBFERIEE BT ARAE
SENAERQA  HiUtAETBREFE
EREBERI18IHEMBL17IE1712F
17165 EHIERMDBFBELFE - A0 F
#EH20215F8 8218 2021588250 (&
FEEMX) BEHERMBEERTFE -

4]

MR2021F3A31H » AR AP IKFEE
A ANR#4,278,103,0007T (20203 A 31
B : AR#®4,138,810,0007T) ° & Z2021
FIANALFE  AQTAZREELEBRN
RE KRR MIEE3 o

A
ARRREZE2021F3831HIEFEHR—E 2
BASE BN TS RRMFT

FEERRHMER
AAREFEHEAEBEE2021F3831H
I EFEERFBERE30% ©

A AREERES R EAEBEE2021F3831
Bt FERBAZEAIY% - T AHERL
REBERIBLRAZE24% o

BES FAFES2EBHEARETTE
BEEMABEADAEBITRAS%U K
BRREZE2021F3A31BILEEHMERE
L ARER 2 R AR o



DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the
publication of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung

Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui

Ms. Lai Hong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Maki Haruo
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock

Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Hsieh Tien-den

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang

Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella (appointed on 1 July 2021)

At the forthcoming 2021 AGM, the Directors retiring by rotation in
accordance with Article 130 of the Articles of Association are Mr. Tsai Shao-
Chung, Mr. Chu Chi-Wen, Mr. Tsai Ming Hui, Mr. Maki Haruo and Mr. Toh
David Ka Hock.

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock has been an independent non-executive Director
since November 2007 and has made valuable contributions to the Board
and the Group over the years. In view of his length of service with the
Company, as well as the code provision on an independent non-executive
director’s length of service under the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Toh has decided and has informed
the Board that he will not offer himself for re-election and accordingly will
retire as Director upon the conclusion of the forthcoming 2021 AGM. Save
for Mr. Toh, all the aforesaid retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella, who was appointed by the Board as an
independent non-executive Director under Article 114 of the Articles of
Association, shall hold office until the forthcoming 2021 AGM and, being

eligible, offer herself for re-election.

The Board was introduced to Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella through
previous business dealings. After considering Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella
on merit and against objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board, taking care that the appointee shall have enough
time available to devote to the position, the Nomination Committee proposed
that Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, and the appointment was subsequently considered and

approved by the Board.

The Company has received a written confirmation from Mrs. Kong
confirming her independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. In addition, she is neither interested in the securities or business
of the Company nor connected with any Director, senior management or
substantial or controlling Shareholders of the Company. The Board therefore

considers Mrs. Kong to be independent.

The Board considers that Mrs. Kong can bring to the Board, and contribute
to the diversity of the Board with, her over 30 years of experience in
the banking industry and extensive global capital market experience in
wealth management industry, as well as her other perspective, skills and
experience (as further described in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this Annual Report). The appointment of Mrs. Kong

will further enhance the gender diversity of the Board.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section

headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2021 AGM do
not have any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

The charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2021 amounted to approximately RMB20,484,000 (for the
year ended 31 March 2020: RMB33,285,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the years ended
31 March 2019, 2020 and 2021, for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2018
and for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2016 and as at 31 March 2018, 2019, 2020
and 2021 are set out in the Financial Summary on page 13 of this Annual
Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers Mr. Toh David Ka Hock, Dr. Pei
Kerwei, Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen, Mr. Lee Kwok Ming and Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang
to be independent.

Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella has confirmed to the Company and the
HK Stock Exchange upon her appointment as being independent for the
purpose of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers Mrs.
Kong Ho Pui King, Stella to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EFERERITRARRALTREHER
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING EEZED - HRABRMRESZELER
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND wRE

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors M2021FE3H318 » AR B EERESITH
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and ABRAARRQ R R EEMEE LR (ERXRF
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the SRABGRG (BBEGESTE) ([FHER
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of BRERAI]) EBEXVER) 2 B2 ~ HERHD RE
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be SRBEBFFRPEIRGIEIS2HREFTERE
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company EMARBEEESTNENERQATARE

and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows: B ERRKBNT ¢
(i) Interests in the Company (long position) (i) RAEXFNER (FR)
Number of ordinary shares held
BREEERYE
Approximate %
Interests in of the issued
Beneficial Family controlled share capital of
interests interests corporations Total the Company
BERATREB/ITR
Name of Directors BExps BEnkEs RikEs ZEGQRER By ARBAEI O
Tsai Eng-Meng L 177,000,000  6,143,843,100®  6,320,843,100 52.3382%
Liao Ching-Tsun gl 90,200 90,200 0.0007%
Tsai Shao-Chung i 101,884,0004 101,884,000 0.8436%
Tsai Wang-Chia EHR 42,000 101,300,000 101,342,000 0.8391%
Huang Yung-Sung BKHA 22,100 22,100 0.0002%
Chu Chi-Wen REX 197,200 197,200 0.0016%
Maki Haruo HEHER 1,100,000 200,000© 1,300,000 0.0108%
Cheng Wen-Hsien BYE 76,600 463,086,040 463,162,640 3.8351%
Tsai Ming-Hui e 57,200 57,200 0.0005%
Lai Hong Yee RER 8,000 8,000 0.0001%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EEREEITRABRF AT R EHEB
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING EEZED c HRABRMRESZELER
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND wKEE

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(i) Interests in an associated corporation of the Company (long (i) RARBEBEENER (FR)

position)
Approximate
% of total issued
Name of the Number of share capital of the
Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interests shares held associated corporation
HEBEBREECRIT
EEpE HEOEE AR REEME BRERODEAE BRABEBABRI L
Tsai Shao-Chung Want Want Holdings Ltd. Beneficial interests 9,665 0.0007%
g&aEh HHEEZERERAR ERER
Notes: MiEE
(1)  Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2021, comprising (1) RERAFR2021F3A31MAZERTR
12,076,924,135 shares. R H¥E12,076,924, 1358 fZ 1D ©

(2) These shares are beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s children under (2 ZEROBEETARERBISHENTLE

the age of 18. R o

(3)  These shares are directly held by Want Power Holdings Limited (“WPHL") and () ZERHADHIAWant Power Holdings
Norwares Overseas Inc. (“NOI”) as to 5,080,063,100 shares and 1,063,780,000 Limited (TWPHLJ) K Norwares Overseas
shares respectively. Both WPHL and NOI are wholly-owned by Mr. Tsai Eng- Inc. (INOIL) B3 #95,080,063,100/% &
Meng. 1,063,780,0008% 17 © WPHLKNOIFFHI %%

FTRASEREHE -

(4)  These shares are directly held by Twitcher Limited, a company wholly-owned (@) ZFR{PETwitcher Limited BE#5A »

by Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung. ZARHRBEBREEDERS -

(5) These shares are directly held by ThemePark Dome Limited, a company (6) “ZZERMHHEThemePark Dome LimitedE

wholly-owned by Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia. BREE MZARHERAREEREHR
ﬁ o

(6)  These shares are beneficially owned by Mr. Maki Haruo’s spouse. (6) ZERDAEFRATLELBESES -

(7)  These shares are directly held by Mr Big Capital Limited and Mr Big Limited as (7) ZZFRB A BIEMr Big Capital Limited
to 163,596,040 shares and 299,490,000 shares respectively. Mr Big Capital KMr Big Limited B 5551 163,596,040
Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien. Mr. Cheng is also the % $. 299,490,000 %14 ° Mr Big Capital
controlling shareholder of Mr Big Limited holding 60% of its shares. Limited I BALEZE IR - BMELER

Mr Big Limited#y#2 iz IR R I #5555 H60% %
% o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors, nor
the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 March 2021, insofar as the Directors are aware, the interests and
short positions of any person, other than any Directors or the chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange, are as
follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

Name of shareholders Nature of interests

of shares held

EERBETRARRFLFRAEHK
EEZEG HRRERASCHEER
(23 46

R EIMATIEE IS - 12021638318 »
BEMADNRESIARSTHRAEREA
AR EEAEEEIE(EERFFRAEK
BISEXVER) 2 B2 10 ~ WEER D NES P ES
EAERIRIEE H R RAIEIS21FRE
BFEZRTMA  SRESEESTAZITA
BERNBRREBUI M2 ERHAR

BrEMFTIREES  MEARTDESIE
BITHAEBRERBIAM18R FLHER
EMERARBEAR R 2B S HITEEM
LEERER] o

REEFRURGEAEERRATHSE
ZHGRkE

R2021F3A318 » RREEME - REH
S RHABHRGIZEIBHRRTEEFTE 2B M
RATE > B THERABREBE AT
EF UTAL (RARESHIESITHAE
BINFBERATRORAEERGD ZEER
REBINMT :

RAR AR (FR)

Approximate % of the
Number issued share capital

of the Company"

EARDT S BITRAMN
PRER %A ERME BEERAEE WO F DD
WPHL Beneficial interests 5,080,063,100@ 42.0642%
BERER
NOI Beneficial interests 1,063,780,000@ 8.8084%
BERER
ICCL Beneficial interests 608,434,480 5.0380%

EanfEn
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO
(continued)

Interest in the Company (long position) (continued)

Note:

(1) Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2021, comprising
12,076,924,135 shares.

(2)  The shares held by WPHL and NOI were beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-
Meng and are the same shares disclosed as Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s interests
in controlled corporations as set out under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company and its associated corporation” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors and the chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which requires disclosure to the Company under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements
headed “Related Party Transactions” and the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party or were parties and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year ended 31 March 2021 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this Annual
Report, the Company had the following non-exempt connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions

San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement

On 28 December 2018, the Company entered into a framework property
lease agreement (the “San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement”)
with San Want, pursuant to which San Want agreed to lease to the Group
certain properties with a total gross area of approximately 31,275 square
meters for two years commencing from 1 January 2019 and expiring on 31
December 2020 (both dates inclusive). Such properties are currently used
and will continue to be used as the Group’s offices in Shanghai.

The annual rent payable under the San Want Framework Property
Lease Agreement shall be RMB47,954,000 and RMB49,399,000 for the
year commencing on 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020, respectively,
exclusive of property management fees and/or utility charges, and shall be
payable in four equal instalments in cash in advance on a quarterly basis
and each instalment (other than the first instalment) shall be payable five
days before the expiry of the rental period of preceding instalment. A deposit
representing one month’s rental and the first instalment are payable upon
signing of the individual lease agreements.

The proposed annual caps of the aggregate rental amount payable by
the Group under the San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement for
each of the years ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 are
RMB47,954,000 and RMB49,399,000 respectively. Such annual caps are
determined by the Company based on the expected floor areas to be leased
from San Want and the rental rates with reference to the market rental
rates of respective properties as at 21 September 2018 and corresponding
expected market rental rates as of the same date of the following year,
as recommended by an independent professional valuer in their valuation
report dated 9 November 2018.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018.

The total rents incurred by the Group for the year ended 31 December

2020 pursuant to the San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement was
RMB49,399,000, which did not exceed the proposed annual cap.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement

On 28 December 2018, the Company also entered into a framework
property lease agreement (the “CTV Framework Property Lease
Agreement”) with China Television Company Limited (“CTV”), pursuant to
which CTV agreed to lease to the Group the premises with a total gross
area of 268.76 Taiwanese Ping, equivalent to approximately 888 square
meters, situated at 1/F and 7/F (the “Premises”) and three car parking slots
on B3 floor, No. 120 Chung-Yang Road, Nangang District, Taipei, Taiwan
(the “Parking Spaces”) for a term of two years commencing from 1 January
2019 and expiring on 31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive). The
Premises are currently used and will continue to be used as office by the
Group while the Parking Spaces in the same building would be used by its
staff.

Pursuant to the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement, the monthly
after-tax rental of the Premises is NTD409,187 (inclusive NTD56,439.6 for
the management fee and NTD42,329.7 for the air-conditioning charges) and
that of the Parking Spaces is NTD6,300, totalling NTD415,487 per month.
Electricity will be charged, on a monthly basis, at NTD4.725 per kWh ()
based on the actual electricity consumption by the Group.

The total annual rental payable for the Premises and Parking Spaces under
the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement shall be NTD4,985,844
for each of the years commencing on 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020,
exclusive of electricity, gas and all other costs incurred by the Group in
relation to the Premises and Parking Spaces. The rental shall be payable in
cash on a monthly basis on or before 25th of each calendar month during
the term of the lease. A deposit of approximately NTD830,974, representing
two months’ rental are payable upon signing of and in accordance with the
individual lease agreement. The electricity charge of each calendar month
shall be payable in cash on or before 25th of the following month during the
term of the lease.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement (continued)

The proposed annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the CTV
Framework Property Lease Agreement for each of the years ending 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2020 is NTD5,439,444, which represents
the aggregate of the after-tax amount of annual rent, management fee and
air-conditioning charges for NTD4,985,844 together with the estimated
annual electricity charges for NTD453,600 payable by the Group to CTV
under the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement. Such annual cap
is determined by the Company based on the expected floor areas and
number of car parking slots to be leased from CTV and the rental rates with
reference to the market rental rates for the Premises as at 1 November
2018 as recommended by independent professional valuer, previous actual
electricity consumption and certain buffer to cater for the possible increase
in electricity and other outgoing charges incurred by the Group in relation to
the Premises.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018.

The total rents incurred by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 pursuant to the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement was
NTD3,144,000, which did not exceed the proposed annual cap.

Tenancy Agreement

On 21 January 2020, Shanghai Want Want Foods Group Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Want Want”), a subsidiary of the Company that indirectly owned
as t0 99.99% by the Company, as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement
(the “Tenancy Agreement”) with Shanghai Want Qi Corporate Management
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Want Qi”), as landlord, in respect of the lease of Block
53 located at No. 488 Hong Xu Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, PRC
(the “Property”) with a total gross rental area of approximately 3,205 square
meters for a term of one year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both dates inclusive). The Property is used by the modern distribution
channel business unit as offices.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Tenancy Agreement (continued)

The monthly rent (exclusive of water, electricity, cable television, gas,
heating, sanitary, telecommunication, property related fees and other
charges and outgoings) during the lease term is RMB377,869.50 per month.

The monthly rent (except for the rent for the first month) shall be payable in
advance by the Tenant to the Landlord 5 days before the commencement
of each calendar month. The rent for the first month shall be payable upon
signing of the Tenancy Agreement.

A rental deposit in the sum of RMB377,869.50, representing one month’s
rental, shall be payable upon signing of the Tenancy Agreement and shall
be refundable (without interest) to the Tenant at the end of the lease after
the Tenant shall have delivered up to the Landlord vacant possession of the
Property.

The proposed annual cap of the rental amount payable by the Group
under the Tenancy Agreement for the year ending 31 December 2020 is
RMB4,534,434. Such annual cap was determined based on the expected
floor areas to be leased and the rental rates with reference to the market
rental rates for the Property as at 25 November 2019 and expected
market rental rate for the year 2020, as recommended by an independent
professional valuer in a valuation report dated 9 December 2019.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 21
January 2020 for details.

The rent incurred by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement was RMB4,534,000, which did not
exceed the proposed annual cap.

Each of the San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement, CTV
Framework Property Lease agreement and Tenancy Agreement were
renewed on 15 January 2021. Please refer to “Connected Transactions —
Renewal of Property Lease Agreements” below for further details.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

CTI Framework Advertising Agreement

The Company entered into the framework advertising agreement (the “CTI
Framework Advertising Agreement”) with CTI Television Incorporation (“CTI”)
on 28 December 2018 in respect of the purchase of advertising airtime at
the CTI’s television channels for a term of two years from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive).

The annual amount of advertising cost payable under the CTl Framework
Advertising Agreement shall be US$5,000,000 for each of the years
commencing on 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020, subject to adjustments
based on the total actual broadcasting airtime incurred during the year as
provided by CTl and to be agreed by the Group not later than 25 December
in each year. Pursuant to the CTl Framework Advertising Agreement, for
each year during the term, the first instalment of US$2,500,000, representing
50% of the annual contract amount, shall be payable not later than 30 June
while the remaining balance adjusted based on the actual broadcasting
airtime incurred during the year shall be payable within 15 days after receipt
of the invoice issued by CTIl and not later than 25 December (or such a later
date as the parties may agree).

The proposed annual cap of the advertising cost payable by the Group
under the CTIl Framework Advertising Agreement for each of the years
ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 is US$5,000,000. Such
annual cap is determined by the Group based on the expected number of
advertising airtime, broadcasting time slots and broadcasting programmes
with reference to the rates provided by CTI for the tenure of the CTI
Framework Advertising Agreement. A service fee at 10% of the advertising
cost will also be charged by CTI pursuant to the CTI Framework Advertising
Agreement, which has been included in the annual cap set out above.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018.

The amounts of advertising cost paid by the Group for the year ended 31

December 2020 pursuant to the CTl Framework Advertising Agreement was
US$360,000, which did not exceed the proposed annual cap.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement

On 28 December 2018, the Company entered into a framework advertising
agreement (the “Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement”) with
Infotimes Corporation (“Infotimes”) in respect of the provision of advertising
services to broadcast advertisements produced by the Group on various
online platforms operated by Infotimes for a term of two years from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive).

The annual amount of advertising cost payable under the Infotimes
Framework Advertising Agreement shall be US$3,000,000 for each of the
years commencing on 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020, subject to
adjustments based on the total actual usage by the Group measured by the
number of impressions incurred during the year as provided by Infotimes
and to be agreed by the Group not later than 25 December in each year.
Pursuant to the Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement, for each year
during the term, the first instalment of US$1,500,000, representing 50% of
the annual contract amount, shall be payable not later than 30 June while
the remaining balance adjusted based on the total actual usage according to
the number of impressions incurred during the year shall be payable within
15 days after receipt of the invoice issued by Infotimes and not later than 25
December (or such a later date as the parties may agree).

The proposed annual cap of the advertising cost payable by the Group
under the Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement for each of the years
ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 is US$3,000,000. Such
annual cap is determined by the Group based on the expected number of
impressions and cost per impression with reference to the rates per 1,000
impressions offered by Infotimes, depending on the size, format, timing,
duration and displaying area and media of the advertisement for the tenure
of the Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement (continued)

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018.

The amounts of advertising cost paid by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 pursuant to the Infotimes Framework Advertising
Agreement was US$0, which did not exceed the proposed annual cap.

Each of CTl Framework Advertising Agreement and the Infotimes
Framework Advertising Agreement was not renewed upon expiry of its term
on 31 December 2020.

Water God (7 1#) Framework Agreement

On 3 April 2020, the Company and San Want entered into a framework
agreement (“Water God Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which (i) the
Group agreed to provide processing services and packaging materials to
San Want in respect of certain “Water God (7k¥#)” branded antiseptic and
sanitizing products (“Products”) (“Processing Services Transaction”), and
(i) San Want Group agreed to sell, and the Group agreed to purchase,
the Products for onward sales and distributions (“Product Purchase
Transaction”) for a term of one year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

The principal terms of the Water God Framework Agreement are set out
below:

Date of agreement
3 April 2020

Parties
(1) The Company
(2) San Want

Members of the Group and subsidiaries of San Want (together with San
Want, the “San Want Group”) may enter into separate agreement(s)/
purchase orders which set out the quantity, date and place of delivery and
other terms pursuant to the Water God Framework Agreement.

Term
1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

2020/20215 R ANNUAL REPORT

MEXHRSBRMEXS (&)

HERERS (#

RFeIEZE B & B in ik ()
ERE-SHBIENEKLTBHH2018F
12B28A 2R

AEBREBEMERESRHGIHENEZR
202012831 AL EECZEERMERA
0=t WEBHERFEE LR -

hREREERMIHERSMERES R
ol =& B R20205F12 A3 1 BRI BRI &

KIBAELR 17 %

RAE) B AE 202054 B3 H R L —1HAE
ZifE (KEERTZE]D - Bt 52020
FAR1HEZE2021F3A3MH LA —F
HE - (VA EERERKE]RERER
HEEM([Em]) neREEREN IR
BREEMB(TMIRBERS])  R(i)E®
HFEERENAEREERTEERED
HHEEEEER  UHETHENDH
(ERBEXRS] -

KPER BB EERRESIMNT ¢

tih =% H 5

2020548 3H

[Vl
(1) A2F
(2) *REE

ANEE B AL S B2 A BE VB B A B (B3 BEAR
R HEEE ) RBKERB RS TR
MHBAHE - AT H MM R E AR
Mt BBERTE o

HARR
202054 B1HE202153A31H



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (7 #) Framework Agreement (continued)
The Products

“Water God (7k#)” branded antiseptic and sanitizing products, mainly
including antiseptic liquids, wipes, feminine hygiene wash, antiseptic sprays,
mouthwash and other consumables.

Nature of the transactions contemplated under the Water God Framework
Agreement

(1) Processing Services Transaction

San Want Group shall provide raw materials to the Group for
manufacturing certain Products (being “Water God (7k##)” branded
antiseptic liquids). The Group shall then, upon receiving such raw
materials, process and manufacture such Products in accordance with
the specifications and requirements provided by San Want Group.
The Group shall also provide and sell certain packaging materials
(e.g. paper carton box, plastic preform, tapes, etc.) relating to such
Products to San Want Group.

(2) Product Purchase Transaction
San Want Group shall sell, and the Group shall purchase, the Products
for onward sale and distribution through the Group’s distribution
channels.

Pricing Terms

(1) Processing Services Transaction
The Group shall charge San Want Group the processing fees on
a cost-plus basis, which will be determined based on the direct
processing costs incurred by the Group (including, among others,
labour costs and variable production costs), in addition to a profit
margin of 5% of the direct production costs incurred (including, among
others, raw materials costs, packaging material costs, labour costs
and variable production costs), inclusive of value-added tax. The
Group shall also charge for the packaging materials (e.g. paper carton
box, plastic preform, tapes, etc.) on an actual purchase cost basis.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (7k¥#) Framework Agreement (continued)
Pricing Terms (continued)
(2) Product Purchase Transaction

San Want Group shall offer the most favourable selling price to
the Group which shall represent a discount to San Want Group’s
recommended retail prices to end consumers for the Products in
different packaging specifications (inclusive of value-added tax), and
such discount shall not be less than the discount offered by San Want
Group to its other customers.

Since there are more than a dozen of items involved in the Products
and the discounts applied vary materially for different items of different
specifications and targeted distribution channels, the Board takes the
view that the specific numbers of discounts offered to the Group are
commercially sensitive, and the disclosure of the same may not be
meaningful to the Shareholders.

In assessing the discounts offered by San Want Group to the Group,
the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) were
provided with a schedule setting out the discounts offered by San
Want Group to the Group and its other customers for each item of the
Products before entering into the Water God Framework Agreement. As
part of the internal control procedures, the finance department of the
Company will perform this procedure again every three months during
the term of the Water God Framework Agreement to ensure that the
discounts offered to the Group are not less than the discounts offered
by San Want Group to its other customers.

The pricing terms of the transactions contemplated under the Water God
Framework Agreement were negotiated on an arm’s length basis, and
determined in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial terms
or better, and are no less favourable to the Group than those available with
independent third parties.

Payment Terms

Subsidiaries of San Want shall pay for the processing fees and the
packaging material under the Processing Services Transaction within 30
days after receipt of the invoices.

Members of the Group shall pay the purchase price under the Product
Purchase Transaction within 30 days after the completion of inspection for
acceptance and receipt of invoices of the relevant Products.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING REXHRIGEMER S &)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued) BEBRERS (&)

Water God (7k¥#) Framework Agreement (continued) IKIBELR W5 o (AF)

Proposed annual caps EERFELR

(1) Processing Services Transaction (1) MIRBKRS
The proposed annual cap in respect of the Processing Services FROK IR SR 15 5 10 T BRAE1T A9 A0 T AR
Transaction contemplated under the Water God Framework BRFE2020F4A1HE202143
Agreement for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 is A3EHBzEZRFELRAARE
RMB10,700,000. The annual cap was determined after taking into 10,700,0007T ° FE LIRREZEEE
account the unit processing fees and the related packaging material ARAMEMEMINTERABESEM
cost, as well as the expected amount of certain Products (being “Water BB TE A I T L8 7 m (RD
God (7k¥#)” branded antiseptic liquids) to be processed during the [k | G R BRER) BB FREERE o
term.

(2) Product Purchase Transaction 2 EmBEXS
The proposed annual cap in respect of the Product Purchase PAKHERGRETRENERBE
Transaction contemplated under the Water God Framework R5TE2020F4A1HE2021%F3 A
Agreement for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 is S1HBEZERFELRAARY
RMB65,300,000. The annual cap was determined after taking into 65,300,000 ° FE LREZEZREE
account the purchase price of the Products and the expected purchase FRPBNERBEERANRBKE
quantities of the Products to be onward sold and distributed through BRAEESHREHFHEN S HENER
the Group’s distribution channels during the term. HEEE -

By entering into the Water God Framework Agreement, the Group believes BIBFT I KMIERTE > AEBTEEH
that it is able to leverage on its existing production capacities as well as AFNAERAENEERIREEN D HE
sales and distribution capabilities, to achieve a more efficient and effective ho RMEBREAAREENER - I
usage of the Group’s resources, and will provide the Group with a new EHAEERHAIBRATR

source of revenue.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 BRAE—ZFHBHNA QR A # H202054
April 2020. B3BzZA%E -

The Group did not provide any processing services under the Processing AEBRNEZE202153 831 1L FEHRELE
Services Transaction during the year ended 31 March 2021. Accordingly, AR A5 N TR A5 X 5 12 AR AT A0 TR AR o 8
no processing fees nor packaging material cost were received by the It REMITRBRZWERIMTE KA
Group under the Processing Services Transaction. The amount of Products BEEMHNERARET MAKEREZE
purchased by the Group under the Product Purchase Transaction for the 2021F3A3MELFERBERBERS 2K
year ended 31 March 2021 was RMB45,849,000, which did not exceed the BeiEAARY45,849,000T @ WREH
proposed annual cap. BRFELR-

The Water God Framework Agreement was not renewed upon expiry of its IRIREZR 2021 F3 A 31 A I MR &
term on 31 March 2021. i
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Listing Rules Implications

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive
Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, is the controlling
shareholder of San Want, CTV, Shanghai Want Qi, CTl and Infotimes,
therefore each of San Want, CTV, Shanghai Want Qi, CTI and Infotimes is
an associate of Mr. Tsai and a connected person of the Company within the
meaning of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under each
of the abovementioned framework property lease agreements, tenancy
agreement, framework advertising agreements and Water God Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

As the highest of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing
Rules in respect of each of (i) the San Want Framework Property Lease
Agreement, the CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement and the
Tenancy Agreement on an aggregated basis; (ii) the CTI Framework
Advertising Agreement and the Infotimes Framework Advertising Agreement
on an aggregate basis; and (iii) the Water God Framework Agreement, is,
on an annual basis, more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
contemplated thereunder are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2020/20215 R ANNUAL REPORT

MEXHRSBRMEXS (&)

BHEEERS (@)

EFRRANEE

RABER  THAR BITESRER
REREITHLCERHE - P~ LB
R>PREARBREMOEZERRR - B
I RELETRAUNES @ @ - PR
EBER - PREARKFHREMBEEL
ENBBEARAATNWEEAL ML
ZE-HEERYERER S HEWHE
ERESBEMBERKSEERBZET
BUETHRZ B ARANSERER
5 o

MR LR R E AR () S EERYEEE
Wk - PRERMEEEHBEREERH R
BEOEE S ()P RIERESRMITHER
BFAEZR R S B iR IR S Ot & © R (iii)
KEERBETAEANRS A D LRE
FEFEDHIESR0.1%EENR% - HIE
THHETHRZRABT LHRAE14AEN
i - FEEHRLERAE  BERRE
SPREALBRRHLERTE ©



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that each of
the transactions has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the HK Stock Exchange.

2020720214 ANNUAL REPORT |G

o Bl BEBE ERFRA T
EEgRE
Report of the Directors

MEXHRISERERS #)

HERRERS (@)

BIUFHTES 2R

BB FRATESCEN LAAREE
ZEBREERS  WHEIBBEXZHET
517 AT

(1) MAKEEEXEBBREFRIL

(2) BE—RBERFETL  EDNERE
MEZ=FAREHMEZEREFE
MME)FT L 5 &

() REEFRBERATEERFEER
BIRRERBE NI 2 RFRFT AL ©

ARBCRBEBESMOSRMANE SR
S ERISE30005% B L B E R FX
HEHUNSZERTEIRSEERHAE
7405R BB LM RARENFERER S
MERBETRMF]  ZREEREMBREAEE
CEBRERS - AR A ZHRBEESRE
EHRAIE14A 56/ LB B ERERE L
MISHEBER S 2 BEARNEWZER
BEREM - AT C % BETH BRI
HRIAER FE BB



F Bl BEBE ERAFRAT
EEERE
Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions
Renewal of Property Lease Agreements

On 15 January 2021, certain members of the Group, as tenants, entered
into the property lease agreements with the relevant landlords (as tabled
below), in respect of the renewal of the leases of certain properties under
the abovementioned San Want Framework Property Lease Agreement,
CTV Framework Property Lease Agreement and Tenancy Agreement, to
continue to lease and use the properties as offices, with each property for a
term of two years and three months from 1 January 2021 to 31 March 2023
(both dates inclusive).

Details of each of the property lease agreements dated 15 January 2021
are set out below:

Monthly after-tax

rental (exclusive of

water, electricity

MEXHRSEREXS (&)

BERXS

BHEYVERERZ

R2021F1 8158 AEEEZETHE AT
(ERAMR) EEBALALS (RTRINEE
Lt IR ERE R - PRIEEY
¥HEMEREERETETYENEE
I MERENE  BHERRZEWEE
WAZE > SEVEHAENRABME=1E
B B2021F181B#£%E2023%3H318
I (BFEERERMA) °

& BEB202151 9150 ML B
BT :

Rental Deposit

Property charges and Payable in cash
Lease Property/Gross area outgoings) (payable  upon signing of
Agreements Landlords Tenants under lease by cash) agreement Payment terms
gAKL(BH) (FRE
nE KEERAMER) (N RETHEEAE
BEmE  HER ELih N/ REREER REXM) INMEERE  ARKHE
(A) Want Want (China) ~ Shanghai Want Want 26,249 sq.m. of property ~ 1/1/2021-31/3/2022: RMB3,543,615 The rent for the first month shall be
Investment Co., Foods Group Co., located at No. 1088 RMB3,543,615.0 AK#3,543,61570 payable on the day of signing of the
Limited (‘Landlord  Ltd. (‘Shanghai Want ~ East Hong Song Road, ~ AR#3,543,615.07 Property Lease Agreement.
1) Want') Shanghai, PRC (*Property BRSESBRETNEREREE
W (PEREGR LEHERREEER 1) 11412022-31/3/2023; Ao
RA(HAA1)) DR (LSRR fURTE LSANRE  RMB3575,1138
108835 MM ([%1))  AR™3575,113.87% Thereafter, the monthly rent shall be
126,249 F K payable in advance by the Tenant
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions (continued)
Renewal of Property Lease Agreements (continued)

Monthly after-tax
rental (exclusive of
water, electricity

MEXHRISERERS #)

ERL/E ARG

Rental Deposit

Property charges and Payable in cash
Lease Property/Gross area outgoings) (payable  upon signing of
Agreements Landlords Tenants under lease by cash) agreement Payment terms
BAHE(RH) (TR
nE KEERAMER) (N RETHEEARE
BEHE  WER ELi] %/ HEEEER REexf) IANEERE  ARKRH
(B) Shanghai Want Shanghai Want Want 3,975 sq.m. of property ~ 1/1/2021-31/3/2022: RMB484,155 The rent for the first month shall be
Gong Trading Co.,  L/BHHE located at No. 558 Hong ~ RMB484,155.0 ARM484,1557T  payable on the day of signing of the
Limited (“Landlord Xu Road, Shanghai, PRC A K#484,155.07C Property Lease Agreement.
2) (‘Property 2') RERESERETNFREHERE
LEREFEARD LA LBILFTR5585,  1/4/2022-31/3/2023: Asf o
& ([hns2) B9 (41%21)/3,975F  RMB488,925.0
FK AR#488,925.07 Thereafter, the monthly rent shall be
payable in advance by the Tenant
to the Landlord 10 days before the
expiry of the preceding month.
NEAEREEGARBHRAT0R
INT-HARFILAR -
(C) Landlord 2 Hunan Want Want 1,300 sq.m. of Property 2 1/1/2021-31/3/2022: RMB158,340 The rent for the first month shall be
et H) Foods Ltd., Shanghai ~ #12/1,300 /5% RMB158,340.0 AE#158.3407  payable on the day of signing of the
branch office ARH158,340.07 Property Lease Agreement.
HEEERRERAR RESHSANRITNFEEHER
LEAAT 1/412022-31/3/2023: A%ffe
RMB159,900.0
AE#159,900.07 Thereafter, the monthly rent shall be

payable in advance by the Tenant
to the Landlord 10 days before the
expiry of the preceding month.
D&FEA R ARRMRAT0R
XN T-HARFILAES -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING REXSRIGHRRERS (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions (continued) BERXS (&
Renewal of Property Lease Agreements (continued) EFtyELEN N E A=)
Monthly after-tax
rental (exclusive of
water, electricity Rental Deposit
Property charges and Payable in cash
Lease Property/Gross area outgoings) (payable  upon signing of
Agreements Landlords Tenants under lease by cash) agreement Payment terms
BAAE(RH) (TR
ES KEERHMER) (L RETHEERE
BEHE  WEA REE %/ HEEEER REXH) INWEERE  ARERE
(D) Shanghai Want Shanghai Want Want 3,205 sq.m. of Block 111/2021-31/3/2022: RMB390,369 The rent for the first month shall be
Qi Corporate LgHRE 53 located at No. 488 RMB390,369.0 AKM390,3697C  payable on the day of signing of the
Management Co., Hong Xu Road, Minhang ~ AR#390,369.07T Property Lease Agreement.
Ltd. (‘Landlord 3) District, Shanghai, PRC BEBRSBRETNERENEE
PERFAEERE (“Property 3") 1/412022-31/3/2023: A%ffe
RAR ([HARS3)) WATELEHETEL  RMB3%4,215.0
FTH4BRO3ME ([M1%£3]) AR™394,215.07 Thereafter, the monthly rent shall be
13,205F 55K payable in advance by the Tenant
to the Landlord 10 days before the
expiry of the preceding month.
WERRAAEGARBERA0K
IAT-HMARTFILAES
(E) CTV (‘Landlord 4)  ILan Foods Industrial ~ 167.96 Taiwanese Ping  1/1/2021-31/3/2023: NTD524,038 Monthly rent shall be payable by the
TR ((E8EA4])  Co,Ltd. () of 7IF, No. 120 Property 4: #A%524,0387L  Tenant to the Landlord on or before
HERRIERHBER Chung-Yang Road, NTD255,719 25th of each month.
2R Nangang District, Taipei, ~ #1%4: SRESEHARATERBARZ
Taiwan region (‘Property ~ $iA#255 7197t A iR o
4")and 3 parking spaces
on B3 floor of the same ~ Parking Spaces:
building (“Parking NTD6,300
Spaces’) BEfl
UREERERLTEE  HME%6300%T
BERE12087 (T
%41)167 96 RAER -
EAEBIEM3EREL
(ML)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions (continued)
Renewal of Property Lease Agreements (continued)

According to HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the Group, as the lessees, is required
to recognise the leases as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet of the Group. As such, entering into the
property lease agreement (A), property lease agreement (B), property lease
agreement (C), property lease agreement (D) and property lease agreement
(E) (collectively, the “Property Lease Agreements”) and the transactions
contemplated thereunder would be regarded as acquisitions of assets by
the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Each of the Landlord 1, Landlord 2, Landlord 3 and Landlord 4 (collectively,
the “Landlords”) is an associate of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (the chairman,
chief executive officer, an executive Director and the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company) and hence a connected person of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules and the lease transactions
contemplated under the Property Lease Agreements constitute connected
transactions of the Company.

As the highest of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
aggregate value of the right-of-use assets to be recognised by the Group
under the Property Lease Agreements is more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the lease transactions contemplated under the Property Lease Agreements
are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but are exempt
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 15
January 2021.

The Group recognised total right-of-use assets and total lease liabilities of
RMB120,122,000 each in relation to the Property Lease Agreements.
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MBEEA > Bt RELETRAUINES
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BRANEAEREEREMERANESED
EERZ 0. 1%EEN5% - WEEEHRER
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PRERHLERTE ©
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules, except for the transactions described in the paragraph
headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions”,
in respect of which the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company repurchased a total of
338,260,000 shares on the HK Stock Exchange for an aggregate amount
(excluding expenses) of HK$1,854,384,711 and such repurchased shares
were cancelled. Particulars of the shares repurchased on the HK Stock

MEXHRSBRMEXS (&)

AR5
REBREBZE2021F3831HEFER L
CERBBHARSHBERGEVHRE
MizE32 - RRBEER S RISERERS ]
—EFTRN R Z (MRS BB EHiE A
FIAAZNRE) I ZEBBR AR ZHE
BRATFTHERENBEERZ (EERLHR
A1) o

MRE  HEROFAFT LHES

HZE2021F£3 831 BLEFE  AQAHE
BB T AREE (T BEE F)1854,384,711
B TiEE 4 = 338,260,000 B A% 11 0 52
EEEZRMDIGEEHE - HEREBER

Exchange during the period are as follows: BRI D 2 BT ¢
Aggregate
Total number Highest Lowest amount paid
of shares price paid price paid (excluding
repurchased per share per share expenses)
Month of XfER XHER XSHEE
repurchases BE A% BB O B R 4R 8 BEE BI&E (TEEEA)
(HK$) (HKS) (HKS)
(&) (&) (B7)
August 2020 2020 % 8 A 41,148,000 5.49 5.27 221,069,180
September 2020 2020 % 9 A 99,724,000 5.51 5.19 535,963,961
October 2020 202010 A 46,723,000 5.46 517 246,103,010
December 2020 2020 £ 12 A 54,852,000 5.63 5.34 300,241,710
January 2021 2021 1A 8,000,000 5.47 5.33 43,186,390
February 2021 2021 %2 A 43,813,000 6.04 5.52 250,653,620
March 2021 2021 % 3 A 44,000,000 6.14 5.60 257,166,840
338,260,000 1,854,384,711
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES (continued)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date of 31 March 2021 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company repurchased a total of 51,684,000 shares
on the HK Stock Exchange for an aggregate amount (excluding expenses)
of HK$297,152,450. Such repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled. The number of issued shares of the Company as at the date
of this annual report is 12,025,240,135 shares. Particulars of the shares
repurchased on the HK Stock Exchange after the balance sheet date are as
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MRE  HENROFEAFT ELHES &)

MN2021E3 31 HEEEBEXRBHEZE
ZERFEHRAH > AQREEBETUL
5 (TEREE M) 297,152,450 B TEE & H
51,684,000 R BR 17 - ZZEEBEZRMHE
BEENGESE - RAFRAH » KATSHIT
RVEE & 12,025,240,135 i - REESA
BEROMEEEBHIMBRIRKRGD 2FE

follows: I
Aggregate
Total number Highest Lowest amount paid
of shares price paid price paid (excluding
repurchased per share per share expenses)
Month of X fER SANEST: XHBE
repurchases BE A% e R AR B=E BEE (FEEER)
(HK$) (HK$) (HKS)
(B) (B) (B7)
April 2021 2021 ¥4 A 35,421,000 5.90 5.62 203,833,190
May 2021 2021 ¥ 5 A 16,263,000 5.79 5.60 93,319,260
51,684,000 297,152,450

The Directors of the Company believe that the above repurchases are
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share of the
Company.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities (including the
Bonds) of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the
date of this Annual Report.

ARBEBSHEELARBIHEARAR
HRRz2BENZ  LAIRSALQAZE

REA

HZE20215E3831 AL EERBEEAERIR
“H o BRERESN » NDTREEMM

\\\\\\

ZEmEs (BEES) -
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

Details of compliance by the Group with the Model Code are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 94 to 123 of this Annual Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’ AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (“Companies
Law”), every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
loss or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or
other officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is
acquitted. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this Annual
Report in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against the
Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of their duties or in
relation thereto.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands (where the Company is
incorporated) which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders first.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the level of public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March
2021 and has continued to maintain a public float as at 22 June 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the two years ended 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”). PwC will retire as the auditors of the Company upon expiration of
its current term of office at the conclusion of the forthcoming 2021 AGM of
the Company to be held on 17 August 2021.
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ESETESFXAZERETA

AEBBTEESAZFHE  HRAFR
FUAE123E 2 [EERREH -

BHEFZAEREREFFATHRARZ
HEEE
REAGDZERARMEBAEHRESATE(A
ED ZERR - BRES ~ REEIR
KATEMITHRAEEEREARATANEE
PESTHE LUREEFEAES  ZEE
RAQABHMITHRAESEEHBRIEH
ERNTARBRAMEEEZFATETR
HMAREESN—BAREE - RE
F2021F3A31HILEFEHEREEARER
RER ARFAECRHEENESRITH
ABERRE  REFSEBETERER
SRR ERENERSE -

ZEWER
RAERMAUN AR AEMA L BEFHE
BEZERLEBARNELHBEENSRE
HSARALABRELAEBERRRE
SR -

ERALRIEKRE
RERNDNTFMENNLARERLURRES
% AR BRBZE2021F3A3MBLEFE
—H#SEITTRIFREZARERE -
EERE2021F6 A2 AT & o

B BE
BORMKESTESKAM(TEBERKE]
EEFZEE2020F3 318 &2021F3A31
HIEMEFEZFEMKEHRE - BERUK
B EHEBRERN2021FE8 817 B ETH
RAFERE2021FRERBFRELERER
B BRERQTRZEED o



AUDITOR (continued)

The Board has resolved, with recommendation from the Audit and Risk
Management Committee of the Company, to propose the appointment of
Ernst & Young as the new auditors of the Company following the retirement
of PwC, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at
the 2021 AGM. PwC has been the auditors of the Company since 2007.
Consistent with good corporate governance practice, the Board considered
that change of auditors will help enhance the independence of the auditors.
The Board is of the view that the proposal for appointing Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company should be in the best interest of the Company and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board has also confirmed that there are no disagreements or
outstanding matters between the Company and PwC, and the Board is not
aware of any other matters in relation to the change of auditors that need to

be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

An ordinary resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming 2021 AGM to
appoint Ernst & Young as the new auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Tsai Eng-Meng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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To the shareholders of Want Want China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Want Want China Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 176 to
284, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021;
. the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2021;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2021;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31
March 2021;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March
2021; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

. Income Tax Provisions

2020/20214 3 ANNUAL REPORT

ERNER

BMORBETBEHMASHEAN(ERE

SR ([BBFTER ) ETET - HA
EZEEATRENEECSESREZH
Rl BEE RS B mRAENEEIMDH
YR — DML o

RFAMEE  RAMESHESBRREERE
KEEMDARMNETZREHER -

B

REEBSTMASEMAN(EESEEE
R (A - RPBYNESE - I
EBET RPN HMEEERESE -

BRETSEA

HRETFSRERBERMANEXEXE R
AHAHGEUBRRNEARAEEN
B  EUSHRERMSFAEREGSY
BHEARHASREFETEEN - AL
SHELEHEEHEBNER -

BMEEFSPEIINERETSELM W
T :
. Wt HEEY

< FRSBiIRE



B 2B E

F Bl BEBE ERAFRAT

Independent Auditor’'s Report

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

Refer to Note 2.22 Revenue Recognition:
Sales of goods and Note 5 Revenue and
segment information in the consolidated

financial statements.

During year ended 31 March 2021, the
Group has recognised revenue from

sales of goods of RMB21,998,400,000.

Revenue is recognised when the control
of the underlying products has been

transferred to the customers.

We focused on this area due to the
huge volume of revenue transactions
generated in many different locations
and from various customers, and thus
significant time and resource were

devoted in this area.

Income Tax Provisions

Refer fo Note 4 Critical accounting
estimates and judgments and Note 27
Income tax expense in the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group has recognised current
income tax expense on profit for the
year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to

RMB1,568,502,000.

The Group is mainly subject to income
tax in the People’s Republic of China.
Significant judgements are required in
determining the provision for income
taxes as tax treatments and practices

may vary across different regions.

We focused on this area due to the
inherent complexity and judgements in
estimating the amounts of tax provisions

required.

We understood, evaluated and tested management's key
controls in respect of the Group's sales transactions from
contract approval, recording of sales based on delivery
notes, through to reconciliations with cash receipts and
customers’ records. In addition, we tested the general control
environment of the Group’s information technology systems
and the selected automatic controls that were related to
revenue recording to assess the completeness and accuracy
of the revenue entries generated by the system.

Furthermore, we conducted testing of revenue recorded
covering different locations and customers, using sampling
techniques, by examining the relevant supporting
documents, including sales orders, invoices, goods delivery
notes and cash receipts. One of our focuses was on sales
transactions that took place shortly before and after the
balance sheet date, including inspection of goods delivery
notes with customer’s acceptance and credit notes issued
after that date, to assess whether revenue was recognised in
the correct reporting periods.

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s
revenue recognition in relation to sales of goods was
supported by the evidence that we gathered.

We obtained an understanding of the management's internal
control and assessment process of provisions of income tax
expenses. We evaluated and tested the key controls over
the provisions of income tax expenses. We assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty, complexity, subjectivity and
level of other inherent risk factors, including changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

We had periodic meetings with the Group's tax team and
local management to understand and assess the Group’s
processes and controls for identifying uncertain tax positions
that might require provisions, together with the related
accounting policy of provisioning for tax exposures.

We recalculated the provisions and validated that they
were supported by appropriate data and management
assessments, and that the judgements applied were
supportable considering the potential exposure and the
likelihood of a payment being required with the assistance
of our tax specialists. We inspected management's
correspondences with relevant tax authorities, examined
tax payments by tracking to payment records and tax
filing forms, and compared the provisions with the final tax
assessment notes of previous periods to assess whether the
estimates were reasonable.

Based on our audit procedures, we found management's
judgements and estimates on the income tax provisions were
supported by the available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

IVZY 2020/2021 5 ¥ ANNUAL REPORT

BB BET RS WBBRARNEE

EMWER  RUGSUBRREBRS
AEAHRRFRERMEHMNEAHR
PSS EFAR  LTHABERMER
MR HEHRE - KMEQET (FREE)
BE o BRIEZINRIREREEME - &K
MAERABENATEAEAEMALE
LHRAEEMEMR - EERFESKFH
REE  BRERBRBEBENERET
MES R -EAERRLFERARE
BRI o SEERMRUL A LA BRFF R EE AR BIE
MREEAHEMEBNERLRAIES
EEAMBRREAERBEFSPBHE
FRrE BV RE - BRI B RV SR BRI ]
WREEK -

EREEBFTENETESNBES
RPEATEXHE R TEXRERRE
B o AR

« BB RRFFRERMER R
EMBERFEEANERRANE
% RETRIAITENR T UBEIEL
R IR EMEENETR
& FREPRRNER o HREGE
WRES R ER - B - BERER B
RERAL - ERERAREH 2 £ B
LR AEER IR R ERFF M S B A B A SR
BRI Y EL R S R R BE B IR SRR M
B ERSERRME AR o

o THREZRGTEERIRES 0 URE
EENEAREF BENLFHER
EABEFNEREERER -

«  FMEESARASHEENREMER
fEHETHEE MAERKEN S -

. HESRARELCLSTERNRKE
ML S - RIBMEMNEFTE
& RERAHFEEBENBREH
MEBEBATEEL M UEEHHE
SENSFEKERIEEERRERE -
MREFRABFEEATEEN. - A
BLEEREMBE P RFEAET
BHEEMBIHMRPOVEBME - BB
BENKETE » BIRMEEREFE
BRESR - RANEREZERNZH
BM¥R & B L FTES R F T RRE - R
o ARBEHBERTEEHERE

2 4ok 42 g
TREBERE -



& B B0 BRARA T
B R B
Independent Auditor’'s Report

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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LmeEESER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

720214 12020F

3HA31H 3A31H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

liop=3 AR® TR ARBTT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment I3 - HERENER1B 6 6,335,441 6,770,980
Investment properties REYE 7 36,414 37,944
Intangible assets BEE 8 11,169 13,027
Investments in associates BN TIRE 10 13,307 15,425
Deferred income tax assets EIEFIERERE 22 373,767 287,536
Financial assets at fair value through other RAFEZEBEMEEING
comprehensive income CERNERERE 12 92,935 31,761
Right-of-use assets FREEE 9 1,098,451 1,062,289
Long-term bank time deposits REBITEHER 16 2,850,000 -
10,811,484 8,218,962
Current assets REEE
Inventories =FE 13 2,528,819 2,746,167
Trade receivables =Y EN 14 920,032 846,744
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - BER
other receivables Hi R 15 901,613 756,190
Cash and bank balances RERBITER 16 16,081,070 17,256,927
20,431,534 21,606,028
Total assets wEE 31,243,018 29,824,990
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to equity holders EARERBFEA
of the Company PEfhfEs
Share capital &N 17 1,821,152 1,866,355
Reserves G 18 13,077,825 13,406,327
14,898,977 15,272,682
Non-controlling interests FeiEEI MRS 72,663 81,532
Total equity R 14,971,640 15,354,214
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20215 20205
3H31H 38318
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR®ET T AREET T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Borrowings LR 21 6,493,151 8,293,566
Deferred income tax liabilities ELFSHEas 22 348,267 214,378
Other non-current liabilities HitERBERE 139,627 74,281
Lease liabilities HEERE 9 124,475 67,034
7,105,520 8,649,259
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B S RAR 19 943,281 1,093,092
Accruals and other payables EstEAREMEAR 20 2,931,890 2,371,083
Contract liabilities EHEE 5(b) 1,556,783 1,584,651
Current income tax liabilities EHEHaE 287,793 133,728
Borrowings (EEN 21 3,339,961 587,085
Lease liabilities HEEE 9 106,150 51,878
9,165,858 5,821,517
Total liabilities waeE 16,271,378 14,470,776
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 31,243,018 29,824,990

The notes on pages 184 to 284 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 176 to 284 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

F184EF284B 2T BGE U KRR Z

—#7 e

F176 R 284 B2 R A KB RCHESS
A2021FE6 22 E  IRKRESEH

2o
Tsai Wang-Chia Chu Chi-Wen
BEEXR KA
Director Director
EE EFE
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
220215 HZ22020F
3A31H 3A31H
tEE EEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ik AR®TR AR¥ETR
Revenue g 5 21,998,400 20,094,531
Cost of sales HEHA 2% (11,392,876) (10,439,499)
Gross profit ER 10,605,524 9,655,032
Distribution costs DI 24 (2,765,622) (2,791,063)
Administrative expenses THER 24 (2,713,428) (2,485,415)
Other income Het A 320,586 418,700
Other gains — net Hithzs — 358 23 289,118 8,680
Operating profit EERE 5,736,178 4,805,934
Finance income REWA 26 469,161 558,767
Finance costs REME 26 (208,379) (312,558)
Finance income — net BWEWN —F4E 26 260,782 246,209
Share of losses of associates FEMhEE D EEE 10 (2,118) (3,354)
Profit before income tax BRET BB AIFIE 5,994,842 5,048,789
Income tax expense FERER 27 (1,847,161) (1,412,546)
Profit for the year FERE 4,147,681 3,636,243
Profit attributable to: FEAE I
— Equity holders of the Company ~AARERFEA 4,157,809 3,649,215
- Non-controlling interests — IR (10,128) (12,972)
4,147,681 3,636,243
Earnings per share for profit attributable to FATEREE AN
equity holders of the Company FEnsRER
Basic earnings per share BREAXEF 28 RMB33.83 cents  RMB29.38 cents
AR¥33.837% AR#29.38%
Diluted earnings per share SREEEF 28 RMB33.83 cents  RMB29.38 cents
AK#¥33.83% AR#29.38%

The notes on pages 184 to 284 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

8Z20214F HZE2020F

3A31H 3A31H

LEE IHEE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

gz AR® TR ARBTT

Profit for the year FEFE 4,147,681 3,636,243
Other comprehensive income Hitt2E K&
Items that will not be reclassified to BETEELHZ

profit or loss BmZHEH
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit  RIKEFEZE 2 EH

obligations T2 18 134 4,763
Change in value of financial assets at BRAVEEAEMEE

fair value through other comprehensive WaRRRNeRMEE

income ZEEEE 18 11,486 (7,765)
Items that may be reclassified to REHEEELTHEZ

profit or loss BmZHEA
Currency translation differences EHsE A AR 571,242 (399,607)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHM2ERE 582,862 (402,609)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2HENGHAEE 4,730,543 3,233,634
Attributable to: PEML :

— Equity holders of the Company —RAFERFEA 4,738,608 3,247,662

— Non-controlling interests — IR HI MR R (8,065) (14,028)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHKNGHEE 4,730,543 3,233,634

The notes on pages 184 to 284 form an integral part of these consolidated B1B4EE284E T RGEMBRERZ
financial statements. — I o
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mEERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARERTE AL
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
FEHM
Bx  ROEE  HitRE  RERA &5 s B

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mz ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARERTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETR

Balance at 1 April 2019 0195481848 1,871,067 462130 (4415986) 17413488 15,330,699 97,537 15428236
Adjustments due to business RAREHTERSH

combinations under common EENRE

control - - 48,640 (17,049) 31,591 - 31,591
Balance at 1 April 2019 201954R104

(Restated) (&=5) 1,871,067 462130 (4,367,346) 17,396,439 15,362,290 97,537 15,459,827
Comprehensive income 2EkE

Proft for the year EEHE - - o 349215 3849215 (12072) 3636243

Other comprehensive income ~ Eft2ENK
Change in value of financial RATEEBEMLE

assets at fair value through hERENeRERE L

other comprehensive income EEZE 12,18 - - (7,765) - (7,765) - (7,765)
Remeasurements of post- BIRRERZENHE

employment benefit obligations 18 - - 4,763 - 4,763 - 4,763
Currency translation differences ~ EHERZH 18 - - (398551) - (398551) (1,05)  (399,607)
Total other comprehensive Ef2ANREH

income - - 0155 - W15y (105)  (402609)
Total comprehensive income ~ ZAKHAH - - (401,553) 3,649,215 3,247,662 (14,028) 3,233,634
Transactions with owners BEEAZRE
Dividends paid ZRE 18 - - - (3100502)  (3,100,502) (444)  (3,100,946)
Shares buy-back BA#E 17 4712) - - (180070)  (184782) - (184782)
Appropriafion o statutory reserves BB EE R 18 - - 216,281 (216,281) - - -
Business combinations under REENTERAH

common control - - (51,986) - (51,986) - (51,986)
Acquisifon of non-controling inferests  UEBSE M AR - - - - - (2,240) (2,240)
Capital contrbution by non-controling ~ FE 44 %58

interests - - - - - 707 707
Total transactions with owners 5B A2 X544 4712) S 14205 (3496853 (3T20)  (197T)  (3.339.47)
Balance at 31 March 2020 20205383 ALE 1,866,355 462,130 (4,604,604) 17,548,801 15272682 81532 15354214

The notes on pages 184 to 284 are an integral part of these consolidated E1B4EE284H M REEMBHREK 2
financial statements. —o o
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mEERgExR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RATEEEA AR
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
iR
e RiaE Efbiite REER @zt & Bars
Note RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ki ARMTr ARETn  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETn  ARETR
Balance at 1 April 2020 20F4F1RER 1,866,355 462,130 (4,604,604) 17,548,801  15.272,682 81,532 15354214
Comprehensive income PENE
Proft for the year FERA - - - 4157809 4,157,809 (10128) 4,147,681
Other comprehensive income ~ Eft2EKE
Change in value of financial BRATEEBEMRE
assets at fair value through WHEEENEREEY
olher comprefiensive income g3 1218 - - 146 - 146 - 11486
Remeasurements of post- RIENEEZEFE
employment benefit obligations 18 - - 134 - 134 - 134
Currency translation differences S E X £5 18 - - 569,179 - 569,179 2,063 571,242
Total other comprehensive B2 ENELS
income - - 580,799 - 580,799 2,063 582,862
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EKHAE = = 580,799 4,157,809 4,738,608 (8,065 4,730,543
Transactions with owners RBEBAZRS
Dividends paid %HRe 18 - - - (35125 (3,511.235) (804)  (35120%)
Shares buy-back RAER 7 (45,203) - - (1,555,875)  (1,601,078) - (1,601,078)
Appropriation to statutory reserves  ZIRE TR 18 - - 230,649 (230,649) - - -
Total transactions with owners ~ EEFAZR 748 (45,203) - 230649 (5207,759)  (5,112,313) (804)  (5,113,117)
Balance at 31 March 2021 WNEI[M ALE 1,821,152 462,130 (3,793,156) 16,408,851 14,898,977 72,663 14,971,640

The notes on pages 184 to 284 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
BZ2021F BZ2020F
3A31H 3A31H
LEFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iE3 ARMT R ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities EEIBNERSRE
Cash generated from operations EEEENRS 30 6,801,847 6,391,407
Interest paid BAFIE (192,719) (294,824)
Interest received ST E 431,565 485,319
Income tax paid 2R (1,625,125) (1,736,570)
Net Cash generated from operating activities EETHEENTFRS 5,415,568 4,845,332
Cash flows from investing activities RETENRERE
Increase in long-term bank time deposits RERIRITEHAfZFRIG HN (2,850,000) -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAYIZE - HESREE (316,389) (291,261)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEUAAEETEAR
through other comprehensive income BEFTAHMRE W E
HNeEmEE 12 (51,710) -
Purchases of leasehold land and BABEELT R
land use rights T b FARE - (3,724)
Purchases of intangible assets BARTEE 8 (921) (1,163)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand ~ HE&EY)3E « #ES R RE
equipment, leasehold land and land use FHE i 7 L e A RE
rights FrssIE 30 296,805 4,279
Interest received of long-term bank time REMRITERER
deposits P F) £ 8,019 -
Net Cash used in investing activities RETBMANTRS (2,914,196) (291,869)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
BZE2021F BZE20205F
3A31H 3A31H
LFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARMT T AREEF T
Cash flows from financing activities RMETENRERE
Shares buy-back BHEEE 17 (1,601,078) (184,782)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the EAN SR AT
Company RE 29 (3,511,235)  (3,100,502)
Lease payments HEMER (86,840) (56,587)
Proceeds from borrowings EFETSFIE 5,383,038 4,559,144
Repayments of borrowings BEMER (3,817,829) (5,654,014)
Capital contribution by non-controlling I ERTE
interests - 707
Cash paid to the parent company of the entity BRI EEHIFrukEE
acquired under common control ERSARIZRE - (51,986)
Cash paid to non-controlling interests holder W BB B BB A B RBSME RS T
for additional ownership interests in T F IR RS
subsidiaries BANRE - (2,240)
Net Cash used in financing activities BREEBFANFRS (3,633,944)  (4,490,260)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReRBESZEYRL)
equivalents EINFEEE (1,132,572) 63,203
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUNEERREEEY
of the year 17,256,927 17,160,428
Exchange (losses)/gains [E % (5518) Wz (43,285) 33,296
Cash and cash equivalents at end FERNEER
of the year REeZEY 16 16,081,070 17,256,927

The notes on pages 184 to 284 form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —H&EH

Want Want China Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its FERERZERERAR(TARATNDE

subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are principally engaged in the HMB AR (GBI AKE]) T EkE

manufacturing and distribution of food and beverages. The Group’s HERDERMAER - KREBWE

activities are primarily conducted in the People’s Republic of China (“the BEERREARLNE ([FE])E

PRC”) and its products are also sold to the North America, East Asia, 7 HERPSEELE  RE - RE

South-East Asia and Europe. SEREUM ©

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 October AT R2007E10 3B RIER S E

2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the ERNTREEHERSTMRLAER

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered RERDT c RATRMNETMPEE

office is Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland 3k BMaples Corporate Services

House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands °

The Company has had its primary listing on the Main Board of The RN E2008F3 26 HEEH X

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 26 March 2008. EEBBERZMEMRATERL
o

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”), unless MREBEFHEMD  HEMBERFRIIUA

otherwise stated. REE(TAREBNZS -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. HESHHEEE

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(a) New standard, amendments and interpretation of HKFRSs

adopted by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2021

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for the
current reporting period. The Group assessed the adoption of these
new and amended standards and concluded that they did not have a
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial position.

. Definition of Material — Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

2.

EREHRERER (B

21 REEEGE
SRR BB E

(a) FEBREZ2021F3H31H
LEFEERNE B HHEE
RIRy#FaT 2R ~ 155T Ra2FE

BTHAREETENBRARARS
BB - ARECHRMZSHTRE
EFTEREITRIME - WEHER - R
REMZEEANE RN EE 2 EEAME
BRRLBERLE -

. BRZER-BEBEFEAE
SRR EBETERESS 2T
ZN

. Definition of a Business — Amendments to HKFRS 3 . ER v ERZ - BBYBREE
RIZE38R 2 &R A
. Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting — . BIMBERE2ESERE -

Revised Conceptual Framework

. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Amendments to HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39

HE=ES

. NREERE-FEREUBRSE
HRETH - BRYBRELER
IR EBEEERBR 2
RIAS

. COVID-19 — related Rent Concessions — Amendments to . COVID- 19/ &R — &8
HKFRS 16 B IR E R SE 1655 I8 RT A

(b) New standard, amendments and interpretation of HKFRSs issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April
2020 and have not been early adopted by the Group

Certain new and amended standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 31 March 2021 and have not been
early adopted in preparing these consolidated financial statements.
These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

Standards and amendments

EREHRERER B

21 REEEGE
SHBERBE 228 (E)

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
R BR 2 RBBFERE

TR R EET 0
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2022
Non-current
BB ERE1T BT BERESEASRBNIERE 2022%1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds 1 January 2022
before intended use
BBETERIE165% 2185] M3 - BB KRB — BUE FRATHY 2022%1H1H
FRiSFIE
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a 1 January 2022
Contract
BB ERIEITH 2185 BHEEHN-BITEHNEAE 2022%181H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BB ELEREIF 2 MEFT BESAESR MY S| A 2022%181H
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
BB EERETHR REBEH 2023%F1A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
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2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group except for business combination
under common control as described below. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and
losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(a) Business combinations

(i) Merger accounting for business combination under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities or businesses in business
combinations under common control as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the ultimate holding company.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the carrying amount from the ultimate holding
company’s perspective. No amount is recognised for goodwill or the
excess of the Group’s interest in the book value of the net assets over
cost at the time of the common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the ultimate holding company’s interest.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees, costs
of furnishing information to shareholders, costs or losses incurred
in combining operations of the previously separate businesses and
other costs incurred in relation to the common control combination
that is to be accounted for by using the merger accounting method are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

(i) Acquisition method for other business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations other than common control combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EESHBRREE@E

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carry amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits
or losses of associates’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.4 Segment reporting
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Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the EENSDRBOTEEERKER
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. HOATBREER —FNFRBE ©
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating BEIMERMTHELEIBRIRW

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive Directors that make strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The Company’s functional currency is US Dollar (‘US$’) and the
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as FVOCI are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rates on the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid,
the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EESHBRREE@E

(continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal (continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associates that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence) the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the purchase of the land.
Freehold land is not subject to depreciation.

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP”) represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the costs of construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statements during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost less impairment loss (if any), other than freehold land and
construction in progress, to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

2.
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—  Buildings 20-60 years - ¥ 20-604F
—  Furniture, machinery and equipment 2-15 years - F - HEEREE 2-155
—  Vehicles, aircraft and transportation 5-20 years - HH - RER

EWIA 5-20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised within ‘other gains
—net’ in the consolidated income statement.

2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost
represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which
various plants and buildings are situated for periods from 20 to 70 years.
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

2.8 Investment properties
Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital

appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group, are
classified as investment properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8 Investment properties (continued)

Properties and the building component of leasehold investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss (if any). The land component of
leasehold investment properties is accounted for as leasehold land
and classified in leasehold land and land use rights.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost less impairment loss (if any) to their
residual value over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 40 years.

2.9 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred over the Company’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have finite useful lives
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)
(c) Computer softwares

Computer softwares represent purchased softwares and amortised
over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

2.10 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, associates and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits
or losses of associates’ in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
other comprehensive income or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in the income statement or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.11.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in the income statement
and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented in
the consolidated income statement.

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through other comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EESHBRREE @

(continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.11.3 Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in the
income statement and presented net within other gains/(losses)
in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the income statement as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
other gains/(losses) in the income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

2.11.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b)
for further details.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEESHBEREE #E)
(continued)
2.12 Inventories 212 F&

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling costs.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 2.11 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Note 2.11.4 and 3.1 (b) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
income tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
income tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The group measures its tax balances either based on
the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EESHBRREE@E

(continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis difference

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

2.20 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

2020720214 ANNUAL REPORT XN

219 EMRIELEFRSH (E)
(b) EALFFSH (&)
IMEEE

ELEFEHAEERMBARREBER
AREELENERBERMEEEME
% BREASE T URHI RS
ENEERE MEREERAEATE
RERRUENSELRIBRID - K5
B —RARESEE A REHERME
F w0 - ERITLHRRELARE
BEED  RAURRREHESHEER
(EEBEEBEEBHE LR ZKRD
BEMNELERRABERMEER)FAR
FHERED o

EEFEHEERRMB AR REE
RAREELEZTHREREERT
LR HERMERTURERER
Bo - BAREZERBENME A
HRMEER -

220 ET1ER
(a) LBRihEHEH

REMRKENAREGE —RB UL
BXNEEERRASEHANWRAKE
it BRETUESAERAEED
FrEE TR EEE MR TR B AR
BXAEFN  AEETEEERHEE
BEEXNE-SHER - REZHTE
Ty — I 30 3F SR E H ARG B R IR ET
;“ °

REZHMITE -REEEETHERIK
AW RABREEE BERT

Fi - REFENFHBES —ER
ZEREME °



F Bl BEBE ERAFRAT
e MR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)
(a) Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. In
countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market
rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in
the income statement in employee benefit expense, except where
included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined
benefit obligation results from employee service in the current year.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as past service costs.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
income statement.

Remeasurement and actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in
equity and in the balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)
(a) Pension obligations (continued)

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

The Group participates in various defined contribution plans
administered by the relevant authorities or third parties, where
appropriate, and defined benefit plans for its employees in places
where it conducts business.

(b) Bonus plan

The Group recognises provision for bonuses where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and
long-service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEESHBEREE#E)
(continued)
2.21 Provisions 221 Ef

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition
Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells rice crackers, dairy products and
beverages, snack foods and other products. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)
Sales of goods (continued)

The products are often sold with retrospective volume discounts
based on aggregate sales over a period of time. Revenue from these
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of
the estimated volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. A refund liability (included in accruals and other payables)
is recognised for expected volume discounts payable to customers in
relation to sales. No element of financing is deemed present as the
sales are made with a credit term of 60-90 days, which is consistent
with market practice.

A receivable is usually recognised when revenue recognised as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty products are
under the standard warranty terms. Accumulated experience is used
to estimate such returns at the time of sale. Because of the large
size and low value of each individual product, the amount of products
returned were immaterial. It is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
Therefore, no refund liability for goods return was recognized. The
validity of this assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion activities, the Group
did not provide a distinct good or service to customers and therefore
recorded as a deduction of revenue.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23 Government grants

Incentive grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
presented by deducting the grant in calculating the carrying amount of
the asset, and recognised in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable
asset as a reduced depreciation expense.

2.24 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes,
see Note 26 below. Any other interest income is included in other
income.

2.25 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the

group.

The Group leases various offices and warehouses. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods but may have extension options.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, and leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.25 Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments).

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowings rate, the Group uses recent
third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing condition since third
party financing was received.

Depreciation on right-of-use assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
lease period.

All land in the PRC is stated-owned and no individual land ownership
right exists. The Group acquired the right to use certain land. The
premiums paid for such right are treated as prepayment for operating
lease and recorded at cost as right-of-use assets, which are
depreciated over the lease periods using the straight-line method.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extention
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, and

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.25 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property and equipment leases across the Group. These terms are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts.
The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.26 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

. the profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination
of basic earnings per share to take into account:

. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

. the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividend is approved by the Company’s
shareholders or Directors, when appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s functional currency is US$ and majority of its
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future purchases from overseas, and certain recognised assets or
liabilities, such as the cash and bank balances which are denominated
in US$ and other currencies (Note 16), and borrowings denominated
in RMB of the subsidiaries of which functional currency is US$. The
Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk because the
exposure, after netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign
exchange risk, is not significant.

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against RMB with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 would
have been RMB3,337,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2020:
RMB11,686,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of RMB denominated borrowings.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because the
equity investments held by the Group which are classified on the
consolidated balance sheets as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Group has not hedged its price risk
arising from these investments (Note 12) and will continue to monitor
price risk exposure.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s equity investments that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings
with variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. In 2017, the Group issued US$500,000,000 guaranteed
bonds (“Bonds”) which will be repayable in whole on 27 April 2022.
The Bonds and other bank borrowings bear interest at a fixed rate,
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Details of
fixed and variable interest rates borrowings are disclosed in Note 30.
The interest rates and terms of repayments of bank borrowings are
disclosed in Note 21.

The Group currently does not use any financial instruments to hedge
against its interest rate risk exposure. Management will continue to
monitor interest rate risk exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk exposure should the need arise.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, if interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 10% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax would have been RMB3,523,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2020: RMB13,211,000) lower/higher
respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expenses on
floating rate borrowings.

Except for short-term and long-term bank deposits the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing assets. Management does not
anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing assets resulted from
the changes in interest rates because the interest rates of bank
deposits are relatively low and not expected to change significantly.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The carrying
amounts of short-term and long-term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables included in the consolidated
financial statements represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, all bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents were deposited in the high quality financial
institutions without significant credit risk. Therefore, the Group believes
related credit risk is insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

Most of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in checks by its
customers on delivery of goods. Credit sales are made only to
selected customers with good credit history. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

In relation to balances with subsidiaries, the Company assessed the
credibility of the subsidiaries by reviewing their operating results and
cash flow position periodically.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of inventory that are subject
to the expected credit loss model.

While bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. On that
basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020
was determined as follows for trade receivables:
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More than  More than  More than  More than

1 day 60 days 90 days 120 days
Current  pastdue  pastdue pastdue  pastdue Total

[t [t cag g
REIH 1BBE  60RMLE  90HLLE 120BME @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TR ARETR AR®TR AR%TR ARETR

At 31 March 2021 R202153A31H

Gross carrying amount BIRHE 711,040 137,475 35,836 15,774 82,002 982,127

Expected loss rate BHEREE 0.50% 2.00% 10.00% 20.00% 60.00%
Loss allowance EERE 3,555 2,750 3,584 3,155 49,051 62,095
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMEBERBTE @)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEREEGE)

(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) =R (GE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) () ZHEEHEGE)
BZEW (E)

Trade receivables (continued)

Morethan  Morethan ~ Morethan  More than
1 day 60 days 90 days 120 days

Current past due past due past due past due Total
[k [k [k [k
REIH 1ML 60AMLE  90BMLE 120BHL st

RVB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARET:R

At 31 March 2020 R202053A31H

Gross carrying amount BEREE 562,643 232,800 21,648 6,988 78,132 902,211
Expected loss rate RAEER 0.50% 2.00% 10.00% 20.00% 60.00%

Loss allowance EiRRE 2,813 4,656 2,165 1,398 44,435 55,467

BERUHREBENEEFN BN

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as administrative

expense within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line item.

Net impairment gains/losses on financial assets recognised in profit or
loss

During the year, losses of RMB6,638,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2020: gains on reversal of losses of RMB16,655,000) are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available. Details of the
undrawn borrowing facilities available to the Group are disclosed in
Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BHEBERREE#E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEREEGE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) TEEESE (E)
Between Between Between
Lessthan 3 months 1and 2 2and5 Over 5
3 months and 1 year years years years Total
MEAZE
MBAUT 151 1Z22FR 2E55R 5FLE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT AR%TR AR¥Tn AR%TR AR¥Tn AR%Tx®
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3A310
Borrowings (Note 21) B (ffE21) 2,942,306 397,655 3,285,650 3,219,937 - 9,845,548
Interests payable ERFIE 34,609 92,073 33,729 10,036 = 170,447
Trade payables (Note 19) B 5 (EF19) 876,384 66,897 - - - 943,281
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEAE () 35,366 78,084 91,568 27,546 14,420 246,984
Accruals and other payables ~ FEsT & AR HAEAH
and other non-current REMIERE
liabilities &8f 2,005,293 - 5,897 17,692 46,350 2,075,232
5893958 634,709 3,416,844 3,275,211 60,770 13,281,492
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31H
Borrowings (Note 21) fa K (ffzE21) 499,230 87,855 4,779,358 3,542,550 - 8,908,993
Interests payable RIS 77,651 121,088 116,328 50,924 - 365,991
Trade payables (Note 19) BREA (EE19) 1,019,466 73,626 - - - 1,093,092
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HESE () 14,621 42,135 27,832 26,110 19,010 129,708
Accruals and other payables ~ FEFTE AR HMENR
and other non-current REAMIERE
liabilities 8 1,632,160 - 7,373 17,692 51,505 1,708,730
3243128 324,704 4,930,891 3,637,276 70,515 12,206,514
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the net gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings net of cash and bank balances and long-term bank time
deposits divided by total equity excluding non-controlling interests.

The net gearing ratios at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 were as
follows:

MERBRER (&)
32 EBEXERERE

FEENERAEERR  RREAE
EREARELYE - UBRREHLCHRM
REMANZERERENS - BEE
FRENERSBUUREERRE -

RTHSIARELRER  A5ET
REEREXNTRENBRESEE @
RREREER  BITHRALEEE
LUBR &R ©

HERNHMAT K AREFAF
BHEEELRERAER R
EHRRERRTERRRBRITE
HERNBERBRUBES (T2F
EHIEER) T o

A202153A831HKX202053 431
H FEZE/ZRWMT :

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

20214 20204

38318 3831H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Total borrowings (Note 21) BEX (PEE21) 9,833,112 8,880,651

Less: Cash and bank balances and long- & : R&RBITER R RIEARITELSR

term bank time deposits (Note 16) FR (MgEE16) (18,931,070) (17,256,927)
Net cash REFEE 9,097,958 (8,376,276)
Total equity excluding non-controlling HiER o T8

interests JEFE I A R 14,898,977 15,272,682
Net gearing ratio FREZAEE (61.06%) (54.84%)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 March 2021 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised
into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following tables present the Group’s assets that are measured at
fair value as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020:

MBERRER (&)
3.3 AT EMEE

TRIBEBEFME D FENGERMTP
FrERZINWANEBLR 2 AEE
A2021FE3A31BRAFEARNS
BIE - EEHARBAFEBRS
HAUOT=E :

- HEEEIEBEERHEN
RECRERAR) (B1RE) -

- BRTSB1IEMBENEKREN  Z
EEFRENTERNEtE
AT RHEE BIHNER) N E
#=(ERBEER) E28) -

- BEIEELFRBEAHED
SBENBA (NFEATBRRER
A) (838) -

TRERMEBNR2021FE38318 R
20203 A3 1HRAFEFENE
=

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1E $2[E E3E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F T AR®T T ARET T ARET R
At 31 March 2021 7A20214F3H31H
FVOCI RATVEZERHEMEE
U 250 AR 92,935 - - 92,935
At 31 March 2020 74202063 H31H
FVOCI BRAFEZEBEMEE
Y= 5 AR 31,761 — - 31,761

(a) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, and the price represents actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EXGHLRFE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on A RABSHETML  LRBE
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future KREEFHEMEZ (BEREBERT
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. HEAGEZARREBMHZTEA) MmE
Ho
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. AEEERREL AT REEE - B
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal WE A NEER  ROSHEHAESE
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have BRAERMER - RAMESEHT @K
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying FENEEREBNREBHFLEEXR
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are FEMMAFTRBERAROT ©
addressed below.
PRC taxes PEIRIE
The Group is mainly subject to different taxes in the PRC. Significant AEETZEEHATETEHRIE - B
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. BEMSHEBHER  AFEHEXRH
There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate o REEEKBRET  BEREZXS
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. RABEREBEISERENTIERE -
The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based AEERBEREHFEBEREINGIE
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final EIEAMBER A B EEREENE
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that are - NZESENRABBERER
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income RV THENEE  ZEEELTE
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such EHERBRAENBRRENEBRMEHH
determination is made. B R IEFE FriS i 1B o
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. SRS HEH

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive Directors. The executive Directors review the Group’s
internal reports in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on their
reports.

The executive Directors consider the business from a product
perspective and assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment profit or loss. Management assesses
the performance of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack
foods and other products.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s operations are mainly organized under four business
segments, including manufacturing and sale of:

- Rice crackers, including sugar coated crackers, savoury crackers
and fried crackers, gift packs;

- Dairy products and beverages, including flavoured milk, room-
temperature yogurt, yogurt drinks, ready-to-drink coffee, juice
drinks, sports drinks, herbal tea and milk powder;

- Snack foods, including candies, popsicles, ball cakes and jellies,
beans, nuts and others; and

- Other products, including mainly wine and other food products.

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and business activities are
conducted in the PRC.

The executive Directors assess the performance of the business
segments based on profit before income tax excluded other
unallocated head office operating expenses, finance income-net and
share of losses of associates, which is consistent with that in the
financial statements.

(a) Segment information

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and for
the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out as follows:

5.

B2k IEBEHE)

ZIS%IH’J"' EFZUT I ERES D
BaE SELEEREE

- REER SEBXEXS
BERCKBERAEDNE - KB
2 ;

- HmRE - BERERWwSFH -
EIRERL - ALERECH - BIER m
BE - BITERE C BEER R
KRR

- hERER EEER KR
NEEMRER - T8 B1CH
Hith : &

- HttEm EBERBEEREAM
B °

REEEBIBI0% K W K EHE =
BT

BITESREBRASHEAFRE (T
Hﬂﬂﬂi PECAREEEER BEW

—FHENEEBE RFER) M
%i%”*ﬁz%ﬁ HEPHRER—H -

(a) EBEH
AEBEZE2021F3831HILELFER

BZE2020F3A831B LEERMWEN
T :

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

8Z202145 HZ2020%

3H31H 3H31H

LEFE IHFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Rice crackers KR 5,582,611 5,611,414
Dairy products and beverages 5 & 8kt 11,011,323 9,813,411
Snack foods HKERR 5,312,688 4,634,188
Other products HittER 91,778 35,518
Total revenue Fall g 21,998,400 20,094,531
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment information (continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2021 is as

5. BRRSBEHE)

(a) DEBEH (E)

BE2021F3A31ALEESBEL

follows: mT
Year ended 31 March 2021
BENNFIANALEE
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages ~ Snack foods products Group
KR ARREHH #ERR HitEm 58
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment results PHEE
Revenue s 5,582,611 11,011,323 5,312,688 91,778 21,998,400
Timing of revenue recognition Wt
Ata pointin time RE-KEY 5,582,611 11,011,323 5,312,688 91,778 21,998,400
Segment profit AERE 1,376,271 3,744,421 1,268,739 21,098 6,410,529
Unallocated costs RABHR (674,351)
Finance income - net BEWA-F8 260,782
Share of losses of associates BB 0T6E (2,118)
Profit before income tax BRETEH AR 5,994,842
Income tax expense FrERER (1,847,161)
Profit for the year FERE 4,147,681
Other segment items included inthe st AKEZ £t AER
income statement
Depreciation of property, plant and NE  BERRRETE
equipment 230,895 348,440 229,880 855 810,070
Amortisation of right-of-use assets RRESESE 42,730 46,156 22,120 4,946 115,952
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REYEIE - - - 1,200 1,200
Unallocated depreciation and NE - KERRE FREEER
amortisation of property, plant and BREEADRREREH
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets 14,455
Capital expenditure EXEX
Capital expenditure by segments BABEN 2 EARY 67,948 114,418 57,156 20,996 260,518
Unallocated capital expenditure RAMEREL 56,792
Total Capital expenditure EREEY 317,310
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. KAaRHBEE B
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) DBBERGE)
Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, long-term bank PHEETEBERESRRTER R
time deposits, investments in associates and other unallocated head HRSRITEHATERR - BE LA RKRE U
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group REMRIBHEATRAREE B
basis. Segment liabilities exclude borrowings and other unallocated ZEEEREEEREE - o MEE
head office and corporate liabilities, as these liabilities are managed TEEEREEMAIBEANEBR D
on a group basis. AEE EZZEEREEEEE
o
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2021 are as follows: MR2021F3A3M BN BEEREE
mT
31 March 2021
2021535318
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages ~ Snack foods products Group
KE ARREH KERR HftEm &5
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T ARETT AR®T T AEETT
Segment assets and liabilities AHEERER
Segment assets THEE 2,436,583 6,546,093 3,087,476 119,104 12,190,156
Unallocated assets ROMEE 108,485
Cash and bank balances RERBATEH 16,081,070
Long-term bank time deposits RERITEHER 2,850,000
Investments in associates BENARE 13,307
Total assets BER 31,243,018
Segment liabilities PHEE 1,581,804 3,169,901 1,529,104 28,480 6,309,289
Unallocated liabilities FoEEE 128,977
Borrowings B 9,833,112
Total liabilities meg 16,271,378
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Segment information (continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2020 is as

B2k SEEHE)
(a) D EFEH (&)

HZE2020F3A31A L EEDEBEL

follows: M
Year ended 31 March 2020
BEANFIAANALFE
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods products Group
KR ARREH HERE AftEm &8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARET T ARET R ARET T
Segment results PHEE
Revenue s 5611414 9,813,411 4,634,188 35,518 20,094,531
Timing of revenue recognition Wt
At a point in time RE-REY 5,611,414 9,813,411 4,634,188 35,518 20,094,531
Segment profi/oss) ABHE/ (58 1,304,370 315177 992,330 (6590) 5405267
Unallocated costs KABHRAK (599,353)
Finance income - net REWA-FE 246,209
Share of losses of associates BB 0T6E (3,354)
Profit before income tax AT SR AR 5,048,789
Income tax expense FEHER (1,412,546)
Profit for the year FERE 3,636,243
Other segment items included inthe st AKEZ £t AER
income statement
Depreciation of property, plant and NE - BERRERE
equipment 231,115 348,459 228,671 466 808,711
Amortisation of right-of-use assets FREEESE 17,671 37,382 17,843 3,989 76,885
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REYEIE - - - 1464 1464
Unallocated depreciation and NE - HERRE FRELERE
amortisation of property, plant and FEERDBREREH
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets 18,838
Capital expenditure EXEX
Capital expenditure by segments BABEN 2 ERER 103,864 I 55,780 16,091 250,512
Unallocated capital expenditure RAMEREL 45,636
Total Capital expenditure EREEY 296,148
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. WAaRSBEEE)
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) DBBERGE)
Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, investments in PHWEETRERERBITER B
associates and other unallocated head office and corporate assets EARRE  URHEAMRDBEHEE
as these assets are managed on a group basis. Segment liabilities RARER  AZSEEREERER
exclude borrowings and other unallocated head office and corporate EE - HEHEBETEEERREMK
liabilities, as these liabilities are managed on a group basis. PENBEHRAREE  BZEEE
REBEEEE -
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2020 are as follows: MR2020F3 31BN BEERERE
mT
31 March 2020
2020537318
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods products Group
*E ARREH HERE HthER 58
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
Segment assets and liabilities AHEERER
Segment assets THEE 2591487 6,620,859 3,115,137 113,056 12,440,539
Unallocated assets ROMEE 112,099
Cash and bank balances RERBATEH 17,256,927
Investments in associates BENTRE 15,425
Total assets BEE 29,824,990
Segment liabilties AHEE 1,503,117 2,658,950 1,256,412 10,994 5429473
Unallocated liabilities FAEERE 160,652
Borrowings (EE 8,880,651
Total liabilities L=t 14,470,776
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. BERSWBEEE)
(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers (b) BEHEEFEXHEE
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts AEECRIUTEREFEANE
with customers: f&:
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
Contract liabilities — rice crackers EHEE-KR 392,686 440,608
Contract liabilities — dairy products aRraE-
and beverages Hm R ER 780,703 774,964
Contract liabilities — snack foods BHEE-KERMA 376,633 366,074
Contract liabilities — others BREE-Hit 6,761 3,005
1,556,783 1,584,651
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the TRITRERREEAA FAER IS E
current reporting period related to carried-forward contract liabilities. SEE SN EEENSEE -
For the year ended
BEUTHHLEE
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Revenue recognised that was included — FE#IFTASHE BRI ER Kz -
in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year:
Rice crackers KR 440,608 307,834
Dairy products and beverages A mE e 774,964 528,480
Snack foods KEIR M 366,074 277,981
Others HAth 3,005 3,246
1,584,651 1,117,541
The Group selected to choose to apply the practical expedient and not AREFREETRETS  WEKE
to disclose remaining performance obligations as all related contracts SBTHEYNSIE  HFFEHRBAYN

have a duration of one year or less.

FHR—FRUT
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. ¥ BIERDE
Furniture,
machinery Vehicles,
and aircraftand  Construction
Freehold land Buildings equipment  transportation i progress Total
KA Gi-BE  RERE
$E1h B R RERIR ERIR a3t

RWBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBINO
ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARWTR

At1 April 2019 201954 31R

Cost HA 36907 5,267 974 9,887,668 M 3% 136015 15,599,896
Accumulated depreciation ZitfE - (19790 (6,061,197) (232602) - (8,26846)
Net book amount KEFE 36907 3,293,067 3,826,531 38730 136,015 7,331,250
Year ended 31 March 2020 HENNEIANALEE

Opening net book amount ENEERE 36907 3,203,067 3,826,531 38730 136,015 7,331,250
Additons 5 - kL 148,908 6,127 111,047 266474
Transfer upon completion THRER - 7971 114,762 1,059 (123792) -
Disposals (Note 30) B (330) - (1,388) (9.934) (1109) - (12431)
Depreciation (Note 24) & () - (204870) (611,428) (7.861) - (824,159)
Exchange differences ERZE 252 2825 23% 131 197 9846
Closing net book amount EREETE 30432 3,097,997 3471233 37,077 125,041 6,770,980
At1 April 2020 H2020E431R

Cost s 3943 508495 10,085,611 270,800 12541 15806040
Accumulated depreciation ZitfE - (186959)  (6614379) (233,723) - (9035,060)
Net book amount EG3E 39432 3,097,997 3471233 0m 125,41 6,770,980
Year ended 31 March 2021 BEANEIANALER

Opening net book amount ENEERE 39432 3,007,997 347,233 on 125,41 6,770,980
Additons 5 - 55972 19817 6,055 236,022 47,866
Transfer upon completion TREER - 147,203 102,501 1,694 (251,398) =
Disposals (Note 30) B (W330) - (4,043) (23,501) (1,050) - (26.994)
Depreciation (Note 24) & () - (205,922) (608,245) (6,822) - (820,989)
Exchange differences EiZE (612) (1,674) (T44) (32 (360) (3422)
Closing net book amount EABERE 38,820 3,089,133 3,061,061 36,922 109,505 6,335,441
At 31 March 2021 202138315

Cost s 38,820 5445263 10,005,157 270,058 109505 15,868,803
Accumulated depreciation ZitfE - (236130)  (6,94409) (233,136) - (8533362)
Net book amount REFE 38,820 3,089,133 3,061,061 36,922 109,505 6,335,441
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 6. ME . BEREE®

The majority of the buildings of the Group are erected on freehold and TEEBARBOBFERNKAERERMA
leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6 and Note 9). The buildings ErM Rk LM FERAREZ L (6 R H
comprise factories, offices, sales offices and warehouses. 739) c ZEEFEERE  PAE -

HEREERER -

For the year ended 31 March 2021, depreciation expenses of HZE2021F3831HILLEE » TER
RMB488,004,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2020: RMB502,157,000) T BRMEERERIPREARYE
have been charged in ‘cost of sales’, RMB27,262,000 (for the year 488,004,0007T (Bi£2020563H31H
ended 31 March 2020: RMB25,048,000) in ‘distribution costs’ IEFE © AK¥502,157,0007T) @ A
and RMB305,723,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2020: [ EHEA | P 2 85 A R 627,262,000
RMB296,954,000) in ‘administrative expenses'. (B E2020F3A31ALFE :

AR%25,048,0007T) RR{THE
Al 85 AR#¥305,723,0007T (&
£2020F3A31BLEEE : ARY
296,954,0007T) °

There is no pledge of property, plant and equipment for the Group as 20213 831H % 2020%F3 A 31
at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. B AEBEBEIEREAYE - HR
R -
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7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 7. BREME

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
HZE20214F %2020
3A31H 3A31H
LFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T

Investment properties REME
Opening balance FAER 37,944 38,038
Depreciation(Note 24) T8 (ffaE24) (1,200) (1,464)
Exchange differences &7 ERE (330) 1,370
Closing balance FREER 36,414 37,944
Cost D% 53,146 53,536
Accumulated depreciation HEinE (16,732) (15,592)
Net book amount BREFE 36,414 37,944

Investment properties represent offices, sales outlets and warehouses
held by the Group in Taiwan region erected on freehold land including
the cost of land and buildings, and in Chinese mainland erected on
leasehold land with lease period of 50 years including the cost of
buildings.

Net lease rental income amounting to approximately RMB2,086,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2020: RMB2,141,000) for the year ended
31 March 2021 was related to the lease of investment properties.

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2021 was
RMB92,855,445 (31 March 2020: RMB95,782,123). The valuation was
determined using the sale comparison approach and was within level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. Sales prices of comparable properties in
close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8. ERHEE
Goodwill Trademarks Software Total
HE [ L H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFT AREFT AR¥EFRT NS
At 31 March 2019 #201963F31A
Cost B 2,561 29,206 8,844 40,611
Accumulated amortisation ESp £ - (23,153) (3,259) (26,412)
Net book amount EHFE 2,561 6,053 5,585 14,199
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZ2020F38MBLLEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 2,561 6,053 5,585 14,199
Additions B - 982 181 1,163
Amortisation charge (Note 24) HHER (M24) - (1,009) (1,683) (2,692)
Exchange differences EXER - 357 - 357
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 2,561 6,383 4,083 13,027
At 31 March 2020 #2020€3531A
Cost AR 2,561 31,538 9,001 43,100
Accumulated amortisation ESig £ - (25,155) (4,918) (30,073)
Net book amount EEEE 2,561 6,363 4,083 13,027
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE01EIANABLEE
Opening net book amount EOREFE 2,561 6,383 4,083 13,027
Additions A - 669 252 921
Amortisation charge (Note 24) BB (M24) - (1,083) (1,610) (2,693)
Exchange differences EXER - (86) - (86)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 2,561 5,883 2,725 11,169
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3A31H
Cost A 2,561 31,855 9,253 43,669
Accumulated amortisation ESg £ - (25,972) (6,528) (32,500)
Net book amount REFE 2,561 5,883 2,725 11,169

Amortisation of RMB2,693,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2020:
RMB2,692,000) for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been charged
to ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income statement.

BZE2021F3A31BLEE#HEAR
#£2,693,0007T (BIZ202093H31H
IEEE : AR#2,692,0007T) B 48
ElRERMTHRER|AXZHE -
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9. LEASES

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating

9. HER

(i) REEEEREXREINEE

GREERERIIRTHREEHE

to leases: HEHE :

31 March 1 April
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 4H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE T + i {F R 877,365 946,989
Buildings and warehouses BFREE 218,421 112,756
Equipment and others Bk EM 2,665 2,544
1,098,451 1,062,289

Lease liabilities HEaE

Current lease liabilities REBEEERE 106,150 51,878
Non-current lease liabilities FRBEEES 124,475 67,034
Total lease liabilities HESERE 230,625 118,912

MEBZE2021E3831A L BEE
AEEEREA ARY194,379,000
7T (EZE2020F3A31HLEEE | AR

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the financial year ended
31 March 2021 were RMB194,379,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2020: RMB93,276,000).

2020/2021F % ANNUAL REPORT
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LEASES (continued) 9. HE®
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement (i) RESRAERERNESEE
The consolidated income statement shows the following amounts FEWaRITTIHEASEENS
relating to leases: N
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
HZE20214 EZE2020F
3A31H 3A31H
LHFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Depreciation charge of FRAEEERERX
right-of-use assets
Leasehold land and land use rights HEL R L b FERE 28,770 23,715
Buildings and warehouses EFREE 86,738 52,654
Equipment and others FEREA 1,287 1,214
116,795 77,583
Interest expense (Note 26) FIEBX (FiEE26) 4,232 6,331
Expense relating to short-term and EEMRREEHEERENEX
low-value leases (included in cost GFTASHERE® » DH#HEAR
of sales, distribution costs and THEX) (MiaE24)
administrative expenses)) (Note 24) 158,442 164,104
The total cash outflow for leases payments in the year ended 31 HZE2021F3A31HILFEE -
March 2021 was RMB245,282,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2020: ERNRBEERELERARYE
RMB220,691,000). Among the cash outflow for lease payments, the 245,282,000t (i £2020F3H31H
lease payment related to right-of-use assets was RMB86,840,000 (for IEFE © AK%220,691,0007T) °
the year ended 31 March 2020: RMB56,587,000), which is presented ENRBREREP  HEEREEEM
in cash flows from financing activities and the lease payment related BMHE N A AKRYES6,840,0007T
to short-term and low-value leases was RMB158,442,000 (for the year (BZE2020F3831HILEE - ARKE
ended 31 March 2020: RMB164,104,000), which is presented in cash 56,587,0007T) ' st AZEETHEL
flows from operating activities. MReRE  HEEHREEEHEEN

FEHNEENRAEARY158,442,000
TT(EBZE2020F3A31BLEFE : AR
#5164,104,0007T) @ FFAKEEEE
EMRERE -
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10. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 10. BiE2AFRE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
HZE20215F B ZE20205F
3A31H 3A31H
ILFE LLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBFT
Opening balance FH4ERR 15,425 18,779
Share of losses, net LS - R (2,118) (3,354)
Closing balance FoREERR 13,307 15,425
The Group’s associates are all unlisted and individually immaterial. AEEZHENRYAFE LT RER
The aggregated amounts of the Group’s share of these associates’ FTBEK - REEGHEHE AT
results are as follows: ZEBEBRINOT ¢
Total
comprehensive
Name Country of incorporation Loss loss % Interest held
2H it
L MR IER Bx BAAE Bat
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT T
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ2021F3AMALEE
Jiangsu Xing-Want Rice Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland - - 25%
THERREARAT HEER
Nanjing Yanzhenwang Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland (2,118) (2,118) 20%
BEREEREEMBERDLT HEER
(2,118) (2,118)
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZ2020F3AMBLEE
Jiangsu Xing-Want Rice Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland 1 1 25%
THELRERRDF hEER
Nanjing Yanzhenwang Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland (3,355) (3,355) 20%
BREEREEMBERAF REIER
(3,354) (3,354)
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11. @RI AEN
FVOCI Financial Total
assets at
BRATE amortised
FERHM cost
2HWETERE REBHEEER
NEMEE HRNSWMEE e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMT T AR¥T
31 March 2021 71202163 A31H
Assets as per balance sheet BEESBXRNEE
FVOCI (Note 12) RAFEZERHMEE
Wzmrc iR (MiEE12) 92,935 - 92,935
Trade receivables (Note 14) E S EWGK (FiEE14) - 920,032 920,032
Deposits and other receivables  #Z& & HEMREYE (FizE15)
(Note 15) - 352,818 352,818
Long-term bank time deposits REIRITERRF R (FI5E16)
(Note 16) - 2,850,000 2,850,000
Cash and bank balances RERBTER
(Note 16) (FFZE16) - 16,081,070 16,081,070
Total s 92,935 20,203,920 20,296,855
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R SHRLA
FRARAYE
THEeE
RMB’000
ARET R
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBRNER
Trade payables (Note 19) g Z AR (EE19) 943,281
Accruals and other payables (Note 20) FESTE & HAth 3R (B EE20) 2,005,293
Borrowings (Note 21) &Rk (ffEE21) 9,833,112
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBE (M) 230,625
Other non-current liabilities HitIERBEE 118,979
Total Bt 13,131,290
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 11. &MTRERN &)
FVOCI Financial Total
BAVE assets at

EBHEM  amortised cost

2HEWNERTER  IREHERAR
HEmEE RNWNESMEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARBET T AREET T

31 March 2020 720203 H31H

Assets as per balance sheet BEESBXRNEE

FVOCI (Note 12) RAFEZEREMEE
Wzmre iR (MiE12) 31,761 - 31,761
Trade receivables (Note 14) B 2 EUGK (FiEE14) - 846,744 846,744
Deposits and other receivables  #Z& & EMREYE (FizE15)
(Note 15) - 208,466 208,466
Cash and bank balances BeRIBTER
(Note 16) (FF=E16) - 17,256,927 17,256,927
Total #ct 31,761 18,312,137 18,343,898
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FCARAYELfD
THREE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBRNER
Trade payables (Note 19) B S B (FIEE19) 1,093,092
Accruals and other payables (Note 20) FESTE & HAth I 3R (B EE20) 1,632,160
Borrowings (Note 21) &Rk (FfEE21) 8,880,651
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBE (M) 118,912
Other non-current liabilities HineRE&E 49,033
Total 5 11,773,848
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FvocClI 12. BAFEBEBHM2EGSKLE
The FVOCI of the Group are stated at fair value and include the BEAFEEREMEEKRTEAD
following: FEYERGBEFEUATEIE :
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
HZE2021F BZE2020F
3H31H 3H31H
LFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®ETT

Opening balance FHER 31,761 38,671
Additions wNE 51,710 -
Gains/(losses) recognised in other AR 2 E R ARG (B518)
comprehensive income (Note 18) (FFEE18) 11,486 (7,765)
Exchange differences EHZEE (2,022) 855
Closing balance FAREEER 92,935 31,761
The FVOCI included the following: RAFEEBEMEEWRTLEREE
UT&IE :

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

20214 20204

3A31H 3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET T

Listed equity securities EFiERES 92,930 31,756
Unlisted equity securities ELEHRERFES 5 5
Total 5 92,935 31,761
Market value of equity EEmiE 92,935 31,761

The FVOCI are denominated in the following currencies:

BATEEBEMEEARECKRAT

SEESHE
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®T R ARBTT

Japanese Yen Ht 92,930 31,756
New Taiwan Dollar A 5 5
Total A 92,935 31,761
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13.

14.

INVENTORIES 13. 8
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3H31H 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREET T
Raw materials and packaging materials R#IEI K &9 1,443,040 1,621,545
Work in progress THm 210,882 216,331
Finished goods SR 728,882 646,599
Goods in transit ERPEY 146,015 261,692
Total 5t 2,528,819 2,746,167

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
‘cost of sales’ amounted to approximately RMB11,392,876,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2021 (for the year ended 31 March 2020:
RMB10,439,499,000).

The Group recognised losses of approximately RMB43,262,000 (for
the year ended 31 March 2020: RMB58,205,000) in respect of the
losses on obsolete inventories and write-down of inventories for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (Note 24).

HBZE202153831ALEE  ®BR
ARIUFTATHEERRINEER
KB ARYE11,392,876,0007T (B
£2020F3A31BLEEE: ARY

10,439,499,0007T) °

BZE2021F38318 1k
BREFEERMBEER

FE - AEHE
[k R

AE#43,262,0007T (B £2020%3 3
31HIEFE : AK¥58,205,0007T)

(MtzE24) °
TRADE RECEIVABLES 14. EHEKR
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20215 202045
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Trade receivables =) N
— from third parties -FERE= 966,438 886,717
— from related parties (Note 32(b)) — PR EARE 75 (F9EE32(b)) 15,689 15,494
982,127 902,211
Less: provision for impairment of W B 5 ERE
trade receivables RERE (62,095) (55,467)
Trade receivables, net B RN — 5 920,032 846,744
Most of the Group’s sales are on cash-on-delivery basis whereas REBARIBLONEELURZIREN S
those made through modern distribution channels are normally on NET  ERERSERENEER

credit terms ranging from 60 to 90 days (for the year ended 31 March
2020: 60 to 90 days).

V1Y 2020/2021 5 R ANNUAL REPORT

F—REET0RE0ENEEH
(Bl £2020F3H31HLFE : 608

Z90H) -



14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

14.

BHEMR (&)

A202153A831HK%202053 431
H > BSERKURENZZHHNERE

DA
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within 60 days 60HA 386,828 382,742
61-90 days 61290H 316,862 187,662
91-180 days 91£180H 202,668 237,273
181-365 days 181£365H 30,926 20,153
Over 365 days 365H Lk 44,843 74,381
Total Fb 982,127 902,211

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group’s trade
receivables, before provision for impairment, are denominated in the

A2021F3 8318 K%2020F3 A 31
B ROBREERER 225 ERR

following currencies: LT SIE#EHE
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20205
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB AR 872,827 759,264
Us$ ETT 41,926 33,273
New Taiwan Dollar b= 54,415 89,764
Other currencies HibE#s 12,959 19,910
Total FEoh 982,127 902,211
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 14. BHERKRR E)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of trade receivables as mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the
calculation of the allowance.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s
exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can
be found in Note 3.1.

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEEEZRUSNRAENREESR
BERAEAQNFERES -

AEERKE ABNERERRSE
ERALINE S BYCRREE °
AEBYESEEMERRERIE
e

AEEEAEBHBERELEDEIR
WL At ETEEREBL  &F
EREE SRR ERAFERES
EiEEE - BREBETENFEER
FMf5E3.1(b) °

FHEZBURERAEERGERE
PR ~ SNEE R R A R AR E R
BRMIEES.1 -

15. BRI - He Rk A tERR

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Prepayments-advanced payments SCENEISE

to suppliers — [ R TR IR 414,697 365,084

Amounts due from related parties FEUR BE s 5 R E
(Note 32(b)) (FFEE32(b)) 675 2,562
Recoverable value added tax KL ER 116,915 145,034
Prepayment for income tax BT ERRE 17,183 37,606
Deposits B 33,590 32,990
Others Hity 318,553 172,914
Total HBET 901,613 756,190

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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LONG-TERM BANK TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
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16. RUIBTEMERRAGKRBITH

BANK BALANCES EN
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Long-term bank time deposits REISRITERFR 2,850,000 -
Cash at bank and on hand ROTKFERS 8,054,020 9,906,067
Short-term bank deposits EHISRITER 8,027,050 7,350,860
Total s 18,931,070 17,256,927

The long-term bank time deposits and cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

EMRTERERRBERBTENR
BT BB HE -

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20205
3H31H 3831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREF T

Long-term bank time deposit REBITERFR
RMB AR 2,850,000 -

Cash and bank balances BERBITERK

RMB AR¥ 15,481,596 16,647,992
Us$ ESp 348,186 350,911
Others Hih 251,288 258,024
Total st 18,931,070 17,256,927

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international market.
The conversion of RMB into foreign currency and remittance of RMB
out of the PRC are subject to the rules and regulations of exchange

controls promulgated by the PRC authorities.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying values of the long-term bank time deposits and cash and

bank balances as mentioned above.

ARBEERHSLFTEHLRE
o BARBZBRBINERSARE
EHhE - A hEEEEMS 2 INE
EFRARRBIFRR

RSN EERRESEERD
RO RBEBTERERUARRER
RITFFRAVAREE
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17. SHARE CAPITAL 17. B=®E

Number of

ordinary shares,
issued and Share
fully paid Capital

BRTR
HMEZBERE B2
RMB’000
ARET R

Shares of US$0.02 each BREE0.02E Tz R

At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 818 12,449,287,135 1,871,067
Shares buy-back [gigiAE (34,103,000) (4,712)
At 31 March 2020 A2020E3H31H 12,415,184,135 1,866,355
Shares buy-back egvgi=AE] (338,260,000) (45,203)
At 31 March 2021 7A2021%F3H31H 12,076,924,135 1,821,152

The movements in issued share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2021 were set out as below:

The Company acquired 338,260,000 of its own shares for the year
ended 31 March 2021 (for the year ended 30 March 2020: 34,103,000
of its own shares) through purchases on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, and these shares were cancelled thereafter.

The total cost to acquire the above 338,260,000 shares was
RMB1,601,078,000 and has been deducted from share capital
of RMB45,203,000 and retained earnings of RMB1,555,875,000
respectively (2020: The total cost to acquire the above 34,103,000
shares was RMB184,782,000 and has been deducted from share
capital of RMB4,712,000 and retained earnings of RMB180,070,000
respectively).

2020/2021 ¥ ANNUAL REPORT
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HZE2021F3A31BLEFEE » &AQ
AEBEEBHEREAMAERLT
BB HA5338,260,0008 %17 (&
Z2020F3A30HLFE : EX 5
34,103,000/ B2 1) - MBBEIRMERZ

Ug B8 E3338,260,0008% B% 14 Fr 2
St BRAAAKRY1,601,078,000
T AR RBRAREREZRFN
BMAR®A45 203,000t 2 AR
1,555,875,0007T (20204 : UgiE E it
34,103,000 2 B 19 Fr 2 2 R A B
AER#¥184,782,0007T @ M5 BB
ARREBEFINBRARY4,712,000
TRk AR%180,070,0007T) ©
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RESERVES 18. Gl
Currency
Share Capital FVOCI  realignment ~ Statutory Retained
Premium reserves Teserves reserve Teserves Subtotal eamings Total
BATE
#BH
EEhE
ik
RiEE  &ARE  SREE EREERR  tRER Mt REEA &5
Mote RMBO0O ~ RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBI00O
fiE ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARNTR  ARETR
As at 31 March 2019 A01953A31A 462130 (7,310,629) 19323 (44723) 3120043 (3953856) 17413488 13459632
Adustments due tobusiness R EF TERAHELN
combinations under common %
control 39 - 48,640 - - - 48640 (17,049) 31,591
As at 1 April 2019 01954518 462130 (7,261,989) 19323 (44723) 3120043 (3905216) 17396439 13491223
Proft for the year EEHE - - - - - - 3649215 3649215
Shares buy-back RirER 17 - - - - - - (180070) (180,070
Changeinvalug of FVOCI  BATERBEM
PENELECEEED 1 - - (7,765) - - (1765) - (7765)
Business combinations under ~ £EEHTERAK
common control 33 - (51,986) - - - (51,986) - (51,986)
Appropriation to stafutory ey
Teserves - - - - 216,261 216,281 (216,261) -
Remeasurements of post- EffERIER2
employment beneft obligations ~ E3fiTE - 4,763 - - - 4763 - 4763
Dividends paid %fRE - - - - - - (3100502)  (3,100502)
Currency translation differences  EME{ZH - - - (398551 - (398551) - (398.551)
As at 31 March 2020 H0NE3AIA 462,130 (7,309.212) 11558 (643274) 3336324 (4,142474) 17548801  13406,327
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18. RESERVES (continued) 18. fi#fm (&)
Currency
Share Capital FVOCI  realignment  Statutory Retained
Premium reserves  reserves reseve  reserves Subtotal  earnings Total
BATE
EaLf
EEhE

KHEE B4R GREE AWARGE  AENG Nt REER it
Nos RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO000  RWB0O0  RMBOOO  RWBOO0  RMB000
ME ARETR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR

As at 31 March 2020 R00E3FHNA 462,130 (7,309.212) 11,558 (643,274) 3336324 (4142,474) 17548801 13,406,327
As at 1 April 2020 R0NE4A1A 462130 (7,309,212 11,558 (643214) 3336324 (4142474) 17548801 13,406,327
Profitfor the year EEAE - - - = = - 4157809 415780
Shres buy-back R % - - - - - - (15T (1555875)
Changeinvalu of FVOCI  BATERBEMZENE
HENEESS 72 - - 11,486 - - 11,486 - 11,486

Appropriation to stafutory URTIERE

reserves - - - - 230,649 230,649 (230,649) -
Remeasurements of post- BHERER B2

employment benefit obligations - 134 - - - 134 - 134
Dividends paid %1RE - - - - - - pEM2E (B512)
Currency translation differences  EHERZE - - - 569,179 - 569,179 - 569,179
As at 31 March 2021 RANEIFANA 462,130 (7,309,078) 23,044 (74005 3566973  (3,331,026) 16,408,851 13,077,825
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18. RESERVES (continued) 18. W (&)

(@) Share premium

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law (2003
Revision) and the Articles of Association of the Company, share
premium of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders
subject to a solvency test on the Company and the provision of the
Articles of Association of the Company.

(b) Capital reserves

This represents principally capital reserves arising from the share
swap transactions during the Group reorganisation in 2007.

(c) Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in
the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be
appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements, before profit distributions to equity holder. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory surplus
reserves, upon distribution of their post-tax profits of the current year.
A company may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum
of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered
capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production
operations, or to increase the capital of the companies. In addition,
a company may make further contribution to the discretional surplus
reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the
Board of Directors.

The Taiwan Company Law requires a company to appropriate 10%
of its annual net income to legal reserve before it declares any part of
such net income as dividends and/or bonuses, until the accumulated
legal reserve equals the total registered capital. This reserve can only
be used to cover losses, or, if the balance of the reserve exceeds
50% of the registered capital, to increase the registered capital by an
amount not exceeding 50% of the legal reserve.

2020720214 ANNUAL REPORT XN

(a) B#HEE

RIEFS B D AL (2003F87]) 5
BAMFRARNBRNARERMA - A1
AR EERHI IR TRE » HE
EANANEBEDIRRE QXA
NEERAARIRR

(b) EAXEE

HEERN2007 FREEARETR
NEBRGEENERNFHRE

(c) EEREB

HECEREREREPEEMOAF
% BAEM B RR T2 |MAVFRE
(EEUAEFENRFFRR) P - R
DIRFE T REREFE AR - BERFR
DRBETEAERBE - MEEER
BEHRBRAEMRIYL - FEILQF
RATREFENBRBEFE - A%
ERBHEEBFFBEN10% - EQ
AEAER ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’]i@%ﬂiﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ
REI50%EF - D E AfF LB o EE
BB AEREQANER
BAARMNEELESE MO ANE
Aot BREBENRER > 2
Bl A AR R R BB 15 0 B eRfE
BEHE—DHR -

[BEMBEAREIRAEQATREIR
EABINFERFRAERRER,
AR AT - S EFEFWAR10%E
BARLERE BEERNEIERES
REBFMERR L o ZEER T AE
WHER  SREZRENESRER
EMMEARNS0% - B A A /EIE i
MER  HEETSBBEEHEN
50% °



B B2 BF 35 A% B PR /A 7 | Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
e I HRRMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. TRADE PAYABLES 19. BHEMR
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Trade payables-to third parties BREAR—EAE= 943,281 1,093,092

The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2020 is as follows:

H2021FE3H31HK20205F3 431
B BSEMFHIRERITOT !

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

20215 20204

3H31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREET T

Within 60 days 60H™A 817,867 985,783
61 to 180 days 61£E180H 97,920 82,972
181 to 365 days 181£365H 9,896 11,584
Over 365 days 365H LA E 17,598 12,753
943,281 1,093,092

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximated their fair values

as at the balance sheet dates.

20. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

REEAERA  EZEMHRNEE

EEAQNFEMBS -

20. EIERARAMESR

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

20214 20205

3A318 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Accruals EtEA 1,478,961 1,167,778
Salary and welfare payables E#HE R EMNFRE 521,343 392,633
Other taxes and levies payable HittERIERHE 405,254 173,977
Deposits & 298,074 294,000
Advance received for plant resettlement FEURIFIBHERR = 172,313
Others Hith 228,258 170,382
Total wst 2,931,890 2,371,083

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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21. BORROWINGS 21. B&®
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20215 20205
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Non-current IERE
Bonds (Notes(a)) &2 (FiEE(a)) 3,273,214 3,517,184
Long term bank borrowings RERATE R — HIKA
— unsecured (Note(b)) (F¥EE(b)) 3,219,937 4,776,382
6,493,151 8,293,566
Current JREJJ
Short term bank borrowings G HRR 1T fE Ak — MRIK
— unsecured (Note(c)) (r!ﬁa?z(c)) 3,339,961 587,085
Total borrowings HERR 9,833,112 8,880,651
Note (a): FfEE(a) :

In 2017, the Group issued US$500,000,000 guaranteed bonds which will be
repayable in whole on 27 April 2022. The Bonds were issued with a principal
amount of US$500,000,000, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 2.875% per
annum, payable semi-annually and listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The offering price for the Bonds is 98.878% of its principal
amount. The value of the liability, taking into account of the transaction costs of
RMB17,875,000, was determined upon issuance of the Bonds.

Note (b):

As at 31 March 2021, long term bank borrowings are mainly comprised of
US$490,000,000 long term borrowings from Mizuho Bank which will be
repayable in May and December 2023.

Note (c):

As at 31 March 2021, short term bank borrowings are mainly comprised of
US$335,000,000 and RMB 670,000,000 short term borrowings from Bank of
China (HK), US$45,000,000 and JPY 1,120,000,000 short term borrowings
from Mizuho Bank, RMB 100,000,000 short term borrowings from Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China and Beijing Rural Commercial Bank, JPY
180,000,000 from Daishi Hokuetsu Bank and JPY 76,000,000 from IWATSUKA
Confectionery Co., Ltd.

2020720214 ANNUAL REPORT [|ZENEN

R2017F » XREBFBRTHEERES
500,000,000 7T » M4 202254 A 27
BBBEE - "€ %5500,000,000E T
ZESERIT  Wik2.875% 2B EER
Ei R BRE¥EXNTRREBHERS
FERATB LT - BEF2REEBARERE
©%0.298.878% ° TR B HAARE
17,875,000t% » BEZEBECEREER
TREE -

FfEE(D) :

A2021F3A8318 » RHETERE
EaEMizuho BankEUEH & EE R
490,000,000 7t (HA2023FE58 K128
Bz -

FEE(c) :

M2021F3A318 - Lﬁﬂfﬂfﬂanzi’@
JERPERT (BB EBNWEBRERA
elgg335 000,000t & A R#670,000, 000
7T #Mizuho BankEUSHEHI{E R
45,000,000;75&1,120,000,000E|
7_1: RHEIHRITRIETEFRTER
BHEHERARYE100,000,0007T »
19(}32 5 Bl#Daishi Hokuetsu Bank&
IWATSUKA Confectionery Co., Ltd.E{§
#9180,000,000 H 7t % 76,000,000 A 7T °
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21. BORROWINGS (continued) 21. ERE
The effective weighted average interest rates per annum of bank REEEGRBNBITER(TER
borrowings (excluding Notes and Bonds payable) at the balance sheet ENRBERES) BERMEFHYEF
dates are as follows: T -

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

20215 20204

3A31H 3HA31H

RMB AR 3.82% 3.96%

us$ Ep 0.76% 1.59%

Other currencies Hh g 0.63% 0.59%
At 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group’s borrowings were A2021%3831HK2020%3 A 31

repayable as follows: H > AEBNEREEEFEAT

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

20215 2020

3A31H 3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Within 1 year 1R 3,339,961 587,085

Between 1 and 2 years 1225 3,273,214 4,776,382

Between 2 and 5 years 2FE55F 3,219,937 3,517,184

9,833,112 8,880,651
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are not materially different to HATENZRBYEEE  EXWIRE
their fair values, as the market interest rates are relatively stable. The BHHEHENFEERZREEAEER - A EE
fair values are based on discounted cash flows using a rate based on DEBAENERF RPN ZBIED B
the borrowing rate and are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. RIS REFENER AT EERSE

28 ©
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21. BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were denominated in
the following currencies:

21. ERE

AEEERNERAEUNTIERRE

i :

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

20215 20204

3H31H 3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREET T

us$ EV 8,981,166 7,827,141
RMB ARHE 770,000 1,021,000
Other currencies HihE#s 81,946 32,510
9,833,112 8,880,651

The Group had the following undrawn bank borrowing facilities as at

REEEBEXRBAKEE TIIRER

the balance sheet date: RSRITIE R RS ¢
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20205
38318 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
US$ facilities ERE 5,191,899 3,163,809
RMB facilities AR¥mIE 3,922,035 4,192,282
Other facilities Hibmid 24,243 24,758
9,138,177 7,380,849
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22.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax

22, EIEFRRR

EEFSHEERELEMSHAED

liabilities is as follows: AT
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20205
3A31H 3H318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETTT
Deferred income tax assets: ELEFTSHERE -
— Deferred income tax assets to be — 1218 B AUk E Y
recovered within 12 months BLEMENEE 315,984 219,209
— Deferred income tax assets to be — 1218 B & U= 69
recovered after 12 months BLEMENEE 57,783 68,327
373,767 287,536
Deferred income tax liabilities: IEIEFTEFAas
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be  — 1218 B &K@ K
recovered after 12 months EEFTEREs 348,267 214,378

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
each of the periods, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

EHMEELEHREHEEREB(RA
ZRAGUER -HRENEE) B

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: SEWMT :
Deferred income tax assets: EEFBSHREE -
Other
temporary
Tax losses differences* Total
Hit
K E R T E R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR¥ET T
At 1 April 2019 H2019F4 818 74,163 168,042 242,205
(Charge)/credit to the e lER
consolidated income (Z88) &
statement (7,973) 52,963 44,990
Exchange differences &5 ERE - 341 341
At 31 March 2020 720203 831H 66,190 221,346 287,536
(Charge)/credit to the EREREE
consolidated income () &
statement (14,843) 101,184 86,341
Exchange differences [EHZEE - (110) (110)
At 31 March 2021 1R2021F3831H 51,347 322,420 373,767
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22. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
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22, RIEFRBI )

Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFRSHEME
Withholding
tax Others Total
FENH Hith et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR¥T T AR¥T T
At 1 April 2019 MR2019F481H 267,394 134 267,528
Charge to the consolidated TR ElER
income statement | 180,000 - 180,000
Transfer to tax payable EREENBIE (233,150) - (233,150)
At 31 March 2020 72020 3H831H 214,244 134 214,378
Charge to the consolidated TERElER
income statement 85 365,000 — 365,000
Transfer to tax payable ERERENTIE (231,111) - (231,111)
At 31 March 2021 M2021F3831H 348,133 134 348,267

Other temporary differences mainly represent the unrealised profits,
accrued expenses and provisions.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March 2021,
the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB131.7
million (31 March 2020: RMB84.0 million) in respect of losses
amounting approximately to RMB527.2 million (31 March 2020:
RMB335.8 million) that can be carried forward against future taxable.
These tax losses as at 31 March 2021 amounting to RMB71.2 million,
RMB93.7 million, RMB41.0 million, RMB142.9 million and RMB178.4
million will expire in year 2021, year 2022, year 2023, year 2024 and
year 2025 respectively.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the earnings of certain
subsidiaries incorporated in PRC for the year ended 31 March 2021
that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future. As to
the other subsidiaries incorporated in PRC, the Group has no plan
to distribute the respective retained earnings as at 31 March 2021.
Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB275,188,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB432,188,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax and the related unremitted earnings of subsidiaries amount to
RMB5,503,762,000 (31 March 2020: RMB8,643,762,000) as at 31
March 2021.
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REVREBEBARRESHAEMER
EERERE - RERmEENTHIEE
EMBERELFESHERE - K2021
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W E D IRN2021F3A31BHNE
THBIREBRF - H2021F3731H -
AN AR#275,188,0007T (2020
#3H31H : AK™432,188,000
TC) WARRIEEMEHEE - M8
BEHBARNADREINAARYE
5,503,762,0007t (202053 A31R :
AER#8,643,762,0007T) °



B B2 BF 35 A% B PR /A 7 | Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
e I HRRMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. OTHER GAINS - NET 23. Hfthlris — B8
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
BZ20214F BZ2020F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains BE 5% (B518) & (2,972) 35,856
Donation expenses 1BEERE (20,484) (33,285)
Gains/(losses) on disposal of property, HEWE - EBERHRER
plant and equipment and land use T E RN (E5E)
rights 230,137 (8,152)
Income from long-term bank time deposits & 2R 1T E I E RSN ES 73,775 -
Others HAth 8,662 14,261
Total #Et 289,118 8,680
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24. EXPENSES BY NATURE 24, BHEHBSHRAX

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
HZE20214 BZE2020F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Raw materials used and changes 2 AR
in inventory REFEZE 8,582,276 7,691,015
Promotion and advertising expenses SEERESRX 544,624 573,899
Employee benefit expenses including ETEFBX (BEEEMHS)
directors’ emoluments (Note 25) (Bt EE25) 4,027,181 3,839,830
Transportation expenses EHR Y 888,703 814,146
Water, electricity and energy expenses KERAEERX 587,597 593,354
Depreciation of property, plant and Y3 - MR NRBITE
equipment (Note 6) (Fff3E6) 820,989 824,159
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE
(Note 9) (FfF3E9) 116,795 77,583
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERH
(Note 8) (Fff3E8) 2,693 2,692
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REVEITE
(Note 7) (FfEE7) 1,200 1,464
Rental expenses for low value and REEREHESHSHAX
short-term lease (Note 9) (FfF3E9) 158,442 164,104
Losses on obsolete and write-down PREE R F B MURES 18
of inventories (Note 13) (Fg7E13) 43,262 58,205
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment & 5 EWFCRERE, (BE)
of trade receivables (Note 3.1(b)) (FfFEE3.1(b)) 6,638 (16,655)
Auditor’s remuneration BRI &
— Audit service — %R 4,300 4,300
Machinery parts and HREHR
maintenance expenses REREX 299,928 260,464
Others Hitb 787,298 827,417
Total of cost of sales, distribution costs ~ $§& KA ~ 2 EEAAR
and administrative expenses 1THE A 16,871,926 15,715,977
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25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 25. BETaFIBAX

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
H 20215 HZE20205
3A31H 3H318
ILEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREF T
Wages and salaries TENFS 3,399,414 3,071,873
Pension and other social welfare EREREMHEERER 414,592 625,999
Other benefits HAn g F 213,175 141,958
Total including Directors’ emoluments B IR ESEHN 4,027,181 3,839,830

(@) Five highest paid individuals (a) BEESFHAL

FEEBERSFHNOIEALBEEN
BES (BE2020F3A31HLFE :
ME) » HFHMENEIS2 MBI D
PR RIBEAFERNTHEE—F
(BE20205F3A31HLEEFEE | —F)

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in the Group
included four Directors (for the year ended 31 March 2020: four)
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 35.
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (for the year ended
31 March 2020: one) highest paid individuals during the years are as

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

2,000,001t £2,500,0007& 7T
1,500,001 7T £2,000,0005% JT

follows: BEHFATHMESOT -
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
HZE202145 HZE202045
3H31H 3A31H
IEFE HFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Salaries e 608 614
Discretionary bonuses B ETEAL 1,181 705
Other benefits* HibER 187 218
1976 1,537
In the band of: RENF

* Hitb @R BEEERITERE -

* Other benefits include housing and car allowances.
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26. FINANCE INCOME - NET 26. MBEKA — B
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 H 220205
3A31H 3A31H
ILEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREET T
Finance cost RE AR
— Interest expenses on borrowings —ERAEREX (204,147) (306,227)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilites —HESEBMNEHX (4,232) (6,331)
(208,379) (312,558)
Finance income BE A
— Interest income on cash and -BERBITERIE
bank balances A 469,161 558,767
Net finance income OO 260,782 246,209
27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 27. FhiiSREHR
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
BZ2021%F E 220205
3H31H 3A31H
IEEFEE IEFEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Current income tax EEISH
Current income tax on profits FERABEH
for the year EHIFRS® 1,568,502 1,277,536
Deferred income tax EIEFTSH
Withholding tax on dividends from FEIRANB L ERE
Chinese mainland subsidiaries ZTENT 365,000 180,000
Origination and reversal of tax losses ~ FIEEEREFEERDN
and temporary differences EERER (86,341) (44,990)
Total wst 1,847,161 1,412,546
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27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 27. FiRREBR#E
7 52 [ R BT 15 B4 A0 A BT 804 B9 B
HERPBBEREERE25% (B2
202053 A31BILFE 1 25%) 5t EH

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate in the
Chinese mainland of 25% (for the year ended 31 March 2020: 25%) as

follows: EmBIRENERENT ¢
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
8Z202145 HZ2020%F
3H31H 3HA31H
LFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T

Profit before income tax FR 4S84 A1 A1 5,994,842 5,048,789
Income tax calculated at statutory BHEBEAEERETEN SR

tax rate in the Chinese mainland 1,498,711 1,262,197
Effect of different tax rates and HEARTREREREBERRNTE

preferential tax rates of subsidiaries (11,802) 5,572
Expenses not deductible for TAOBR X

tax purposes 24,878 33,989
Additional deduction of research and EE/MOB A B X

development expenses (86,799) (96,737)
Tax loss for which the deferred income I EREZIELE TSR EER

tax assets was not recognised HIEEE 44,608 22,848
Reversal of deferred income tax assets O REEIREIEEBAREEMN

which could not be realized according EEFERERE

to management expectation 12,565 4,677
Withholding tax on dividends from FREIE RHTE D R RS 2 FE B

Chinese mainland subsidiaries 365,000 180,000
Income tax charge FRrASHL 1,847,161 1,412,546

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of Cayman Islands
income tax.

Enterprises incorporated in the Chinese mainland are subject to
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) mainly at rate of 25% (during the year
ended 31 March 2020: 25%) during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Enterprises incorporated in other places are subject to income tax at
the prevailing rates of 0% to 30% during the year ended 31 March
2021 (during the year ended 31 March 2020: 0% to 30%).
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27.

28.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

According to the new Corporate Income Tax Law of the Chinese
mainland, starting from 1 January 2008, a reduced withholding tax rate
of 10% will generally be levied on the immediate holding companies
outside the Chinese mainland when their Chinese mainland
subsidiaries declare dividend out of profits earned after 1 January
2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the
immediate holding companies of the Chinese mainland subsidiaries
are established in Singapore or Hong Kong, holding at least 25%
interest in the Chinese mainland subsidiaries and recognized as the
beneficial owner of the Chinese mainland subsidiaries according to
applicable tax treaty arrangements and Chinese mainland tax laws.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year.
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27. FRiRRBA#E)

BIEPERAEFCERESHE A
2008F1A18#E - MPEEIIEBIE
B& 2 B H H ElE A B B A Bl Ek2008
FI1ATBEFHREBFENRE B
BERATRBERIZ10%HEHIE
N - REEANBRUBEZHER P
B RFERERE  MAPBRBEAHRB L
AMNEBER A TEFINEREBR
Mo WEHRERRBEAKBLTRDR
25%#% 0 URFETEERMBA
AZEMEAEND  ABEN5%TE
MBI R -

28. HEET
(a) EK
ERERBFIEAQNAEZISTEARE

(SRR R EEE BT HBR 2N
AT -

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
HZE2021F HZ2020F
3A31H 3A31H
LtFE LFE
Profit attributable to equity holders RATERIFE AEGRE
of the Company (RMB'000) (AR 5T) 4,157,809 3,649,215
Weighted average number of ordinary ERTERRMEFIH
shares in issue (thousands) (FB) 12,288,575 12,422,335

Basic earnings per share

BREFBA

RMB33.83 cents RMB29.38 cents
AR#33.83% AR#29.38%

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per

share since the Company does not have diluted shares.

(o) #H

HRAQRLEBTRND - SRS
BRNESREANBNEE -
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29.

DIVIDENDS 29.

R
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
8Z202145 HZ2020%
3HA31H 3A31H
LEFE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Interim dividend paid of US0.65 cent ENEERTHRESRR0.6551

(for the year ended 31 March 2020: (BZE2020F3A31HLFE :

US0.64 cent) per ordinary share 0.6434L) 521,051 557,138
Proposed final dividend of US1.46 cents #iR{STE BRI EEIR1.4651L

(for the year ended 31 March 2020: (BZE20205F3A31HLFE :

US2.42 cents) per ordinary share 2.422Al) (FzE(a))

(note (a)) 1,188,950 2,125,530
Proposed special dividend of for the BRI EZ 202053831 ILFE

year ended 31 March 2020: US1.10 ZERSBIRESIR1.103E4L

cents per ordinary share (note (b)) (FfEE(b)) - 966,547

1,710,001 3,649,215

(@) On 22 June 2021, the Board recommended the payment
of a final dividend of US1.46 cents (for the year ended 31
March 2020: US2.42 cents) per ordinary share, totalling
RMB1,188,950,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2020:
RMB2,125,530,000) for the year ended 31 March 2021. The
proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2021 is calculated based on the total number of shares in issue
as at the date of this report. The payment of the proposed final
dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Company’s
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements
do not reflect this dividend payable.

(b) For the year ended 31 March 2020, special dividend of
US1.10 cents per ordinary share was recommended, totalling
RMB966,547,000. The financial statements as at 31 March 2020
did not reflect this dividend payable.

The dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted
to RMB3,511,235,000, comprising the final dividend and special
dividend of RMB2,990,184,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020
and the interim dividend of RMB521,051,000 for the year ended 31
March 2021, which were paid in September 2020 and December 2020
respectively.
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30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30. EEEEMRE
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) EEEEMNED
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
BZ2021% HZ2020F
3A31H 3A31H
EFEE HEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
Profit before income tax BRFRS B AT RIS 5,994,842 5,048,789
Adjustments for: BUTSEELRE
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W3 - B RBEITE (56
equipment (Note 6) 820,989 824,159
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FRAREENE ()
(Note 9) 116,795 77,583
— Depreciation of investment properties —REWMEE M)
(Note 7) 1,200 1,464
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) — &L & E#H (1:18) 2,693 2,692
— (Gains)/losses on disposals of leasehold ~ —EEHE 1k + AR
land and land use rights and property, ME - BERSRE (KR BE
plant and equipment (Note 23) (Mi3¥23) (230,137) 8,152
— Losses on obsolete inventories and -REFERFEMRES (HE24)
write-down of inventories (Note 24) 43,262 58,205
— Provision for/(reversal of) impairment -GS RNFRERE (BmE)
of trade receivables (Note 24) (Miz¥24) 6,638 (16,655)
— Interest income (Note 26) —FIS WA (FigEE26) (469,161) (558,767)
— Interest income from long-term bank time ~~ — REISRITEHEZR A B WA
deposits (Note 23) (Pt EE23) (73,775) -
— Interest expenses (Note 26) —FIE B (FFEE26) 208,379 312,558
— Share of losses of associates (Note 10) — B E & A R B8 (F9EE10) 2,118 3,354
6,423,843 5,761,534
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
— Decrease/(increase) in inventories -BZERD /() 174,086 (416,625)
— (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  — & 5 R (48 40) /B (79,916) 204,881
— Increase in prepayments, deposits and —FERFIE - Be Rk EAEREEMN
other receivables (63,734) (19,712)
— (Decrease)/increase in trade payables -ESEAR D), 1Em (149,811) 58,192
— (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BTG ;JEK’J\ /8 (27,868) 467,110
— Increase in accruals and other payables —Fi‘f%)ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁgﬁ Syl 525,247 336,027
Cash generated from operations SEELNES 6,801,847 6,391,407
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 30. BEEEEMBRE (@

EEELENRE A

(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a)

RRERERTD  EEHEL KL
R LA D 3E - HEEE R ERIBRV AR

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of leasehold land and
land use rights and property, plant and equipment comprise:

BRERRE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
BZ20214F BZ2020F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Net book amount of property, M~ HEEREE
plant and equipment (Note 6) BRE A (K EE6) 28,994 12,431
Net book amount of leasehold land FAE L&+ i F ARERE
and land use rights FE 37,674 -
Gains/(losses) on disposals of BB i AR
land use AR YIZE - B REE
rights and property, plant and EEzWiE (58)
equipment (Note 23) (Fff5E23) 230,137 (8,152)
Proceeds from disposals of property, BEEYZ  MEREHEUR
plant and equipment and land use T ith s FIAE
rights FTiSFIE 296,805 4,279
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 30. EEEEMRE (B
(b)  Net cash reconciliation (b) HEFREHEKR
This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the movements in AEHHII 2 SHENRESFER
net cash for each of the periods presented. REFEHEEE DN °
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
Net cash RERHE 2021 2020
HZE2021F EZE2020F
3A31H 3A31H
LHFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Cash and bank balances BHeRIRITER 16,081,070 17,256,927
Long-term bank time deposits RESBITEHER 2,850,000 -
Borrowings — repayable within one year &3 —BR—FREE (3,339,961) (587,085)
Borrowings — repayable after one year £ —ER—FREE (6,493,151) (8,293,566)
Lease liabilities HEBE (230,625) (118,912)
Net cash e FERE 8,867,333 8,257,364
Cash and bank balances RERBITER 16,081,070 17,256,927
Long-term bank time deposits RERITEHER 2,850,000 -
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BERARE -EEMER (4,585,780) (4,893,181)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BERARE —F BRI (5,477,957) (4,106,382)
Net cash BEFE 8,867,333 8,257,364
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30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 30. BEEEEMBRE (@

(b)  Net cash reconciliation (continued) (b)y BREFHEEHEKRGE)
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HthEE AETBELNEE
Cash Long-term  Borrowings  Borrowings
and bank bank time due within due after Lease
balances deposits 1 year 1 year liabilities Total
BER REBT R-FRIH R-F23I8
RITER EBEN ER MER HE8E oy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARBTr ARETR ARt ARETR  AR%Tx
Net cash as at 31 March 2019 X2019E3 3310
R4TE 17,160,428 (1743882)  (7,773478) o 7,643,068
Recognised on adoption of RRGEBHBREENSE
HKFRS 16 1635 - - - (105,596) (105,596)
17,160,428 (1,743,882) (7,773,478) (105,596) 7537472
Cash flows Befg 63,203 1,207,085 (112,215) 56,587 1,214,660
Recognition of right-of-use assets B2 HEEE - - - (69,903) (69,903)
Foreign exchange differences ~ JME§Z 33,296 (50,288) (396,470) - (413,462)
Other non-cash movements ~ EfiFE &2 - - (11,403) - (11,403)
Net cash as at 31 March 2020 142020373181
B4FE 17,256,927 (587,085)  (8203,566) (118912 8,257,364
Cash flows Rene (1,132,014) 2,850,000 (152,457) (1,412,752) 86,840 239,617
Recognition of right-of-use assets i AL E - - - (198,553) (198,553)
Foreign exchange differences ~ JMEF§E (43,843) 31,890 592,286 = 580,333
Other non-cash movements HEitkReey = (2,632,309) 2,620,881 = (11,428)
Net cash as at 31 March 2021 R2021E3 3310
R4TE 16081070 2850000  (3339.961)  (6493151)  (230,625) 8,867,333
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31. COMMITMENTS 31. Xifz
(@) Capital commitments (a) EAEE
Capital expenditure contracted for at 31 March 2021 and 31 March M2021F3831H K% 202053 B 31
2020 but not yet incurred is as follows: H EENERFENERRIEN
T
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20215 20205
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Contracted but not accounted for: E2ENERAER:
— Property, plant and equipment — Y - WBRREE 26,980 32,112
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERE
Operating lease commitments — as lessor AREHERNE— BHFAA
The Group leases out certain office premises, plant and equipment AEBRBELEHEHZHES Tl
under operating lease agreements. The leases have various terms NEYZE - WBRREE - ZEHER
and renewal rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receivables BETRFHRENERN - REZEL
under these operating leases are as follows: EHE ARBREERESLEN
T :
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20215 20205
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
No later than 1 year 1F: R 4,839 1,167
Later than 1 year and no later 1225
than 2 years 608 460
Later than 2 year and no later 2B 3F
than 3 years 460 460
Later than 3 year and no later 3E4F
than 4 years 460 460
Later than 4 year and no later 4Z55F
than 5 years 460 460
Later than 5 years 5Lk 2,645 3,105

9,472 6,112
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32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and his

families.

(a) Transactions with related parties

- BBARS

REBZERERBTR/BETHLEE
(FAEEZEFERTHAR) REXR

o

(a) EEREBAHIRS

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
HZE20214F BZ2020F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Sales of goods HEEW
— a minority shareholder of a —REE-BEHE AT
subsidiary of the Group 22— BDERR 25,006 29,925
Purchases of goods and services BERRERE
— a company which a Director of the —KREE—FRESHEER
Group has beneficial interest EEz—BAT 4,804 5,559
— a minority shareholder of —AEE—-BEHEA R
a subsidiary of the Group Z—BLERER 1,787 -
— a subsidiary of a company which - —BHrEEEEEREES
is beneficially owned by the AT Z—ENBAT
Chairman of the Group 1,310 1,310
— a company controlled by the —REEEERETEHIE
Chairman of the Group Z—ERE] 45,849 13,930
Total purchases of goods and services B E &R & RIGET 53,750 20,799
Advertising expense BERX
— a company controlled by the —REEFEREEEHRE
Chairman of the Group Z—EAT 2,128 33,713
Rental expenses of buildings EFHESMEX
— companies controlled by the —REBEEEREEEEE
Chairman of the Group ZAE 54,982 50,405
Rental income of buildings BFHESWA
— companies jointly controlled by the - AEBEXEHERRE
Chairman of the Group PR RE 2 D ) 1,791 1,791

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the above transactions
are carried out in the ordinary course of business and in accordance

with the terms of the underlying agreements.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32.

(b) Balances with related parties

B A RS (&)

(b) EEREEEETTHVAEER

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20215 20205
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Trade receivables (Note 14) B 5 K (FiEE14)
— a minority shareholder of a —REE—EHEAAE
subsidiary of the Group Z—BDERR 15,689 15,494
Other receivables (Note 15) HAb WK (BiEE15)
— subsidiaries of a company which - FAEEEXFEEREEZ
is beneficially owned by the RRINMIE AT
Chairman of the Group 675 2,562
Other non-current liabilities HitnEREBEE
—a company jointly controlled by - FREEETEREHLE
the Chairman of the Group 2 —B AR 8,965 9,884
Other payables HAEI R
— a company jointly controlled by —-REBEEEREEHRRE
the Chairman of the Group g2 —B AR 919 919
Lease liabilities HEAE
— subsidiaries of a company which - AEBETXEEREEZ
is beneficially owned by the ARNHE AR
Chairman of the Group 107,347 -

The receivables are unsecured, bear no interest and without fixed
repayment terms.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32. AMARS (E)
(c) Key management compensation (c) FEEBAEHE
TEEBAEEEEE(PITESEH

FHUTEBIRSREBEAE - BE
EEBABXMERETIRBNEHN

Key management includes Directors (executive and non-executive)
and senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

FENMEOT -

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

HZE2021%F HZE20205

3A31H 3A31H

ItEE EFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Fees we 5,480 5,541

Salaries e 5,939 5,885

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 129,642 88,232

Other benefits HbigF 4,808 4,670
Employer’s contribution to EEHRIAEEE

pension scheme HIEEER 419 479

Total #Et 146,288 104,807
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION 33. E¥aH

Acquisition of Poyang County Linwang Forestry Development Co.,
Limited

In June 2019, Want Want (HK) Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a share purchase agreement with San
Want Holdings Limited, pursuant to which, Want Want (HK) Holdings
Limited acquired Poyang County Linwang Forestry Development Co.,
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Poyang Linwang”) from San Want
Holdings Limited at a total consideration of USD7.35 million. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, Poyang Linwang carries on a
business. Before and after the acquisition, Want Want (HK) Holdings
Limited and San Want Holdings Limited were ultimately controlled
by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, and the control was not temporary. As such,
the acquisition is considered to be a business combination under
common control. According to Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common Control Combination” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the comparative
financial figures of the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated cash flow statement and
related explanatory notes of the Group were restated as if Poyang
Linwang had been combined since the date of establishment in
2008. The comparative financial figures of the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income of
the Group were not restated as the amount was insignificant.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Poyang Linwang
as at the transaction date and the comparative financial figures were as
follows:

B ESRS BAMEE MBI R AR A E)

H20195F6 8 » ARABINFRABIEHE
RERTIERR B IR A A AR AR A
AFTTRERBHE  REZH
E 0 BBEIERERA K HEE
BB BR A T U EE T B RS SR MR EE MR
BERAT ([EBEME]) - BEHER
735BET - NRBEERE BB
MBS —THERK - WiBAIE » B8
RERFIERBR A A R ERAERA
Y HESTIH A RALES » BEN
JEEEFMM - Bt > WIBHIRARE
EHEITHEESS - REBEBZ B
ABBHENEERTIESIERERE—
BEHTEHASTERE]  AEBHRE
EEAGER HEoEREHX  HE
RERERK BTN ERTHEE
FETTES - BANEEZ AT B 2008
FER 2 ARMCHASH - ZEH
FEWRRRESEHKRERMEER
PR FRESBELERARETES -

RX5 BBREME 2 EEREER
HERLBFBEHZHIIOT -

18 June 2019 31 March 2019

20194 20195
6H18H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
ASSETS BE
Property, plant and equipment I3 - MR NERB 7,106 7,134
Inventories BB 4,617 3,701
Trade receivables g 5 EWE 678 21
Prepayments, deposits and other FERIE ~ BE R EMERRK
receivables 2,106 774
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 16,750 26,337
LIABILITIES af&
Borrowings L5 - 3,000
Accruals and other payables FEST & A R At TR 361 3,266
Contract liabilities EHEE - 110
Net Assets FEE 30,896 31,591
Total purchase consideration B E¥HEEEE 51,986
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 34. XAFEBARE  WEE  He
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE MERREFEEE
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company KAREERER
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W3 - MR RERIE 35 52
Investments in subsidiaries RIB A RMIRE 5,833,597 6,289,717
5,833,632 6,289,769
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUSFH B A B I FIE 5,952,653 3,279,016
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FA{IFIE ~ &K
receivables H b e R 1,222 1,329
Cash and bank balances BeRIIBITER 24,765 47,584
5,978,640 3,327,929
Total assets BEE 11,812,272 9,617,698
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity EATEEHFEA
holders of the Company bR
Share capital R 1,821,152 1,866,355
Reserves e (Note(a))
(Htzt(a)) 4,278,103 4,138,810
Total equity HRER 6,099,255 6,005,165
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FEREBERE
Due to subsidiaries FEAS B A B YRR IE 298,994 322,372
Borrowings (B - 670,000
298,994 992,372
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to subsidiaries FETHT B 2 Bl FFRIE 4,650,403 2,209,216
Other payables HEARR 93,620 10,094
Borrowings R 670,000 400,851
5,414,023 2,620,161
Total liabilities HEE 5,713,017 3,612,533
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 11,812,272 9,617,698
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of AATEEBBERCHEETEMN2021
Directors on 22 June 2021 and was signed on its behalf. FoR22AHLE  WRKRESER
E- 8
Tsai Wang-Chia Chu Chi-Wen
IR REX
Director Director
EE EE
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

34.

e P HRAR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FLFREARE  WEER - -Be

mERREMEE ()

Income statement of the Company NI EES

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

BZ2021F BZE2020F

3A31H 3A31H

LEFE IHEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Dividend income BB U A 5,846,230 3,229,102
Other income =2 @N 17,737 534
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (8598) W= — B8 (56,755) 31,015
Administrative expenses THEAR (109,179) (32,436)
Operating profit EEFE 5,698,033 3,228,215
Finance income mMEUWA 46 7,380
Finance cost RLE AR (29,973) (58,860)
Finance cost-net RYE RS — F R (29,927) (51,480)
Profit before income tax BR P18 84 AT R 5,668,106 3,176,735
Income tax expense FrsHiEHR - (2,252)
Profit for the year FEFE 5,668,106 3,174,483

Profit attributable to: FEMRRIE :

— Equity holders of the Company —ARNAERFEA 5,668,106 3,174,483
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 34. FAFRERBSE  WER  Re
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE REERFHFESD E)
COMPANY (continued)

Cash flow statement of the Company AARRERER
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
BZ2021%F BZE2020F
3A31H 3H31H
LHFE IFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities ZEEENHELSHRE
Cash (used in)/generated from EEER) EEN Note (b)
operations Re K&t (b) (63,385) 969
Interest paid 2FE (31,135) (74,809)
Interest received 2 WFIE 46 34,147
Income tax paid 2B - (2,252)
Net Cash used in operating activities & EZBFIANFRS (94,474) (41,945)
Cash flows from investing activities BREZENRERE
(Payments)/proceeds from loans to (FEIFRIE) /IR e b B
subsidiaries NEMER (237,673) 499,091
Investment in a subsidiary RBARNRE - (1,108)
Dividends received from subsidiaries @& A 5 WEHI AR B 3,410,266 1,854,546
Net Cash generated from investing RETBHEE
activities HFRE 3,172,593 2,352,529
Cash flows from financing activities BEEEBNRERE
Shares buy-back egntiAE (1,601,078) (184,782)
Dividends paid to equity holders of BN REEEE A
the Company THRE (3,511,235) (3,100,058)
Repayment of borrowings BEER (1,413,512) (1,617,451)
Proceeds from borrowings BT RIE 1,015,793 2,187,026
Proceeds from borrowings from o) Y B BB TR P15
subsidiaries FE 2,417,809 416,745
Net Cash used in financing activiies ~ BEZBFTARNERS (3,092,223) (2,298,520)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RE&ERBSEEYW (RL),
cash equivalents by ilipesdec] (14,104) 12,064
Cash and cash equivalents at FONEeRES
beginning of year ZEY 47,584 1,338
Exchange (losses)/gains [E % (5518) Wz (8,715) 34,182
Cash and cash equivalents atend FRHEER
of the year REEEY 24,765 47,584
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW

34. FAFREARE WK - He

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE RERRGEREE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MzE(a) AR B EEE
Share Currency Retained
premium Realignment earnings Total
R EE EWES| REBR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETR ARBTR AR¥FR
As at 1 April 2019 M20195481R 462,130 (448,902) 3,886,752 3,899,980
Profit for the year FEFHE - - 3,174,483 3,174,483
Shares buy-back R EEE - - (180,070) (180,070)
Currency translation differences EXELER - 344,919 - 344,919
Dividends paid XARE - - (3,100,502)  (3,100,502)
As at 31 March 2020 A2020563H31H 462,130 (103,983) 3,780,663 4,138,810
As at 1 April 2020 2020564 81A 462,130 (103,983) 3,780,663 4,138,810
Profit for the year FEFH - - 5,668,106 5,668,106
Shares buy-back IR PEEE - - (1,555,875)  (1,555,875)
Currency translation differences EXEHER - (461,703) - (461,703)
Dividends paid TRRE - - (3,511,235) (3,511,235
As at 31 March 2021 R20216F3H31H 462,130 (565,686) 4,381,659 4,278,103
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note (b) Cash (used in)/generated from operations

34. FNFHREARE WK - He
mERREWEE ()

MizE(b)&E (FTH) EENEE

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
HZE2021%F HZE20205
3HA31H 3A31H
LFEE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Profit before income tax R PR S B AT A 5,668,106 3,176,735
Adjustments for: MUTREELRZE
— Depreciation of property, — WP BBR
plant and equipment RIBITE 17 11
— Interest income —F B A (46) (7,380)
— Interest cost —FEXH 29,973 58,860
_ Dividend income —REWA (5,846,230) (3,229,102)
(148,180) (876)
Changes in working capital: EHEESHE
— Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments, —JB{FIE ~ e R HAL
deposits and other receivables FEWEURL (3 h0) 107 (248)
— Increase in accruals and - ERAREMENRK
other payables 0 84,688 2,093
Cash (used in)/generated SiE(ER) EE
from operations HIEE (63,385) 969
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35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35. EXFETIRES
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERSNEEAEMS
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set out ARRBESRSREEAEMER
below. PN o
For the year ended 31 March 2021, emoluments paid or payable in BZ2021F3A31ALLEE  HAE
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company Bz ATz ARESBE (THRB
or its subsidiary undertaking: AARHEMBARAR WT ¢

Estimated Employer’s
allowances  contribution

Discretionary  and benefits to benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses in kind scheme Total
AR EIHEAS
EEps e e WA freREE  FENMEX @3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR  ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARETR  ARMT:R

Executive Directors: HTES:

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng BT 1 1,005 121,313 240 27 123,296
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BAmEE 390 501 983 120 85 2,079
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia BHEREE 343 201 985 420 = 1,949
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BXIEE 377 301 739 276 17 1,710
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen REEE 407 558 1,427 360 18 2,770
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui BBEE 203 385 199 207 21 1,015
Ms. Lai Hong Yee RRERL 203 252 140 377 16 988
Non-executive Directors: FHTEE .

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun* B 407 - - 982 = 1,389
Mr. Maki Haruo BEXREE 203 - - - = 203
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien ByEis 203 - - - = 203

Independent non-executive BUkHTES:

Directors:

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock SRELE 406 = = = = 406
Dr. Pei Kerwei BRRET 406 - - - = 406
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen BRCEE 203 = = = = 203
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming TEALE 203 - - - = 203
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BrRLE 203 - - - = 203

4,868 3,203 125,786 2,982 184 137,023

* The other benefit for Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun is the consultancy fee. * I REEYIEENEMBERAZER
g o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued) 35. EERFIRMS(E)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) (a) EBREREBAEME (H)
For the year ended 31 March 2020, emoluments paid or payable in BZE2020F3A31HILFE  giAE
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company EZATZENARENIE (TRE
or its subsidiary undertaking: AR EMEBARAR WOT ¢

Estimated Employer’s
allowances  contribution

Discretionary  and benefits to benefit

Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses in kind scheme Total
AR EIHEAS

EEps e e BERA  freREE  FENMEX a3t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARRBTR  ARETR

Executive Directors; HTES!

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng BOTAE 639 1,017 80,000 240 2 81,922

Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BAmEE 432 503 505 120 87 1647

Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia EMREE 352 205 2,022 420 - 2,999

Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BXIEE 388 264 604 213 16 1485

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RiExks 418 563 1,260 360 17 2,618

Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui ZHBLL 209 384 192 212 23 1,020

Ms. Lai Hong Yee REERL 209 256 123 384 16 988

Non-executive Directors; FHTES !

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun* B 418 - - 1,009 - 1427

Mr. Maki Haruo BEXLE 209 - - - - 209

Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BYERE 209 - - - - 209

Independent non-executive BUkHTES:

Directors:

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock SRELE 418 - - - - 418

Dr. Pei Kerwei ARBEL 418 - - - - 418

Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou** RAKE 46 - - - - 46

Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen BRECEE 209 - - - - 209

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming TEALE 209 - - - - 209

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BEREE 128 - - - - 128
4,911 3,192 84,706 2,958 185 95,952

* The other benefit for Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun is the consultancy fee. * T REEISEENEMERAZER
Bo
*  Mr. Lee Kwang-Chou has passed away on 19 June 2019. o BRAKER2019F6 190 B
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued) 35. EERAIREE D

(b) Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits during the year ended 31 March 2021.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

The Group did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year ended 31 March 2021.

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, bodies corporate controlled by or entities connected
with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made available
in favour of directors, bodies corporate controlled by or entities
connected with directors subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2021.

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of 31 March 2021 or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. XEMBELT

A2021%F3H8318 » NEBHNEEH

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries of the

Group as at 31 March 2021.

BARFBHIWT -

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
&/ 2 BRIRAR REBRE
NGEL:S RIER/ HE B/ ERER WERER% TEEB
Directly owned
ERER
Want Want Holdings Ltd. Singapore US$212,331,000 99.99 Investment holding
REERERATE s 212,331,000% T REZR
Long Wave Foods Limited HKSAR HK$100 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERRERAA BERE 10087 RARHKES
Want-Want Foods Limited HKSAR HK$2 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERRERAR BERE 287 RARHKES
Leisure Foods Limited HKSAR HK$1 100 Trading of food and beverages
HHRRERAR BERE 187 RARHKES
Like Snacks Trading Limited HKSAR HK$1 100 Trading of food and beverages
BYIRMESERAT BERE 187 RARHKES
Want Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR US$10,000,000 100 Investment holding
ERRRERERAR BERE 10,000,000% 7 REER
Big Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR US$1 100 Investment holding
ERARERERAR BBRE (EV REER
Want Want China Finance Limited BVI US$50,000 100 Investment holding
ABELES 50,000% 7 REER
Want Want Indonesia Holdings Pte Limited HKSAR US$500,000 100 Investment holding
BERE 500,000% 7 REZR
Indirectly owned
HEEs
Anhui Kuang-Want food Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB22,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ZHERRREEERAT EIER AR22,000,0007 and related activities
RERSHES U REEERES
Anji Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZERERMERAT FEER 1,400,000% 7T of food and beverages
RERIHRMANA
Anging Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZEAERRBERAT FEER 7,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERIHRMANA
Anging Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZERERMERAT FEER 100,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERIHRMANA
Anyang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$8,930,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZHEIERBERAT FEER 8,930,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERAHRMANA
Bao-Want Technology Packaging Materials Taiwan region NTD9,000,000 60 Sales of chemical materials
Co., Ltd. REHE 9,000,000%7 &% and plastic films/bags

BENFENRHERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WEREEY  FEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Beijing Be-Want Foods Ltd.# Chinese mainland US$9,350,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TRURERERAF HEIRR 9,350,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$13,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FRARERERAF HEIRR 13,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Cheng-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,440,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TRRERRERAT HEIRR 1,440,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Dairy-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$25,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ITRARRRERAT HEIRR 25,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FTRIRRRERAT HEIRR 1,400,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Lion-Want Packing Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$2,100,000 100 Manufacturing of packing materials
ERREBEERAT HEIER 2,100,000% 7 HEELR
Beijing Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TRRERRERAT HERR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Changchun Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB150,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
RERARRERAF HEIRR AR¥150,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Changsha Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$19,320,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ROBHRRERAT HEIRR 19,320,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Chengdu Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$35,700,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
KEHARAERRAF HEIRR 35,700,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Chengdu Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland 1S$9,800,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
KARRRRERAR HEIRR 9,800,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Chongging Xi-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB1,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
EFERHEARAR HEIRR AR#1,000,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
First Family Enterprise Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD66,500,000 100 Trading of snack food
HREHZRNERAR REHE 66,500,00037 & # HARRES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WEREEY  FEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BERE (&)
Guangdong Si-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ERERAHEERAR HEIRR AR#10,000,0007 and related activities
EmREBEZURBBERED
Guangdong Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERARAFERAR HESR AR#50,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangxi Ling-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB3,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ERERHEARAR HERR ARH3,500,0007 and related activities
EmREBEZURBBERED
Guangxi Ming-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$25,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERARRRERAF HEIRR 25,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangxi Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$11,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERRRRRERAR HEIRR 11,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,850,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENSERRERAR HEIRR 4,850,000% ¢ of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENAERRERAR HEIRR 10,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENCERRERAR HEIRR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENARALEERAR HEIRR 15,000,000 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$9,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENERRRERAR FERR 9,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Xiang-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$14,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENFRERRERAR HERR 14,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Yong-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENXERRERAR HERR 7,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Hangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$11,250,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
MNARRRERAR HEISR 11,250,000% 7T of food and beverages
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WEREEY  FEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Hangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ANLERRERAR HFERR 4,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hangzhou Sun-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution of food,
ANBERRERAR HEIRR 12,000,000% 7 wine and beverages
HERSHRM  BERSA
Hangzhou Tiane Foods Chemical Co., Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,050,000 100 Manufacturing of dehydrating, deoxidating,
RMAELIBRAT HEIER 1,050,000 7T preservative and related products
RER R REM  HREREBER
Hangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland S$9,800,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ANERRRERAF HEIRA 9,800,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Harbin Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
RREETERRERAT HEIRR 5,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hubei Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB4,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HtEREEERAF HEIRR AR#4,500,0007 and related activities
RmRYBEZUREBERED
Hefei Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
AEEERFERAT HEIRR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Heilongjiang Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ZEIGHBEERAR HEIRR AR#3,000,0007 and related activities
EmRYBEZUREBERED
Henan Ping-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
R TREEERA R HEIRR AR#3,000,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
Henan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
MEEERRERAR HEIRR 1,750,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Houma Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$4,700,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
GERRRRERAR HEIRR 4.700,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Huaian Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$102,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EERRRRERA R HEIRR 102,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hubei Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
M IRERERAT HEIRR 4,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. TEMBLT @)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WEREEY  FEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BERE (&)
Hubei Ming-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ALPERRERAR HEIRR 10,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Hunan Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$57,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HEARRRERAT HESR 57,400,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Hunan Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,500,000 100 Manufacturing of packing bags
HEERERENEEERAT HENER 5,500,000% 7 and carton boxes
REAERRER
Hunan Tai-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB2,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HERREEERAF HERR AR#2,000,0007 and related activities
EmREBEZURBBERED
Hunan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HEEERRERAT HEIRR 15,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HERRIERGERAT REHE 10,000,00051 4% of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Island Port Corporation BVI US$25,000,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 25,000,000% 7 REZR
Jiangsu Rongwang Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
IHEAREERAF HERR AR#10,000,0007 and related activities
EmREBEZURBBERED
Jiangxi Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,600,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IEAVERRERAT HEIRR 12,600,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Jiangxi Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$11,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IARRRRERAF FEIRR 11,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Jiangxi Wen-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB2,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
IANHREERAF HERR AR#2,000,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZUREBERED
Jiaxing Mei-Want Machinery Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,500,000 100 Manufacturing and sales of
RAEEARNAEERAT HENER 12,500,000% 7 machineries and related services
HEREERHREBRE
Jiaxing Feng Want Precision Equipment Chinese mainland RMB5,600,000 100 Manufacturing and sales of
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.# HEIER AR#5,600,0007 machineries and related services
REERRERBRERRAR HEREERHRBBRE
Leading Guide Corporation BVI US$40,000,000 100 Trading of raw materials, machineries
RBELRE 40,000,000% 7 and efc.
FHH - BHZES
Leading Guide Hong Kong Limited HKSAR US$50,000 100 Trading company
BERE 50,000% I
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WEREEY  FEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Lianyungang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$8,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BZEMARRERAR HFERR 8,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Liaoning Tai-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB5,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
BELRMBEEERAT HEIER AR#5,000,0007T and related activities
RmRYBEZURBBERED
Longchang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BEUHRRERAT HEIRR 12,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
SPREAEERAR HEIER AR#50,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BERERRERAT HEIRR 1,750,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$700,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EERHRRERAT HEIRR 700,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Xiang Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EEHHRRERAT HEIRR 4,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BUARRRERAR HEIRR AE#100,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Ru-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BUARRRERAR HEIRR AE#50,000,0007C of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Want-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BRURRRRERAR HEIRR 7,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Media Sense INC. BVI US$25,000,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 25,000,000% 7 REER
Ming Want Worldwide Limited BVI US$250,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 250,000% 7 REER
Nanjing Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$111,850,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BERAERRERAT HERR 111,850,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Nanjing Cubic-Want Plastic Ltd. Chinese mainland US$2,500,000 100 Production of packaging materials
ERmEEENRERAT HENER 2,500,000% 7 and cans
EEARMHRE

2020/20214 3 ANNUAL REPORT



F Bl BEBE ERAFRAT
e MBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. TEMBLT @)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BRORAR rEERA
DAERH RIER/ #E R /REs WEREZ% IEED
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEA (&)
Nanjing Fore-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,300,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERBERRERAT FEER 6,300,000% of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Nanjing Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$17,000,000 100 Manufacturing of packing bags
BFREMENERAT HEIER 17,000,000% ¢ and carton boxes
HEARARER
Nanjing Lion-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,700,000 100 Manufacturing of packing
HAREAEERAR EEA 3,700,000% 7 materials
BEEER
Nanjing Minghong Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 75 Manufacturing and distribution
ERBARRRERAA FEER 15,000,000£ 7 of food and beverages
RERAHRMARA
Nanjing Be-want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERUERRERAT FEER 3,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDHRRARE
Nanjing Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$2,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ARRERRERAR HEER 2,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
BERDHRMANH
Nanjing Sen-Want Dairy Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB400,000,000 50 Manufacturing and distribution
ERARAERRAF HEIER AR#400,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAERAARA
Nanjing Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese mainland US$6,400,000 91 Manufacturing and distribution
EREERRERAF FEER 6,400,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERAHRMARA
Ningxia Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EERAAEERAT FEER 12,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Poyang County Linwang Forestry Chinese mainland US$18,350,000 100 Agricultural planting and management
Development Co., Ltd. HEIER 18,350,000 7 and livestock and poultry breeding
BEEMIE AR ERAT BEEERERNREERR
Qihe Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$35,130,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EIRERRERAT HENER 35,130,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Quanzhou Lee-want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FNURRRERAR HERR 15,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
RERAHRMARA
Quanzhou Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
SNRERBERAT FEER 10,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDHERRARE
Shanxi Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese mainland US$350,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HEREEEERAR EER 350,000% 7T and related activities
RARAHESUREEREED
Shandong Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
LRARRRERAR HENER 4,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. TEMBLT @)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WEREEY  FEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Shandong Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacturing and sales of packaging
REREEMBERAT HEIER 5,000,000% 7 materials and carton boxes
HEREERMHRER
Shandong Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$62,350,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
LRARRRERAT HEIRR 62,350,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shandong Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
LREHEERRAF HEIRR AR#3,000,0007 and related activities
RmRYBEZUREBERED
Shanggao Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$1,800,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IRRERRERAT HEIRR 1,800,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shanggao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TERERRERAF HEIER 5,000,000£ 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shanghai Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TBURERERLH HEIER 15,000,000% T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shanghai Ruwang Electronic Commerce Chinese mainland RMB140,000,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
Co., Ltd. HEIER A E#140,000,0007 and information
LEMEEFERERAR RAEEARBRER
Shanghai Fuwang Culture Communication Chinese mainland RMB5,000,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
Co., Ltd. HEIER AK#5,000,0007T and information
PERE L BRERAR REZHARERER
Shanghai Want Want Foods Group Co., Ltd. ~ Chinese mainland US$30,350,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
LERERRERERAR HEIER 30,350,000 7 and information
REEEARBRER
Shanghai Hao-Want Network Technology Chinese mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Engaged in network technology
Co., Ltd. HEIER AE#10,000,0007T services, consulting, etc.
LR RENEERAR e RRRIMES - 2%
Shanghai Want-Want Network Technology Chinese mainland RMB10,800,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
Co., Ltd. HEIER AE#10,800,0007 and related activities online
LERRRENEERAR EmREBEZURRBRSEHED
Shanghai Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese mainland US$4,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HEREHEERRAT HENER 4,500,000%7 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
Shanghai Chao Want Technology Co., Ltd Chinese mainland US$2,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
DESRNEERAT HENER 2,000,000% 7t and related activities
EmRYBE S RABERED
Shenyang Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland 1S$9,950,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EHRAERRERAT HEIRR 9,950,000% 7t of food, wine and beverages

HERD#RM  BERHH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WEREEY  FEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BERE (&)
Shenyang Rice-Want Cereals & Qils Ltd. Chinese mainland US$9,600,000 100 Processing and sales of rice and
EHETEARERAT FEER 9,600,000% 7 oil products
KRRERMIRHEE
Shenyang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EREERFERAT HESR 10,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Shenyang Yan-Want Rice Flour Manufacturing - Chinese mainland US$3,300,000 100 Rice flour manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* HEIER 3,300,000% 7T HERR
ERETRBREERAR
Shijiazhuang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$22,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
REHARIAEERAR HERR 22,750,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Shuangcheng Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,620,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
REEEHEERRERAT FEER 3,620,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Tongchuan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,600,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
)RR RERAR HEIRR 15,600,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Tongchuan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
1) EERRERAR HEIRR 6,750,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Want Want Corporation (Thailand) Ltd. Thailand THP10,000,000 100 Trading company
e 10,000,000%8k I
Want Want Holdings finance limited BVI US$1 100 Investment holding
RERZEE Er REER
Want Want Malaysia Sendirian Berhad MYR MYR1,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
BREZ 1,000,0005% RRREBES
Want Want Philippines Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$250,000 100 Investment company
g 250,000% 7 RELT
Want Want Thailand Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$400,000 100 Investment holding
REZEUAERERAR R 400,000% 7 REZR
Want Want Vietnam Company Limited Vietnam US$17,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HREEEERAR il 17,000,000£ 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Want Want Vietnam Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$19,030,000 9 Investment holding
REEEIAERERAR g 19,030,000% REZR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WEREEY  FEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Want Want Vietnam Trading Co., Ltd. Vietnam VND200,000,000 100 Trading company
il 200,000,000#i% UG
Want Want Food Pte Ltd. Singapore SGD100,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERRHABRAF s 100,005 AN3f 7T RmRHBES
Want Want Four Seas Company Limited HKSAR HK$2,000,000 70 Distributing of food and beverages
HEMHERA R BFEEE 2,000,000 7 and related activities
PHERRRABAREEESEED
Want Want Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY100,000,000 60 Import, export and distribution of food
HAE B Ak &4t AR 100,000,0008 and beverages and related services
RmREBEL O RDEARMERS
Weifang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EHEERRERAR HEIRR 3,000,000%7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Wingate Overseas Holdings Ltd. BVI US$50,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 50,000% 7 REER
Wellstand Enterprises Limited BVI US$1 100 Trading of raw materials,
RBELRE 1£5n machineries and efc.
FHH - BHZES
Wellstand Singapore Pte Limited Singapore US$50,000 100 Investment holding
g 50,000% 7 REER
Xiantao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$5,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
LERRRERAR HEIRR 5,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Xining Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
AERRRRERAR HEIRR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Xinjiang Ru-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FRARRRERAR HEIRR 6,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Xinjiang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$7,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FERRRRERAR HEIRR 7,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Xuzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$11,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BHNARERRERAR HEIRR 11,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Zhejiang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$79,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
WL EERAR HEIRR 79,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WEREEY  FEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BERE (&)
Zhejiang Ru-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$24,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
MIARRRERAR HEIRR 24,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Zhejiang Want-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IR RRERAR HESR AE#100,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Zhejiang Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
WLGREEARA R HENER AR#10,000,0007 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESED
Zhong Want Holdings Limited HKSAR HK$1,000 100 Investment holding
FRERERAR BERE 1,000 7T REER
Notes: Mi&E
# represents sino-foreign equity/cooperative joint venture. # REPHNEE EERE -
* represents enterprise wholly-owned by a Chinese mainland legal entity. * RERPBEBREABELE -

The remaining enterprises incorporated in Chinese mainland are all

foreign-invested enterprises.

All the enterprises incorporated in Chinese mainland are limited

liability companies.

HKSAR denotes Hong kong Special Administative region.
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